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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report, including the “Letter to Qur Stackbolders, Customers and Partners,”
contains " forward-looking statements” as that term is defined in the Private Securitie
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended (the “Reform Act”). "Forward-lookin
statements”” include expressed expectations of future events and the assumption
on which the expressed expectations are based. The words “believe,” “expect’
“aniicipate,” “intend,” "forecast,” “estimate,” “project,” “will" and similar exprassion
identify forward-looking statements. Such statements may include, but are not limite
to, the state of the elactronic payments industry and competition within the industry
projections regarding specific demand for our products and services; the commercia
feasivility and acceptance of new products, services and market developmen
initiatives; our ability to successfully penatrate the vertical and geographic market
that we have targeted; our ability 16 improve our cost structure, including reducing ou
product and operating costs; our ability to develop more recurming revenue streams
our ability to successfully manage our transition to a contraci manufacturing model
including the impact on inventories; our ability to allocate research and developmen
resources to new product and service offerings; our ability to increase market shar
and our competitive strength; our future financial perfermance and financial condition
the adequacy of our current facilities and management systems infrastructure (o mee
our operational needs; the staius of our relationship with and condition of third partie
upon whom we rely in the conduct of our business; the sufficiency of reserves fo
assets and obligations exposed io revaluation; our ability to successfully expand ou
business and increase revenue; our ability to integrate and obtain expacted result
and benefits from acquisitions (including recent and future acquisitions); our abilit
to effectively hedge our expesure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; ou
ability to sustain our current income tax structure; the impact of current litigatio
matters on our business; our ability to fund cur projected liquidity needs from cas
flow from operations and our current cash reserves; and future access 1o capital o
terms that are acceptable, as well as assumptions related to the foregoing. All forward
looking statements are inherently uncertain as they are based on various expectation
and assumptions concerning future events and are subject to numerous unguantifiabl
risks and unceriainties, some of which are unknown, that could cause actual evenis o
results to differ materially from those projected. Due to such risks and uncertaintie:
you should nat place undue reliance on our writien or oral forward-looking statement
We are under no obligation, nor do we intend, o update or revise such forward-loakin
statemenis {o reflect futre developments, changed assumptions, the occurrence
unanticipated events, or changes to future operating results over time.

wa

Wa provide the risk factor disclosure contained in “fiem 1A — Risk Faciors” of ou
Annual Report on Ferm 10-K contained herein in connection with aur continuing effar
1o quaify our written and oral forward-looking statements under the safe harb
protection of the Reform Act and any other similar safe harbor provisions. Many of th
important factors currently known to management that could cause actual resulis t
differ materially from those in forward-locking statements include the risks containe
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LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND PARTNERS

In 2007, Hypercom positioned itself to become a stronger, more competitive global payment systems pro-
vider through acquisitions and the energy and passion of its product engineers, sales teams and its more
than 1,290 employees worldwide. Our high-performance, high-security product lines entered the market
at a time when retailers and their customers demand products equipped to fight payment fraud and
security breaches. 2007 has been a year of significant transition and forward momentum, building your
company into a highly competitive, customer and market-focused product and services operation.

Fourth quarter 2007 revenues increased 40% over the prior year, and we
recorded fuil year revenue of $293.8 million. We regained our footing in
North America with substantial product demand in the multi-lane and
countertop business and increased our market share in MCC (Mexico, the
Caribbean and Central America) and EMEA {Europe, the Middle East and
Africa).

We introduced a new generation of high security Optimum products and
reorganized the company's sales and marketing functions to create a
focused platform for revenue growth. A newly reconfigured end-to-end
supply chain is driving efficiency, quality and time to market. In addition,
we completed the integration of two acquisitions, TPI Software and ACG
Group, into the Hypercom family and entered into exclusive negotiations
with Thales SA to acquire that company’s e-Transactions business line.
We made significant improvements in our global IT infrastructure, We also
sold our corporate headquarters and will be moving into a new facility in
2008. Additionally, we further reduced operating expenses by becoming
more efficient.

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

We exited 2007 with a solid financial and product platform. And, we
entered 2008 with significant growth drivers in the global marketplace
that include a strong product replacement and growth cycle. Products
that enable retailers to easily accept secure electronic transactions will
be front and center in 2008. Mobile and contactless payments are
becoming very important, as are IP connectivity, signature capture,
digital check capture, unattended and integrated solutions and multi-
application.

Demand for the tightest possible security at the poini-of-sale is
escalating exponentially. In 2008, payments security must be of the
highest standard, and will be extended to the entire point-of-sale
infrastructure—including the payment gateway, and the network,
We have the technology and expertise to capitalize on the product
replacement and growth cycle, and meet the demand for high security
head-on.
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HIGH SECURITY PRODUCTS

In 2007, your company fertified its 29-year leadership position in
payment security, introducing an array of high-performance, high-
security products including:

= The 32-bit multi-application Optimum T4200 global countertop
platform of six terminals featuring the highest security, largest
memory and broadest feature set of any countertop device of its
kind.

= The Optimum L4150, a new top-of-the-line glabal payment
terminal for multi-lane retailers. The PCI PED-approved signature
capture unit features a new 64K color glass capacitive touch screen
that provides the market's brightest and most legible interface for
effective interactive advertising at the point of sale.

= The PCI PED-approved PV1310 handheld PIN entry device.
Featuring vendor-agnostic architecture that enables easy integration
with non-Hypercom card payment terminals, the compact, low-cost
PV1310 lets retailers quickly add high security, PCl-certified PIN-
based payments to their legacy systems without upgrading their
entire terminal infrastructure.

= We also integrated the technology and assets of TPI Software,
LLC and entered the fast-growing PC-based POS systems market
with our SmariPayments™ Server and Client software.

SERVICES

We expanded our service business footprint in Asia-Pacific by acquiring
the assets of ACG Group Pty Limited. Similar to our NetSet operations in
Brazil, Chile and Mexico, and service centers in Europe, the Middle East
and Africa, ACG provides vendor-agnostic installation, technical support
and help desk services for banks, merchants and terminal providers.

THIRD-PARTY MANUFACTURING

We substantially completed the outsourcing of our manufacturing and
consolidation of our assembly, software and repair and maintenance
functions globally to drive improvements in product quality, quickly
adapt to changing market needs and reduce costs.

E-TRANSACTIONS BUSINESS

In December, we made a hinding offer 10 acquire the profitable
e-Transactions business line of Thales SA. The e-Transactions business
line is a leading provider of secure card payment solutions in France,
Germany, the United Kingdom, Spain, Belgium and Sweden. This
business combination was completed on April 1, 2008, and positions
Hypercom as the number two market share leader in Western Europe,
and the third largest electronic transactions solutions provider glabally.

THE YEAR AHEAD

Our objectives for 2008 are to significantly increase market share in
selected regions, seamlessly integrate the e-Transactions business line,
add more functionality to our products, redesign our new praducts
to cost, and enhance our supply chain and contract manufacturing
process.

We will continue to seek the best professional talent, develop strategic
partnerships to maximize market oppartunities and continue to tightly
control our expenses to improve profitability as we pursue these
objectives,

The key values of your company remain the same. We will compete
with integrity, accountability, tactical speed, continual urgency
and improvement, with a singutar focus on our customers and the
determination to win. We will continue to deliver an exceptional range
of services and secure PCi PED-approved products and solutions sold
and supported by the right professionals in the right geographies; and,
in doing s0, strengthen our ability to more quickly deliver the very best
solutions to the market.

You will see an evolving, nimble, invigorated, stronger and maore
competitive Hypercom in 2008 and beyond.

Sincerely,

Philippe Tartavull
Chief Executive Officer and President

ANNUAL REPORT 2007



ZUU/ AIGHLIGHTS

JANUARY - FEBRUARY
= Philippe Tartavull appointed President.
» Announced the acquisition of the technelogy and assets of TPI
Software LLC; entered fast-growing PC-based POS systems market.
* Acquired the assets of ACG Group Pty Ltd.; expanded service
business footprint in Asia Pacific.
= Introduced new versign of SmartPayments™ Server.

MARCH
= Achieved EURD 8000 Certification of the Optimum T2100; entered
Spain’s savings bank sector and commenced product sales.
= San Francisco Giants and Visa USA announced plans for full
deployment of Visa consumer-facing payment terminals through
out ATET Park, installing Hypercom's Optimum L4100 terminals
equipped with Visa Contactless technclogy.

APRIL
= QTl, Hypercom and Commtrain delivered first productive EMY
contactless transaction in Europe.
» Apriva, the leading wireless sclutions provider, Class A-certified
the Optimum T4100 for use on Apriva's Intelligent Gateway.
» Introduced SmartPayments Client for PC-based merchant
payment processing.

MAY

» Al Rajhi Bank, one of the largest financial institutions in Saudi
Arabia and the Middle East, agreed to purchase more than 4,000
Optimum dial-up and wireless card payment terminals.

= Cyclone Software selected Hypercom's Transaction Transport Service
for "Fastcheck” check verification and conversion network.

* Introduced Optimum 74200 platform.

JUNE

= Hypercom's SmartPayments Payment Processing Suite became
first electronic payment processing seftware to pass certification
tests ensuring compatibility with Windows Vista.

* Selected Surf Communication Solutions AMC DSP Farm and
SurfUP™ muyltimedia processing for Hypercom's next generation
network access sefver,

= Apriva Class A-certified the Optimum M4100.

» Named Alhamrani Best Provider of High Security Payment
Products in Middle East.

= Reorganized global sales and marketing functions.

= Reconfigured end-to-end product supply chain to drive efficiency,
quality and time-to-market.

Juy

AUGUST

= Mashreq psc, one of the leading banks in the United Arab

« PY1310 high-security PIN pad introduced for multipie terminal

=« PrivatBank, one of the leading banks in Ukraine, purchased 11,00

SEPTEMBER - OCTOBER

= Optimum T4200 terminals received Interac Association Device

= BBVA Bancomer, one cf the leading banks in Mexico, announced

NOVEMBER - DECEMBER

* Philippe Tartavull appointed Chief Executive Officer and Presiden

= Philippe Tartavull appointed Chief Operating Officer,
lan Marsh, Executive Vice President and Managing Director, Asia
Pacific Region of the Western Union Company, appointed to the
Board of Directors.

Optimum T4200 product family earned EMV Level 1 & 2
certifications.

NOVA Class A-certified the Optimum T4100 payment terminal.
Optimum T4200 platform earned MasterCard security aporoval.

Emirates, selected Hypercom's Optimum M4100 {the “Blade”) t
deploy at retail locations throughout the country,

brands.

Optimum T2100 and M2100 GSM/GPRS card payment terminals.

Certification for use in Canada.

plans to deploy more than 13,000 Optimum T2100 countertop
and M2100 Bluetcoth-enabled mobile payment terminals.

= Keycorp agreed to distribute Hypercom's new countertop, mobile
and multi-lane Optimum payment selutions throughout Canada
as part of its Managed Payment Services program.
Named one of the top 50 companies in the 2007 FinTech 100
annual ranking of top technolegy providers to the worldwide
financial services indusiry, according to American Banker and
Financial insights. Hypercom was ranked#42 and was the only
provider of card payment terminal solutions and services to be
recognized for four consecutive years.

Introduced Optimum L4150 multi-lane payment terminal.
Global Payments selected Hypercom's SmartPayments to expand
payment processing services for integrated solutions.
Optimum L4150 Terminal received Interac Association Device
Certification for use in Canada.
Sonet deployed Hypercom-based Electranic Transaction Network
in Czech Republic.

Norman Stout elected Chairman.

Johann Dreyer appointed to Board of Directors.
Announced binding offer to acquire e-Transactions Business Ling
of Thales.



HIGH-PERFORMANCE, HIGH-SECURITY PRODUCTS
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Optimum® T4200
Six Competitively Priced U.S. & Global Models with
Multiple Communications Options

“We believe our new Optimum countertop platform beats every competitive
product on a feature-for-feature basis, and has more capabilities for the price than
any other countertop terminal in the industry,” said Gregory Boardman, Hypercom
Vice President, Countertop Products. "With these six new terminals, we now have
a full line of 32-bit products that offer a migration path from older products for any
single-lane, multi-lane ar mobile merchant anywhere in the world.”

The platform is PCl PED-approved, has also received MasterCard Worldwide
Payment Terminal Security appraval for IP and wireless transactions, EMV Level
1 & 2 certifications for global merchant markets, Interac Association Chip PED
Device Certification of three units; and complies with the European Union's RoHS
requirements for hazardous substances.

All six models in the new Optimum T4200 series incorporate a crisp 160 x 80 pixel
monochrome display. They come standard with 24MB of memory that is four to
eight times larger than similar products, and can quickly and efficiently process
debit, credit, smart card and value-added transactions such as gift/loyalty and
dynamic currency conversion. At just 8 1/4" long, 3 1/2" wide and 2 1/2” high, they
are smaller than many competitive devices, conserve space on the retail counter and
are small enough for use in hand-over implementations.
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HIGH-PERFORMANCE, HIGH-SECURITY PRODUCTS
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Optimum® L4150

Multi-Lane Payment Terminal

"We believe that the L4150 equips large retailers around the globe with the
hrightest, most usable, and most future-proof multi-lane payment terminal on the
market, as well as the newest security technologies,” said Tony Fernandez, Hypercom
Vice President, Multi-Lane, Unattended and Peripheral Products. "This unit strongly
positions Hypercam to expand its multi-lane footprint globally.”

The PCl PED approved, Interac-certified L4150 features engineering advantages
exclusive to Hypercom, including an advanced security architecture that simplifies
hardware and application authentication, PC) PED-compliant privacy options that
eliminate the need far add-on physical privacy shields, and a depot-upgradeable
capability that allows contactless and EMV smart card readers to be integrated into |
the L4150 either before or after delivery without increasing the device's footprint. |

|

|

The Optimum L4150 joins a full array of high-performance Optimum countertop,
multi-lane, wireless and portable terminals that have been deployed by leading
banks, retailers and independent sales organizations globally since Hypercom
introduced its first 32-bit Optimum preduct in 2004.

F - visA T 1

CUSTOMIZABLE BEZEL STANDARD DUAL HEAD, ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE P1300 PIN PAD FOR

FOR MERCHANT BRAND BI-DIRECTIONAL MAGNETIC ~ CAPTURE COMPLIANCE WITH

ADVERTISING STRIPE READER REGIONAL DISABILITY
STANDARDS

HYPERCOM CORPORATION
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HIGH-PERFORMANCE, HIGH-SECURITY PRODUCTS

PV1310
High-Security PIN Pad for Multiple
Terminal Brands

“The PV1310 allows merchants to offer the highest security payment protection
and safety to customers when they enter their PIN numbers at the point-of-
transaction,” said Gregory Boardman. “This product delivers low-cost, reliable and
vendor-agnostic PIN entry capabilities for consumers using debit cards, Electronic
Benefit Transfer (EBT) and other PIN-based forms of payment while meeting high-
security requirements to safeguard sensitive data.”

LATEST PCI PED-APPROVED COLOR-CODED CANCEL, 2 X 16 DISPLAY FOR
SECURITY CLEAR AND ENTER KEYS CONCISE USER PROMPTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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HIGH-PERFORMANCE, HIGH-SECURITY PRODUCTS
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SmartPayments™ Server

Electronic Payment Processing Software -

We are absolutely committed to providing merchants globally with best-in-class,
high security payment processing solutions that keep pace with evolving network
infrastructure needs,” said Bill Pittman, Hypercom Payment Solutions Vice President.
“By incorporating the card association's Payment Applications Best Practices
certification (PABP) with support for Windows features and security upgrades, our
SmartPayments solution delivers a secure, robust, high speed Web-based point-
of-sale technology to simplify and speed transaction delivery, and defend against
spyware, malware and data theft.”

Hypercom’s SmartPayments Server is an advanced electronic payment processing
solution for PC-based point-of-sale systems of enterprises seeking to integrate
payments into their accounting departments, back office operations and independent
sales organizations (ISOs) to become their own switch/gateway. It can run as a low-
cost in-stare controller at corparate headquarters serving multiple stores or in @
datacenter as a payment gateway. SmartPayments Server has built-in support for
a web browser-based virtual terminal for end users and merchant management
console for retailers, independent sales organizations and resellers.

URL{ 5

NEXT GENERATION ADMIN TOOLS MAKE T SOPHISTICATED REPCRTS
REAL-TIME CREDIT CARD EASY TO SET UP AND USE PROVIDE DETAILED
PROCESSING OVER THE TRANSACTION ACTIVITY
INTERNET

HYPERCOM CORPORATION
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SmartPayments™ Client g

Quick and Easy - Implementation

and Results .

Hypercom's SmartPayments Client is the first electronic payment processing M’cmSOft
solution that runs on Microsoft Windows and integrates PC-based point- GOLD CERTIFIED
of-sale systems with POS hardware, eliminating the need for expensive and Partner
time-consuming software development. SmartPayments Client & Server were

one of the first electronic payment processing software applications to pass - .
the rigorous security certification Payment Application Best Practices (PABP) M’C’OSO”
in addition to becoming the first suite of electronic payment applications CERTIFIED
to pass Microsoft's certification tests ensuring compatibility with Windows Business Solutions
Vista, thus enabling end users to make full use of the enhanced security Partner

features of the new Microsoft operating system.

Hy| | K
ap.| |

Certified for
Designed for - —
Microsoft® Windows
Windows® Server™2003
for Pocket PC Standand Edizion

TURNS LEGACY DEVICES VERSATILE - SUPPORTS OPERATES AS AN
INTO LIGHTNING FAST IP TOMORROW'S NEXT INVASIBLE SERVICE
TERMINALS GENERATION TERMINAL

THAT CAN EASILY BE

EXPANDED AND CUSTOMIZED
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"Hypercom has always been a key industry innovator, beginning with faster
dial solutions and now offering flexible, high-speed IP solutions to the
transaction marketplace, Hypercom has some of the best engineers and
client team members in the industry, focused on client and merchant security,
value and resufts. In particular, Hypercom's 14220 will offer a new level of
efficient processing, value added multi-application support, and flexibility in
communication methods, We look forward to introducing Hypercom’s latest
products in 2008.”

“Hypercorn has been a key supplier for us over the last 25 years. Their
commitment to quality and product innovation has kept us number one in our
market. We are very excited about the new range of terminals and are already
seeing the success from our recent release of the T42xx range. The recent
release of the T42xx range from Hypercom has been an outstanding success.
Already our customers are agreeing that Hypercom is still number one. The
support Hypercom has given us to certify and release the new products is a
reminder of why we remain a loyal Hypercom customer after 25 years. It is
not only the products but the commitment to quality and support that makes
the biggest difference.”

“IRN’s relationship with Hypercom has grown over the last 5 years. The
biggest reason is the service received by our representative and the direction
changes from upper-management to allow Hypercom fo be more competitive
in the market place. These changes and improved service made the decision
to make Hypercom the only terminal we offer in our free terminal program
much easier and one we have not regretted over the last 3 years.

With all the new mandates for PCI, we are glad to see Hypercom being a
leader jn getting the next generation of terminals to the market place. IRN
will continue to feature these terminals to our merchants and sales office, as
well as, for our free terminal program.

Over all our relationship has grown and our purchasing increases reflects
that.”

“Hypercom is a great company to work with. We have enjoyed our relationship
with them. They have a top flight service staff and we have never had major
problems with their products. We look forward to continuing our good
refationship with Hypercom, "




*The performance of the products that have been acquired recently has
been excellent and has satisfied our needs because they comply with all of
the latest standards and established norms. The technical knowledge of the
people that provide support Is outstanding. The EFTSec application assures
the compliance of the established norms by the regulatory entities and this is
why Hypercom is considered as a technology solution alternative in our 2008
plans.”

“Western Unfon and Hypercom have had a long-standing relationship revolving
around our POS equipment. For nearly 10 years Hypercom has provided
Waestern Union agent locations with a variety of POS terminals to conduct
financial transactions, and in so doing has been very supportive and flexible
in meeting our requirements. Hypercom is very responsive to Western Union’s
needs, provides a high level of service and delivers quality products.

Hypercom has helped Western Union solve a number of technical issues at the
point of sale by bringing us solutions that make it easier to achieve our goals.”

"ORIX Leasing established Pakistan’s 1st Third Party Shared Point of Sale
Network in 2002 which today has become the largest network in Pakistan
in terms of business volumes and transactions. ORIX Leasing entered into a
strategic relationship with Hypercom as we felt they were the only company
capable of providing us a turn-key solution which included POS Terminals,
Netwark Access Controllers and Software Applications which supported our
EFT and Loyalty programs, We can now say with certainty, after working with
Hypercom for over 6 years that they have proven to be a reliable partner in
delivering complex solutions and in meeting tough timelines which gives us a
unigue edge in our market.”

“First American and Hypercom have enjoyed a fong partnership. Hypercom
consistently produces high-quality equipment that offers cutting-edge features
with practical uses. The service levels within Hypercom's organization remain
exceptionally high as they continually exceed expectations. Hypercom's
standard terminal offerings coupled with the First American proprietary
terminal line offer merchant’s technology to meet all of their payment
processing needs. First American s extremely pleased with our partnership,
and we plan to continue to work with Hypercom for years to come.”

CUSTOMER
TESTIMONIALS

William Fuentes
Communications Manager
REDEBAN Multicoler (Colombia}

Paul J. Vogt
Director of Supply Chain, Global Operations
Western Union

Giasuddin Khan
General Manager and
Head of e-Business Division
ORIX

Dustin Siner
Vice President of Business Development
First American Payment Systems
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President & CEO
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“Hypercom’s electronic payment product line is very complete in ad-
dition to being high quality products with low failure rates. Satisfied
with the alternatives Hypercom has provided to work within our eco-
nomic possibilities.”

“Hypercom NAC networking provides excellent solutions to provin-
cial branch concentration and EMV migration for the Chinese bank-
ing industry, and improves merchant risk management capabilities.
It is not only easier and more convenjent fo maintain with a robust
network managernent system, but reduces operational costs, that is
widely adopted by many banks in China including, but not limited to;
China Union Pay Merchant Services, Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China, Bank of China, China Construction Bank, Agricuftural Bank
of China, and Bank of Communications.”

"Although the business relationship is fairly recent, the resulfts have
been very satisfactory. On one hand the product and services portfo-
lio satisfies our need in particufar the networking equipment which
meets the requirements of our network in addition to complying with
afl of the requlatory entities that rule our operation. It is important to
mention that the technical product presentations have been excellent
and we have been able to make more informed decisions at the time
of choosing a product. It is because of this and for the existing plat-
forms that we have in our expansion plans we consider Hypercom as
a serious alternative for our technology profects.”

"Hypercom has been a very responsive partner in creating quality in-
novative solutions for our merchants. We have been quite pleased
with their legacy platforms and are excited about offering their new
32-bit Optimum products to our customers.”

“Hypercorn has been a great partner. Their highest security. state-of-art
products along with the great support team make our job much easier.
Hypercom’s new products will put them back in the leadership.”




“NPC is excited about the new Hypercom product line, T42xx serfes
for several reasons: we are pesitioning the T4210 as the lowest cost
IP solution to provide our sales groups and merchants a simple sales
solution to encourage merchants to utilize high speed transaction
processing at their location and with the standard memory offered- jt
makes adding several value added services completed with no wor-
ries; training is greatly reduced for our help desks as one application
works for all T42xx models as well as advanced IP diagnostics make
support for IP processing simplified. This combined with security fea-
tures found in HyperSafe make it a very cost effective, secure, high
speed transaction processing solution- HyperSafe is the first easy to
implement and support terminal security offering fo assist in mer-
chant attrition- we want our sales groups to get the last opportunity
to speak to the merchant if they are entertaining a change in process-
ing. It is more cost effective to retain most merchants than it is to
contract new customers.”

“Hypercom Is the consummate professional organization. Qur part-
nership with them has proven invaluable to Total Merchant Services’
safes success. The superior quality of their products and services give
us a great competitive edge. No matter what our requests may be,
their team always responds in a timely and efficient manner. We never
worry about large inventory shipments arriving late and their product
offerings—Iike the T4100—are the best in the business. If you give our
sales partners the choice between this outstanding terminal and any
other terminal in the marketplace, they choose the T4100 every time."”

“To us Hypercom is a solid company, competitive and global, that has
a wide variety of products to attend each necessity and this helps us
to be more competitive in the electronic payments business in 2008.
Confirming that our business relationship with Hypercom has been of
entire confidence and security.”

“Hypercom is a great partner with a sofid platform. Their products are
integral in the market and their new technology is timely and impres-
sive. We respect the relationship with Hypercom, their sales represen-
tatives, and the value they and their products continually deliver to the
market.”

CUSTOMER
TESTIMONIALS

Chris Lee
SVP Product Management
NPC

Matt Freedman
Chief Operating Officer
Total Merchant Services, Inc

Luis Jose Rodriguez
General Manager
COPRVNET {(Ecuador)

Scott Rutledge
President & CEQ
The Phoenix Group
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STOCK PERFORMANCE CHART

The following graph illustrates a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return (change in stock price plus reinvested dividends)
of {i} our common stock, (ii} the Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S. & Foreign), and (iii) a selected peer group index, from December 31, 2002
through December 31, 2007 (the last trading day of the end of our fiscal year). The peer group was selected on an industry basis and
indudes:

* CAM Commerce Solutions, Inc. * PAR Technology Corporation + Diebold, Incorporated
= Radiant Systems, Inc. ¢ Micros Systems, Inc. + Retalix Ltd.
* NCR Corporaticn * VeriFone Holdings, In¢.

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2002, in our common stock and in each of the comparison indices, and as-
sumes all dividends paid were reinvested. The comparisens in the graph are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be
indicative of possible future performance of our common stock. This stock performance graph does not constitute soliciting material, and
shall not be deemed to be filed or incorporated by reference into any other Hypercom filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that Hypercom specifically incorporates it by reference therein,

Comparison of Five—Year Cumulative Total Returns
Performance Graph for
HYPERCOM CORP

Produced on 04/04/2008 including data to 12/31/2007
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MICROS SYSTEMS INC N C R CORP NEW
PAR TECHNOLOGY CORP RADIANT SYSTEMS INC
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Notes:
A The lines represent manthly index levels derived from compounded dully returns that include all dividends.
B. The Indexes gre reweighted deily, using the markel copitalizalion on the previous trading day
C. If the monthly interval, based on the fiseal year—end, Is not & Lrading day, the preceding trading day i used
D, The index level for 8l setied was set to $1000 on 12312002,

Prepared by CRSP (wwwersp.uchicago.edu), Center for Research In Security Prices, Graduate Sehool of Business,
14100 The University of Chicago. Used with permission. All righta reserved. CCopyright 2008
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and certain information incorporated by reference herein contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In passing the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended
{the *Reforin Act”™), Congress encouraged public companies to make “forward-looking statements” by creating a
safe harbor to protect companies from securities law liability in connection with such forward-looking statements.
We intend to qualify both our written and oral forward-looking statements for protection under the Reform Act and
any other similar safe harbor provisions.

“Forward-looking statements” include expressed expectations of future events and the assumptions on which
the expressed expectations are based. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “forecast,” “estimate,”
“project,” “will” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements, Such statements may include, but are
not limited to, the state of the electronic payments industry and competition within the industry; projections
regarding specific demand for our products and services; the commercial feasibility and acceptance of new
products, services and market development initiatives; our ability to successfully penetrate the vertical and
geographic markets that we have targeted; our ability to improve our cost structure, including reducing our
preduct and operating costs; our abilily to develop more recurring revenue streams; our ability to successfully
manage our transition to a contract manufacturing model, including the impact on inventories; our ability to allocate
research and development resources to new product and service offerings; our ability to increase market share and
our competitive strength; our future financial performance and financial condition; the adequacy of our current
facilities and management systems infrastructure to meet our operational needs; the status of our relationship with
and condition of third parties upon whom we rely in the conduct of our business; the sufficiency of reserves for
assets and obligations exposed to revaluation; our ability to fund and close the pending acquisition of certain
subsidiaries of Thales SA; our ability to successfully expand our business and increase revenue; our ability to
integrate and obtain expected results and benefits from acquisitions (including pending and future acquisitions); our
ability to effectively hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctvations; our ability to sustain our
current income tax structure; the impact of current litigation matters on our business; our ability to fund our
projected liquidity needs from cash flow from operations and our current cash reserves; and future access to capital
on terms that are acceptable, as well as assumptions related to the foregoing. All forward-looking statements are
inherently unceriain as they are based on various expectations and assumptions concerning future events and are
subject to numerous unquantifiable risks and uncertainties, some of which are unknown, that could cause actual
events or results to differ materially from those projected. Due to such risks and uncertainties, you should not place
undue reliance on our written or oral forward-looking statements. We are under ro obligation, nor do we intend, to
update or revise such forward-looking statements to reflect future developments, changed assumptions, the
occurrence of unanticipated events, or changes 1o future operating resulis over time.

LIRTS

We provide the risk factor disclosure contained in “Item 1A — Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K in connection with our continuing effort to qualify our written and oral forward-looking statements
under the safe harbor protection of the Reform Act and any other similar safe harbor provisions. Many of the
important factors currently known to management that could cause actual results to differ materialty from those in
forward-looking statements include such risks contained in our “Risk Factors” section.
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Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Hypercom,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “our business" refer to

Hypercom Corporation and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Item 1. Business
General

Hypercom Corporation is-one of the largest global providers of complete electronic payment solutions and
value-added services at the point of transaction. Qur vision is to be the world’s most recognized and trusted brand
for electronic transaction solutions through a suite of secure and certified, end-to-end electronic payment products
and software, as wel} as through a wide range of support and maintenance services. Our customers include domestic
and international financial institutions, electronic payment processors, retailers. independent sales organizations
{*1S0s”) and distributors. We also sell our products to companies in the hospitality, transportation, healthcare,
prepaid card and restaurant industries. Customers around the globe select us because of our proven leadership and
expertise in the global electronic payments industry, commitment to our customers’ success, continued support of
past and future technologies and the quality and reliability of our products and services. We deliver convenience and
value to businesses that require reliable, secure, high-speed and high-volume information/data transfers.

We believe our strength lies in our people, technology and a commitment to delivering excellent value to our
customers. Our products enable our customers to provide a wide range of payment solutions including credit cards,
signature and personal identification number (“PIN") based debit cards, contactless identification and radio
frequency identification (“RFID"), stored-value cards, and signature capture and electronic benefits transfer. We
will continue 10 enhance our product and service portfolio, and make long-term investments in technology for the
evolving needs of our customers. We are positioned to meet the increased demands of the global marketplace and
capitalize on key geographic and vertical market opportunities in order to achieve our goal of increasing our market
share and profitability.

Recent Developments

Cn February 13, 2008, we entered into a definitive Share Purchase Agreement with Thales SA (“Thales™),
pursuant to a binding offer that was delivered by us to Thales on December 20, 2007, relating to the previously
announced acquisition of Thales’ e-Transactions business line (hereinafter referred to as “TeT"”). The transaction is
scheduled to close by March 31, 2008, although there can be no assurances that such closing will occur at that time
or at all.

TeT is a provider of secure card payment solutions in France, Germany, the United Kingdom (“U.K.”), Spain,
Belgium and Sweden, and currently is a profitable business line of Thales’ Security Solutions & Services Division.
We believe the business combination will increase our market share and competitive strength, solidifying our
position as the third largest global provider of electronic payment solutions and services. In addition, we expect this
acquisition will add to our existing product and services portfolio, significantly strengthen our footprint in Western
Europe, provide additional talented people to our global team, increase our economies of scale, deepen and
diversify our research and development efforts, and accelerate our ability to more quickly build market share.

On February 13, 2008, in connection with the TeT transaction, we entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) with Francisco Partners II, L.P. (“Francisco Partners”). The Credit Agreement provides for a loan of
up to $60 million to partially fund the TeT acquisition at the time the TeT acquisition closes. The loan under the
Credit Agreement will bear interest at 10% per annum, provided that, at our election, interest may be accrued and
added to the principal of the loan to be repaid at masurity, All amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement are
due four years from the funding date. Upon funding of the loan under the Credit Agreement and closing of the TeT
transaction, Francisco Partners will be granted a five-year warrant to purchase approximately 10.5 million shares of
our common stock at $5.00 per share.

On January 15, 2008, two of our operating subsidiaries entered into a loan agreement with Bank of America,
N.A. (“Bank™) that provides for a revolving credit facility of up to $25 million with a possibility to borrow up to
$40 million if certain conditions are met. Available borrowings under the revolving credit facility are subject to
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borrowing base calculations based on the value of eligible inventory and accounts receivable. The revolving credit
facility includes customary covenants and certain negative covenants prohibiting the occurrence of certain types of
debt, limiting capital expenditures or disposing of assets. Amounts borrowed under the revolving credit facility and
repaid during the term may be reborrowed. Outstanding amounts under the revolving credit facility will bear
interest, at our operating subsidiaries’ options, at either (i} LIBOR plus 175 basis points; or {ii) the Bank’s prime
rate. All amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility are due on January 15, 2011. Hypercom and certain
of our other subsidiaries are guarantors of the borrowers’ obligations under the revolving credit facility. The
obligations under the revolving credit facility are secured by the inventory and accounts receivable of certain of our
subsidiaries in the United States (“U.S.”) and the U.K. This revolving credit facility was put in place in anticipation
of the purchase of TeT as well as for operational purposes.

Business History Gl

We design, manufacture and sell a variety of electronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, transaction
networking devices, transaction management systems, application. software and information delivery services.
Additionally, we provide directly, or through qualified contractors, support and related services, which include
maintenance, 24/7 management and monitoring of custbm'ér networks, online reports, on-site technology assess-
ments, network training, and design and implementation.

Founded in 1978, in Australia, our operations were primarily focused on Asia-Pacific markets until 1987,
when we expanded our operations into the U.S., and later into South America, Europe, the Middle East and Central
America. We reincorporated in 1996 under the laws of Delaware and shortly thereafter, through a series of corporate
restructurings, became a U.S. holding company for the Australian corporation and its subsidiaries. In 1997, we
completed an initial public offenng of our common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol “HYC.”

Beginning with fiscal 2007, we now reportiour operaung mfmmanon in’ T.hrcc business segments as follows
(i) Americas; (ii) Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA?); and (iii) Asxa-?ac;ﬁc While we have historically
operated globally, in the past the reporting of our global operations did not meet all the criteria 2s set forth in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information (“SFAS 131”). See Note 20 1o our consohda(ed financial statements mcluded herein.

With worldwide headquarters in Phoenix, Anzona we market our products in more:than 100 counmes through
a global network of sales, service and development offices. Our main regional sales headquarters are located in:
Americas — Brazil and Mexico, EMEA — the U.K.; and Asia-Pacific — Australia, China and Singapore.

Electronic Payment Industry IR

Over the past several decades, consumers worldwnde have mcreasmgly unhzed card~based payment methods,
such as credit, debit, and gift cards, to replace checks and cash Card-based payments require the use of a point of
sale (“POS”) terminal capable of reading a cardholder 5 accoum information from the card’s magnetic stnpe or chip
and combining this information with the amount of ithe’ sale. 'I'he terrmna] electromcally capturés and securely
transmits this transaction information over a commumcatmns network to an authorized computer data center and
then displays the returned approval or denial response.

The structure of the electronic payments industry is best described by‘examining the entities involved and their
relationship to one another. Card associations, like Visa and MasterCard, license their “brand” to card issuers, such
as banks, and also define the standards that POS terminals must meet to be certified for use in their respective
networks. Transaction acquirers and their agents sign up merchants, install POS terminal equipment, capture the
transaction data, and route it through the credit or -debit card network to obtain transaction approval. Payment
processors charge an interchange fee to authorize the customers’ transactions, providing a tally of these transactions
to merchants, and transfer funds to merchants to cover card purchases. Card issuers provide consumers with the
payment card and settle their accounts. Equipment manufacturers make the terminal hardware and software and, in
our case, also network equipment upon which high-performance and secure payment processing networks rely.
Transaction services providers facilitate the delivery of the transaction data between merchants and payment
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processors. This structure may vary in each geographic region or country where multiple functions may be
performed by a single entity such as a bank.

Card associations, bank card issuers, transaction acquirers and payment processors are differentiating their
offerings, in part, by offering value-added applications and incorporating innovative acceptance technologies
including contactless, biometrics and flexible connectivity options like wired and wireless internet protocol
technologies. As a result, electronic payment systems that can run multiple value-added applications and incor-
porate emerging technologies are becoming increasingly important in today’s market.

Payment systems require an exceptionally high level of reliability and security, as even an apparently small
system failure or a security breach can have significant consequences. The electronic payment industry operates in a
secure environment of dedicated systems, applications, specialized hardware products and access networks. The
industry will continue to evolve as the demands of the market and the rules that govem its standards and security
change rapidly.

Market Size and Barriers to Entry

The POS terminal market is highly concentrated with the top three POS terminal manufacturers accounting for
the majority of terminals shipped. The remaining portion of the market is spread among approximately 25
manufacturers who compete on either a regional or local country basis, within specific markets or with a limited
range of products and services. We believe the following market constraints are barriers to entry and may inhibit the
ability of certain terminal manufacturers to take advantage of future market growth in our industry:

* Price. Pricing is a significant consideration in our customers’ purchase decisions. Consequently, terminal
manufacturers have been increasingly challenged to deliver products and services that target critical
specifications at competitive price points.

* Scale. The design, manufacture and distribution of POS termmals on a global basis requires a significant
investment in development, manufacturing and distribution resources. As a result, smaller or regional
manufacturers may have limited ability to compete with larger manufacturers who can spread costs on a
broader basis at higher volumes.

s Certification Standards and Costs.  All payment solutions must be certified with card associations,
financial institutions and payment processors. Certification standards are constantly changing and the
certification process can be a lengthy and expensive undertaking. Many terminal manufacturers in the
industry lack the relationships, knowledge and experience necessary to obtain these certifications quickly
and cost-effectively, thereby limiting or delaying their time to market and overall competitiveness.

s Commitmeni 1o Future Technologies. New standards, regulations and cerifications in the electronic
payment industry require terminal manufacturers to continually develop new technologies that enthance the
performance and profitability of both customers and end-users. Such requirements necessitate significant
annual investment in research and development. '

. * Global Presence. Large customers may prefer terminal manufacturers that have a worldwide presence
with the ability to provide services and supporf in many geographic-regions. Smaller or regional manu-
facturers may be competitive in their niche, but they may not be able to provide cost-effective equipment,
services and timely support on a global scale.

Market Growth Drivers

The following are a number of factors that have contributed to recent growth in our industry and we believe will
continue to do so in the near future:

* Security Standards. New industry security and interoperability standards are driving recertification and
replacement of electronic payment systems, particularly in Europe and the U.S. In order to offer electronic
payment systems that connect to payment networks, electronic payment system providers must certify their
products and services with card associations, financial institutions and payment processors as well as
comply with government and telecommunication company regulations. The major card associations have
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introduced new security standards to address the continually growing need for transaction security. The two
major security standards initiatives in the industry are EMV and PCI. The name EMV comes from the initial
letters of EuroPay International, MasterCard International and Visa International, the three companies that
originally cooperated to develop the standard. EMV is a set of global specifications for cards, terminals, and
applications designed to ensure interoperability between smart cards and electronic payment systems on a
global basis, increase functionality of electronic payment systems and reduce fraud. The move to comply
with EMV specifications should continue to significantly promote terminal replacement, particularly in
regions such as Europe, Asia-Pacific, and Central and South America, where EMV implementation
conversion dates have been established. Visa International and MasterCard International cooperated in
recent years to develop and release the Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) specification and test methods for the
certification of electronic payment systems for secure debit transactions. This new set of standards
supersedes previous security standards separately issued by Visa and MasterCard (not including EMV)
and has been a driver of additional terminal replacement.

Interoperability Standards. In the U.5., payment processors have two levels of certification, referred to as
Class A and Class B. Class B certification ensures that an electronic payment system adheres to the payment
processor’s basic functional and network requirements. Class A certification adds another stipulation that
the payment processor will support the electronic payment system on its internal hetp desk systems.
Obtaining these certifications can be costly and time intensive, and is required by U.S. payment processors,
Electronic payment systems must also comply with evolving country-specific security regulations. Coun-
tries such as Australia, Canada, Germany, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Singapore, Sweden and Swit-
zerland have particularly stringent and specific securily standards. Electronic payment systems also must
comply with recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities and standard-setting committees, which
address, among other things, fraud prevention, processing protocols and technotogies utilized. New
standards are continually being adopted as a result of worldwide fraud prevention initiatives, increasing
the need for system compatibility and new developments in technology. These complex and evolving
requirements will provide an opportunity for continuous replacement of outdated equipment with newly
certified electronic payment systems.

Broadband & Internet Protocol. Intemnet Protocol (“IP") connectivity provides faster transmission of
transaction data at a lower cost, enabling more advanced payment and other value-added applications at the
point of sale. Major telecommunications carriers have expanded their communications networks and
lowered fees to allow more merchants to utilize IP networks cost effectively, The faster processing and
lower costs associated with 1P connectivity have opened new markets for electronic payment systems, many
of which have previously been primarily cash-only industries such as quick service restaurants (“QSRs”).

Contacrless. Contactless technology creates a convenient way to pay for goods and services. It is an
emerging technology and rapidly gaining acceptance. It can deliver extremely fast transaction times, reduce
waiting times and eliminate the need for paper signatures and receipts. It is especially suitable for access
control and use in employee cafeterias, QSRs, gas stations and public transit systems.

Wireless. Wireless electronic payment solutions are being developed to increase transaction efficiency and
mobility. Wireless terminals can provide consumers with additional security by allowing them to maintain
control of their payment card at all times. Additionally, the cost per transaction using wireless terminals may
be lower than that of wired terminals in regions burdened with high telecommunications costs such as
Europe and Asia-Pacific. It also enables terminal deployment in those regions lacking an established
landline telecommunications infrastructure. We provide IP, Code-Division Multiple Access (*CDMA"),
General Packet Radio Service (“GPRS”), Bluetooth and Wi-Fi connectivity across our range of wircless
products.

Debit.  Debit is the dominant payment instrument in most international markets and is rapidly growing in
the U.S. Debit cards allow banks 1o reach a wider population of potential cardholders, thereby increasing the
number of transactions. The cost of a debit transaction is generally lower than that of a credit transaction and
combined with PIN-based security or biometric technology, provides a selution that helps reduce fraud. As a
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consequence, electronic payment is now an affordable and convenient option in markets lacking a significant
consumer credit base as well as for small ticket or lower margin merchants.

« Emerging Regions and Markets. In the U.S. and Europe, consumer markets such as QSRs and unattended/
self service have started using IP POS terminal devices. These lesser penetrated vertical markets represent a
significant opportunity for us, as do geographies in each of our Americas, EMEA and Asia-Pacific segments,
such as Brazil, China, Eastern Europe, India, Mexico and Russia, which are experiencing rapid growth in the
usage of card-based payments. The increasing adoption of electronic payments in these regions is driven
primarily by strong economic growth, improving telecommunications infrastructure development, strong
support from governments seeking to increase sales tax collection, and the dramatic increase of wireless
networks for voice and data communications.

« Multiple Applications. In addition to payment, terminals have the capability to perform concurrent
applications like loyalty, stored value, on-screen advertising, electronic signature capture, age identification,
and benefits authorization and transfer. The secure integration of these applications along with payment
processing provides a comprehensive solution that allows merchants a means of competitive differentiation,
revenue enhancement and cost reduction.

» Non-Traditional Applications. The government sector, particularly in the U.S., is a significant opportunity
for terminal manufacturers. Initiatives such as identity verification, check imaging/conversion, electronic
benefit transfer programs, and the U.S. military’s payment programs are all potential drivers of terminal
deployment. Additionally, electronic transaction terminals and transaction services technology can be
utilized in the healthcare sector to provide fast and secure transmission of health benefits eligibility,
authorization and payment.

Competition

The electronic payments industry is intensely competitive and subject to an increasing rate of technological
change, evolving customer requirements and changing business models. Despite the previously discussed barriers
to entry, the rapid pace of technological change creates new opportunities for existing competitors and start-ups and
may render existing technologies less valuable. Customer requirements and preferences continually change as new
technologies emerge or become less expensive, and as concerns such as securily and privacy rise to new levels.

We face competition from well-established companies and entities with differing approaches to the market.
Our main direct global competitors are Ingenico SA, a French company, and VeriFone Holdings, Inc., a
U.S. company, both of which are publicly-held companies that are substantially larger and historically more
profitable than us. In any particular market, we may also find ourselves in competition with local or regional
manufacturers.

In our multi-lane business line (department stores, grocery stores, QSR and discount merchants), in addition to
the aforementioned global competitors, there are other vendors with whom we compete such as Hand Held
Products, Inc.

Competitive Strategy

Our strategy is to distinguish ourselves by combining operational excellence, technology and customer
relationships into an end-to-end comprehensive portfolio of products and services that drives merchant revenues
and reduces their total cost of product ownership. Key elements of our competitive strategy include:

s Further Penetrate Existing Markets. 'We plan to continue promoting and marketing the functionality of our
product portfolio to address the specific needs of key vertical markets. We intend to continue to focus on
these attractive electronic transaction markets, as well as increase our penetration of markets such as
automatic teller machines (“ATMs"™), Electronic Benefit Transfer (“EBT), Medical EBT, and unattended
and integrated kiosks. In planning to maintain our leadership in the independent retail market, we have
further organized our products to target both the high-end and low-end markets, through acceptance of
magnetic and smart cards, support of credit, debit, check, EBT and a full range of prepaid products, including
gift cards and loyalty programs, among others. Our products are easily integrated with a full range of
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optional internal or external devices, including secure PIN pads, check imaging equipment, barcode readers,
contactless and RFID readers and biometric devices. Our secure PIN pads support credit and debit
transactions, as well as a wide range of applications that are either built into electronic payment systems
or connect to electronic cash registers (“ECRs”) and other electronic payment systems.

Capitalize on Demand for Wireless Transactions. We plan to accommodate the growing demand for
reliable, secure, convenient and cost-efficient wireless devices. Potential users of this technology include
mobile merchants such as taxi and delivery drivers, in-flight airline service providers, stadium event
operators, off-site services and pay-at-table restaurants. These merchants are looking for a POS terminal that
utilizes the convenience of wireless communication technologies and the security of being able to receive
real-time authorizations with the reliability of a wired terminal. Simultaneously, we are aggressively
transitioning into the consumer transaction market by providing processing alternatives like stored value and
prepaid replenishment services for the transportation sector and electronic wallet technology as an alter-
native to cash payments.

Capitalize on Terminalization Requifements of Emerging Geographic Regions. We plan to continue
seeking opportunities to expand global market share by leveraging our product portfolio and distribution
channels in emerging, high-growth regions in Europe, Asia-Pacific and South America. In addition to
expanding into new geographic markets, we will benefit from a replacement cycle that is ongoing in various
geographic regions for a variety of reasons, including valued-added technologies (signature capture,
contactless, multi-application); new security standards (EMV and PCI); and newer communications tech-
nologies (wireless, IP connectivity).

4

Focus on Market-Driven Product Development. We plan (o continue concentrating our research and
development resources on new products and services that address the current and near future requirements of
our customers and end-users. We plan to focus oul_"&évelopmem efforts in the following areas; enhanced
security at both the terminal and transaction level; ‘advanced communications technologies such as
IP-enabled and wireless terminals; multiple-application; contactiess technologies; and products for new
vertical markets such as unattendedfintegrated kiosks and ATMs. We will continue to work with our
customers to ensure our products meet their needs and technical reqmremenls and are brought to market in a
timely and cost-effective manner.

Improve Total Cosr Structure, 'We plan to continue reducing our cost of manufacturing, research and
development, selling, services delivery, general, and administrative functions to enhance our profitability
and competitiveness. We intend to further reduce our product costs through design and process improve-
ments, reductions in component costs, and more efficient inventory management and distribution, which we
intend to accomplish in part due to our previously announced shift to a contract manufacturing model. We
will continue to maintain a market-centric approach fo our research and product development activities, thus
ensuring that our efforts are directed at commercially feasible opportunities. As our current infrastructure is
suitable to our current and foreseeable business requirements, our incremental investment requirements
should be nominal and our existing cost structure is expected to be significantly leverageable at higher
volumes of revenue. We continue to evaluate our sales channel infrastructure and will pursue alternate
channels where it makes economic sense to do so. We also iitend to continue to refine our foreign exchange
hedging program and global tax strategy to minimize those costs and risks associated with international
operations.

Continue 10 Pursue Recurring Revenue Opportunities. We plan to further identify and pursue opportu-
nities that are complementary to our existing products to provide recurring revenue, including expanding our
services business, which provides deployment, help-desk, repair and other post-sale services, in Australia,
Brazil and Mexico. We will continue to pursue similar opportunities that will help us enhance our primary
business of terminal manufacturing to a more diversified business model that includes both one-time and
recurring revenue streams.

Consider Strategic Acquisitions.  Although our acquisition and subsequent integration of TeT will require
significant effort on our part and will be a major focus of ours throughout the remainder of 2008, we may
augment our growth by acquiring complementary businesses, new products to enhance our core
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compelencies, or new technologies to complement our research and development activities. Any acquisition
would be intended to broaden our suite of electronic payment solutions, expand our presence in selected
geographies, broaden our customer base, expand recurring revenue opportunities or increase our penetration
of selected channels and vertical markets.

Product Lines and Services

Our products and services include electronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, application software,
transaction networking devices, transaction management systems, asset management services, trusted transaction
services, and payment solutions. Unless otherwise noted below, we sell a full range of products and services in each
of our Americas, EMEA and Asia-Pacific segments.

Terminals and Peripherals
Our existing range of product offerings includes:

s Terminals — includes the Optimum L4150, 14200 and L4250 - compact, high-performance signature
capture and PIN entry card payment terminals specifically designed for multilane retailers (the L4150 is not
currently offered in our Asia-Pacific segment); the Optimum T4100 and T4200 family — powerful 32-bit
desktop terminals for true multi-application (currently offered only in our Americas segment); the Optimum
T2100 — a handover desktop terminal specifically designed to quickly perform EMV iransactions; the
T7Plus — a terminal that includes a combination of features and functions for merchants who need a
reliable, low-cost POS terminal; the Optimum M2100, M4100, M4230 and M4240 — mobile terminals that
leverage the latest in wireless communication technologies. The Optimum L4150, L4200, L4250, T4100
and T4200 family are RFID-ready terminals.

* Peripherals — includes printers, PIN pads, check readers, receipt capture devices, biometric, RFID
verification devices and external modems. Qur family of durable, high-security PIN pads and card
acceptance devices are designed for either indoor or outdoor use. The products include the Optimum
P2100 — an EMV-compliant PIN pad for integrated retail environments {(currently offered only in our
EMEA segment); the PV 130 and P1300 — PCl-approved PIN entry devices that meet the latest PCI security
standards; the §9, S95 and S9C — secure PIN pads built for indoor use; and the 51200 and S1300 — the
outdoor components to our QSR drive-thru solution.

Transaction Networking Devices, Transaction Management Systems and Application Software

Products that interface with our POS terminal technology include our industry exclusive, unparalleled network
access controllers and gateway devices specifically designed to support the unique requirements of high volume/
high value transaction-based networks. Products in this family include the MegaNAC® 180 and 8000, ATMCon-
nect™ and the IN-tact® family of Ethernet/Internet gateway devices. Every network application software program
we produce includes a management and control module that interacts with our HypercomView® management
system to monitor system operations. We also offer a complete portfolio of software applications for terminal
operations, network device operations, systems development and management, and retail POS systems designed for
use on a personal computer (“PC").

Services

We are committed to providing a high level of service and support to our customers either directly, or through
our distributars or other third-party providers. We offer a wide range of support services that contribute to the
increased profitability of our customers and meet their individual needs. Our service business is organized around
three important markets: asset management services; trusted transaction services; and payment solutions.

Asset Management Services — Qur services organizations are focused on protecting our customer’s invest-
ment in payment systems and principally provide deployment, help desk, repairs, on-site support, logistics and
inventory management services, as well as payment systems supplies provisioning. Additionally, these entities
manage special projects such as software uploads or terminal enhancement programs requested by our customers.
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Terms of our service arrangements are set forth in separale service contracts ranging from one to three years,
although termination is allowed with appropriate advance notification. In many cases we provide services not only
for our products, but also for other manufacturers’ terminals and other hardware. Revenues under these contracts are
recognized as we perform the service.

* NetSer Brazil, NetSet Chile and Hypercom de Mexico — NetSet Brazil, NetSet Chile and Hypercom de
Mexico are highly capable services organizations that provide services to major banks, card associations and
other customers in our industry. NetSet Brazil is our largest service organization, covering all of Brazil with
multiple service centers and service resources located throughout the country. We continually seek to expand
our service market share by increasing the deployed population of our terminals and product offerings in
Brazil, as well as servicing terminals manufactured by our competitors. Hypercom de Mexico and NetSet
Chile operate under a similar business model as NetSet Brazil and cover substantially all of their respective
countries.

* ACG Group — On February 8, 2007, we acquired the existing business and assets of ACG Group Pty
Limited and its associated entities in Australia (“ACG") to provide asset management services to merchant
locations throughout Australia. We expect to leverage this investment and apply this service capability to
opportunities throughout the Asia-Pacific region.

* Pan-region Repair Services — Through Ne1Set Americas Servicio Centro, our repair facility in Sonora,
Mexico, we provide quality repair services for in-warranty and out-of-warranty equipment repairs to North
American customers. During 2007, we transitioned our existing U.S.-based repair operations to this new
facility.

* Authorized Repair Facilities — In addition to our direct repair service offering, we selectively authorize
capable third-party repair facilities to service and repair Hypercom equipment through our Authorized
Repair Facility program. This program seeks to offer increased choices for repair service with our assurance
of repair service quality and cycle time for our customers.

* Enhanced Warranty Solutions — Our multi-year agreement with The Warranty Group allows customers to
purchase enhanced warranty plans for select Hypercom payment terminals and other devices. The plans will
extend the term protection of our standard industry-leading warranty for a total coverage of up to five years.

Trusted Transaction Services — Our Trusted Transaction Services provide value-added data communication
and other value added services for transaction-based applications. These capabilities include such functionality as
protocol conversion, intelligent transaction routing and web-based, transaction-level reporting. As technologies
such as [P and wireless take hold at the point of sale, this market will see a growing shift toward more sophisticated
applications. Trusted Transaction Services will provide a support infrastructure for our multi-application operating
systems to quickly and cost-effectively deliver transactions to diverse processing entities. Early adopters include
organizations involved in biometrics, health care, prepaid, micropayments, gift and loyalty. Market penetration of
these complex applications is expected to dramatically increase in coming years as the consurmer interaction can be
transacted in several seconds with broadband connectivity, as compared to several minutes over dial-up connection,
We believe Trusted Transaction Services will continue to support our growth beyond the payments industry into the
information delivery market.

Hypercom Payment Solutions — Traditionally, only large retail merchants have been able to implement POS
systems with interactive payment terminals. Through the acquisition in December 2006 of the existing technology
and assets of TPI Software, LLC (“TPI"”), a U.S.-based enterprise payment solutions business, we expanded our
transaction services portfolio with the introduction of PC-based payment solutions, including support for PC-based
retail POS systems, which has enabled us to broaden our customer base to include smatl- and medivm-sized
retailers. Hypercom Payment Solutions is also enabling the generation of new revenue streams by addressing the
technology requirements of, and rising market interest in, a converged payment infrastructure that places electronic
payment functionality on PC-based cash registers. Our strategy is to increase our stream of recurring revenue by
charging for enterprise payment services. Hypercom Payment Solutions is currently offered only in our Americas
segment.
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Product Marketing

Qur marketing organization has been significantly strengthened by the introduction of a global product
marketing group with product managers assigned to manage the life cycle of all new and legacy products. Our
marketing communications strategy, which coordinates key market messaging across regions, is directed from our
Phoenix, Arizona headquarters; however, each region develops programs to meet the requirements of local markets.
Components of our marketing program include product marketing, trade shows, news releases, editorial interviews,
industry analyst briefings, speaking platforms and engagements, training and technology seminars, sales collateral
and white papers, print advertising, articles and newsletters.

Sales and Distribution
Our major sales, marketing and distribution regions, broken down by segment, include:
» Americas — North America; Mexico, the Caribbean and Central America (“MCC”); and South America;
« EMEA; and

* Asia-Pacific.

In 2007, approximately 26.4% and 73.6% of our consolidated revenue came from U.S. and international
sources, respectively, with Brazil accounting for approximately 17.0% of 2007 consolidated revenue, Our global
customers include:

* Payment processors;

» Distributors/resellers;

+ Large retail chains and QSRs;
» Financial institutions;

+ 180s; and

* Government entities.

Sales to specific customers have historically accounted for a significant portion of our revenue. However, in
2007 we saw greater diversification of our customer base and less dependence on certain large customers for our
revenue streams. For example, First Data Corporation (which includes TASQ Technology) accounted for approx-
imately 5.3% of our 2007 revenue. This same customer accounted for approximately 10.8% of our revenue in 2006,
In 2007, our top five customers accounted for 21.3% our revenue compared to 25.9% in 2006.

We distribute and sell our products internationally primarily to financial institutions and distributors,
Domestically, we primarily distribute and sell our products to financial institutions, payment processors, retail
chains, ISOs, distributors and resellers.

Some of our key sales atiributes are:

* Global Presence. We are one of the largest worldwide providers of electronic payment system solutions
for use at the point of sale. We have developed a global network of sales, support and development centers.
We believe that our experience and global presence enable us to market, distribute and service our products
more effectively, and in more markets than most of our competitors.

= Comprehensive Product Portfolio. 'We offer a full range of products and services that address the spectrum
of market requirements. Qur product portfolio ranges from the low-cost, established and reliable T7 family
of terminals to the more recently released, high-performance 32-bit Optimum family. Our terminals are
further complemented by a wide variety of peripherals that enhance their capabilities. Our services include
deployment, help-desk, repair and maintenance. We have major service centers in each of our segments:
Ameticas — Brazil, Chile and Mexico; EMEA — the U.K.; and Asia-Pacific — Australia.

* Low Total Cost of Ownership. The total cost of ownership includes the following costs: deployment,
implementation, application certification, repair and maintenance and product obsolescence. We continue to
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support and focus on providing our customers with a clear migration strategy for new technologies, versus a
buy today, replace tomorrow strategy.

» Technology Adoption. Our technological advances have continued 1o support industry adoption of value-
added features, such as electronic receipt capture, smart cards, electronic signature capture, positive
identification and multi-application. We offer network products to host such multi-application offerings.
Other technology innovations include IP and wireless connectivity, as well as RFID and contactless
acceptance. Our engineering has consistently focused on quality and performance, including speed of
the transaction, number of and type of completed transactions, the speed of application download and the
user interface. Our modular design allows our customers to only select the features that meet their specific
needs, thereby minimizing their costs and increasing their flexibility. We have reorganized our development
team in recent years to more rapidly develop, prototype, and release new products to meet customer needs.

» Terminal Management and Networking Expertise. 'We are a leader in the fields of terminal management
and networking with a significant number of installations of our POS network controllers worldwide,
managing, not only our terminals, but those of our competitors as well.

* Security Expertise. We are the industry leader in secure, state-of-the-art, network payment transactions
providing full EMV and PCI certification, regulatory certifications, association certifications, contactless
authentication, signature capture, identity and biometric authentication and enterprise security management,
ensuring both physical and logical high performance interfaces are secure and certified for use globally, by
both public telephony and mission critical computing processors.

Research and Development

Our market-focused research and product development activities concentrate on developing new products,
technologies and applications for our products, as well as enhancements and aggressive cost reduction measures for
existing technologies and applications. We design and develop all of our own products and incorporate, where
appropriate, state of the art technologies from leading third party vendors. Development projects are evaluated and
coordinated by global product marketing and follow a management review process that includes input from our
sales, marketing, finance, manufacturing and engineering teams. Our product development process generally
involves the following:

* ldentification of the applicable market and development parameters;

* Rapid development of engineering specifications, including target costs;
» State of the art design and engineering;

* Accelerated testing;

* Quality assurance; and

+ Pilot production.

Through this process, we are able to assess the requirements of individual customers and markets, and develop
products and platforms that address those needs globally. Bringing quality products to market in a timely manner is
the primary objective of all our product development initiatives.

Our research and development activities are coordinated through our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters. To serve
the needs of customers around the world, we “localize” many of our products to reflect local languages and
conventions. Localizing a product may require medifying the user interface, altering dialog boxes and translating
text. Each of our regional geographic sales and marketing units has in-region development resources that can
provide customization and adapt products to meet the needs of customers in local markets. International devel-
opment groups are located in Australia, Brazil, China, Hong Kong, Hungary, Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico,
Singapore, Sweden and the U.K.

QOur research and development expenses were $28.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007,
$27.7 miillion for the year ended December 31, 2006, and $27.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Manufacturing and Resource Procurement

During 2007, we began to outsource our manufacturing requirements to a third-party contract manufacturer,
Venture Corporation (Singapore) LTD (“Venture™)," including supply chain, production, assembly, and testing
previously performed in our facilities in Shenzhen, China and in Atibaia, Brazil. The transition of our entire
manufacturing operations in Shenzhen, China to Venture’s locations is expected to conclude during the remainder
of 2008. See “ltemn 1A — Risk Factors” for certain risks related to operating and conducting business in China.

To control product costs, we centrally manage product documentation, procurement and material requirements
planning from our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters, utilizing an integrated enterprise system linking all of our
manufacturing and design centers. Centralized }na_nagemf:m of the planning processes, combined with regional
procurement, enables us to ensure the quality and availability of our components. We continue to look for
opportunities to reduce the cost of existing products by working with our suppliers to seek more favorable pricing,
purchasing components in volume to achieve lower unit costs, and seeking greater efficiencies in product design.

Under our original agreement entered into with Venture in the second quarter of 2007, Venture’s services to us
were limited to the manufacture and supply of printed circuit board assemblies for certain products and providing
on-site general management support at our facility in Shenzhen, China, for such manufacture and delivery.

In December 2007, we entered into a new contract manufacturing agreement with Venture, which expanded
upon our previous agreement, for the manufacture and assembly by Venture of both our existing products and
products that we may develop from time to time during the term of the agreement. The agreement has an initial term
of three years and is automatically renewable for additional consecutive one-year periods.

Under the agreement, Venture will procure components and test, package and prepare all covered products for
shipment. With limited exceptions, we are not required to purchase any minimum quantities or units of products.
Venture will also provide new product introduction and design services to us from time to time.

Industry Standards and Government Regulations

Electronic payment system providers must certify products and services with card associations, financial
institutions and payment processors, as well as comply with government and telecommunications company
regulations. We are also subject to other domestic and international legal and regulatory requirements.

We comply with the following standards and requirements:

* Security Standards. Security standards in our industry are promulgated largely by government, regional
bank associations and card associations. These standards ensure the integrity of the payment process and
protect the privacy of consumers using electronic transaction systems. New standards are continually being
adopted or proposed as a result of worldwide fraud prevention initiatives, increasing the need‘for new.
security solutions and technologies. We have developed a security architecture that incorporates physical,
electronic, operating system, encryption and application-level security measures in order to remain com-
pliant with the growing variety of international requirements. This archi:te'cture is particularly successful in
countries that have stringent and specific security requiremnents. .

* EMVand PCI Standards. EMY standards define a set of requirements to ensure interoperability between
chip cards and terminals on a global basis, regardless of the manufacturer, the financial institution, or where
the card is issued or used. Specific certifications are required for all electronic payment systems and their
application software. PCl is a set of specification and test methods for the certification of electronic payment
systems for secure debit transactions. We obtain EMV/PCI certifications where required.

* Payment Processor/Financial Institution Requirements. Inthe U.S., we are required to certify our products
with payment processors. We actively perform the essential Clags B and Class A product certifications with
all the major payment processors in the U.S. and iriternational markets. The Class B certification process
pertains to successful testing of the integrity of the host (interface) message formats with the payment
processor’s requirements and specifications. Once the .Class B certification process is completed. the
payment processor may elect to take the software application and the hardware for additional in-house
testing and support. Class A certification (which may take up to 12 months or more) includes more intensive
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functicnal and user-acceplance testing in order to establish their help-desk infrastructure. Class A Certi-
fication enables payment processors to provide direct support, deploy and promote the new products with
their merchant base and sales force. We have significant experience in attaining these critical payment
processor certifications and have a large portfolio of Class A certifications with major U.S. payment
processors. We also have obtained certifications from international financial institutions and payment
processors so that our products can be used on their specific networks.

¢« WEEE and RoHS Directives.  In the European Union, we are subject to the Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment {*“WEEE”) Directive and the Restriction on Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”) Directive. The
WEEE Directive requires producers of electrical and electronic equipment to label all covered products and
also establish collection, treatment, and recovery systems for their electric and electronic waste. The RoHS
Directive restricts the use of certain material in physical devices that include our solutions and/or require
active steps to promote the recycling of materials.

¢ Telecommunications Regulatory Authority and Carrier Reguirements. Our products must comply with
government regulations, including those imposed by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC™)
and similar telecommunications authorities worldwide regarding emissions, hazardous materials, radiation,
safety and connections with telephone lines and radio networks. Our products must also comply with
recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities and of standards-setting committees. Qur products have
been certified as compliant with a large number of national requirements, including those of the FCC and
Underwriters Laboratory in the U.S., and similar requirements in other countries. Wireless network carriers
also have standards with which systems connected to their networks must comply. In addition to national
requirements for telecommunications systems, many wireless network carriers have their own certification
process for devices to be used on their networks.

Proprietary Rights

We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secret taws to establish and maintain our proprietary
rights in our technology and products. We currently hold patents issued in the U.S. and several other countries
relating to POS terminal products. We also have a number of pending U.S. and foreign patent applications relating
to our POS terminal products and networking products.

We currently hold trademark registrations in the U.S. and numerous other countries for the *“Hypercom” mark
and logo. In addition, we have several other U.S. and foreign trademark registrations and pending U.5. and foreign
trademark applications relating to our products and services.

We embed copyright notices in our software products advising all users that we own the rights to the software.
We also place copyright notices on documentation related to these products. We routinely rely on contractual
arrangements to protect our proprietary software programs, including written contracts prior to product distribution
or through the use of shrink-wrap license agreements. We typically do not obtain federal copyright registrations for
our software,

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 1,295 people on a full-time basis, 280 of which are
located in the U.S., with the remaining 1,015 located internationally, as set forth in the following table:

U.S. Enternatiortal Total

Sales, Marketing and Operations . . . ... ... .. ... .. ... ...... 74 70 144
Development ... ..., .. .. . . . e 71 121 192
Service Operations . . ... ... . i e 39 5i4 553
Manufacturing . ... ... e e 33 256 289
Finance and Administration. . . . ... ... ... .. ... . ... ... _63 __ 54 _ 117
Total Emplayees . .. .. .. .. .. .. . . . e 280 1,015 1,295




Employees by segment, as of December 31, 2007, are as follows: Americas (535); EMEA (75}, Asia-Pacific
(200); and Shared Cost Centers (485).

We believe that we have an excellent relationship with our employees. Competition for employees is intense in
the electronic payments industry. We believe we have been successful in our efforts to recruit qualified employees,
but we cannot guarantee that we will continue to be as successful in the future. Certain of our employees at our
facilities in Brazil and Sweden are subject to collective bargaining agreements. Certain employees of the TeT
companies that will become our employees upon closing of the acquisition are members of unions or other
organized labor associations.

Available Information

Qur principal executive offices are tocated at 2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, Arizona, 85053, and our
telephone number is (602) 504-5000. Our website is located at www.hypercom.com. We make available free of
charge, through our website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports
on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable afier we electronically file or
furnish such materia! to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). The information found on our website
is not part of this or any other report we file or furnish to the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks set forth below may adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results and cause
actual results to differ materially from the results contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or elsewhere in our SEC filings. In addition to the risks set forth below, and the factors
affecting specific business operations identified elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, there may also be
risks of which we are currently unaware, or that we currently regard as immaterial based on the information
available to us, that later may prove to be material.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have in the past and may in the future make acquisitions and strategic investments, which involve
numerous risks. We may not be able to address these risks without substantial expense, delay or other
operational or financial problems.

In addition to our acquisition of TeT, which is expected to close by March 31, 2008, we may acquire or make
substantial investments in related businesses, technologies, products or services in the future. Acquisitions or
investments, including the acquisition of TeT, involve various risks, including:

* the loss of the $10 million we deposited with the TeT parent company, Thales, related to the TeT acquisition,
which Thales may be entitled to retain under certain circumstances.

+ the inability to assimilate the technologies, operations and personnel of the acquired business, technology or
product;

» the potential disruption of our existing business, including the diversion of management attention and the
redeployment of resources;

+ the loss of customers;

» the possibility of our entering markets in which we have limited prior experience;

« the loss of key employees of an acquired business; and

+ the inability to obtain the desired strategic and financial benefits from the acquisition or investment.

Future acquisitions and investments could also result in substantial cash expenditures, potentially dilutive
issuance of our equity securities, our incurring of additional debt and contingent liabilities, and amortization
expenses related 1o intangible assets that could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial
condition.
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A compeltitor is seeking to stop one of our lenders, Francisco Partners, from meeting its obligations to
lpan us $60 million to partially fund the TeT acquisition and, if this competitor is successful, we may be
Joreed to find alternative financing, which may be more expensive, if it is available at all.

On January 22, 2008, one of our competitors, Ingenico SA. filed a claim in the Commercial Court of the High
Court of Justice in England under Claim Number 2008/58 against Francisco Partners [l, L.P. and others seeking,
among other things, damages and declaratory relief with respect to an alleged breach by Francisco Partners of a
March 2006 non-disclosure agreement with Ingenico. Under a credit agreement entered into with us, Francisco
Partners has committed to foan us $60 million upon consummation of the TeT acquisition, which we will use to
partially fund the TeT acquisition.

If, as a result of this Ingenico claim (or any related action), we are forced to seek alternate funding for the TeT
acquisilion, any alternative financing may be more expensive than the current agreement with Francisco Partners
and there is no guarantee that any alternative financing will be available ai all on terms acceptable to us. Although
Francisco Partners has agreed 1o indemnify us for any losses relating to the Ingenico claims {and any refated claims),
including relating to seeking alternative financing, there is no guarantee that we will not be required to enter into
more expensive financing and/or incur increased fees and costs in connection with any alternative financing (if
available) prior to being able to collect, if at all, under such indemnification agreement,

International operations pose additional challenges and risks that if not properly managed could
adversely affect our financial results.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we derived approximately 73.6% of our total revenues outside of the
U.S., principally in Central and South America and Europe. We expect that international sales will continue to
account for a significant percentage of our net income in the foreseeable future. In addition, substantially all of our
manufacturing operations are located outside of the U.S. Accordingly, we face numerous risks associated with
conducting international operations, any of which could negatively affect our results of operations and financial
condition. These risks include the following:

= changes in foreign country regulatory requirements;

* various import/export restrictions and the availability of required import/export ficenses;

imposition of foreign tariffs and other trade barriers;

political and economic instability;

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

inability to secure commercial relationships to help establish our presence in international markets;

inability to hire and train personnel capable of marketing, installing and integrating our products and
services, supporting customers and managing operations in foreign countries;

¢ building our brand name and awareness of our products and services among foreign customers;

*« competition from existing market participants that may have a longer history in and greater familiarity with
the foreign markets we enter;

extended payment terms and the ability to collect accounts receivable;

the ability to repatriate funds;

complicated tax and regulatory schemes where failure to comply may result in fines, penalties or litigation;

* complications associated with enforcing legal agreements in certain foreign countries, including Brazil,
China and in developing countries; and

» availability of qualified and affordable staff with which (0 manage our foreign operations.
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disadvantage to foreign companies that are not subject to similar regulations.

Quarterly revenue and operating results can vary, depending on a number of factors.

Our consolidated results of operations and financial position can vary significantly from quarter to quarter,
which is not conducive to a predictable business or operating environment. Consequently, this can impact our
overall business. The following factors impact our quarterly business operations and results:

variations in product mix, timing and size of fulfilled orders as a result of customer deferral of purchases
and/for delays in the delivery of our products and services,

accomplishment of certain performance parameters embedded in our service level agreements;

Additionally, we are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which may place us at a competitive
|
|
|

market demand for new product offerings;

delays in the delivery of our products and services;
the type, timing and size of orders and shipments;
product returns and warranty claims;

variations in product mix and cost during any period;

development of new relationships and maintenance and enhancement of existing relationships with
customers and strategic partners;

deferral of customer contracts in anticipation of product or service enhancements;
deferral of certain revenue or gross margin in accordance with GAAP requirements;
incremental costs incurred as a result of product quality andfor performance issues;
inventory obsolescence and write-downs related to product life cycles;

write-off of doubtful accounts receivable;

variations in operating expenses, including research and development, selling, and general and adminis-
trative expenses;

lease portfolio risk adjustments and loss provisions;

restructuring activities;

employment and severance agreement charges;

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

availability and cost of financing;

variations in income tax as a function of income recognition by tax jurisdiction;
changing security standards or other technological changes; and

industry and economic conditions, including competition, industry standards, product certification require-
ments, trade restrictions and other regulations.

The loss of one or more of eur key customers could significantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe that we may continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues from a
limited number of large customers. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our largest customer accounted for
5.3% of our revenue, and our five largest customers accounted for 21.3% of our revenue. In addition, our largest
customer does substantial business with some of our most significant competitors. The TeT acquisition may
mitigate this risk somewhat by further diversifying our customer base. Nevertheless, our customers may buy less of
our products or services depending on their own technological developments, end-user demand for our products and
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internal budget cycles. A major customer in one year may not purchase any of our products or services in another
year, which may negatively affect our financial performance. If any of our large customers significantly reduces or
delays purchases from us or if we are required to sell products to them at reduced prices or unfavorable terms, our
revenue and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. See “ltem I, Business — Sales and
Distribution” for more information on our customer base,

Our products may contain defects that may be difficult or even ::mpassible to correct. Product defects
could result in lost sales, additional costs and customer erosion.

We offer technologically complex products that, when first introduced or released in new versions, may
contain software or hardware defects that are difficult to detect and correct. The existence of defects and delays in
correcting them could result in negative consequences, including the following:

* delays in shipping products;

cancellation of orders;

additional warranty expense;

delays in the collection of receivables;

+ product returns;

» the loss of market acceptance of our products;

= claims against us;

* diversion of research and development resources from new product development; and
* inventory write-downs.

Even though we test all of our products, defects may continue to be identified after products are shipped. In
past periods, we have experienced various issues in connection with product launches, including the need to rework
certain products and stabilize product designs. Correcting defects can be a time-consuming, difficult and expensive
task. Software errors may take several months to correct, and hardware errors may 1ake even longer.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory that could result in unanticipated price reductions and
write downs and adversely affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for components and finished products is challenging. In formulating our
product offerings, we have focused our efforts on providing to our customers products with greater capability and
functionality, which requires us to develop and incorporate the most current technologies in our products. This
approach tends to increase the risk of obsolescence for products and components we hold in inventory and may
compound the difficulties posed by other factors that affect our inventory levels, including the following:

* the need to maintain significant inventory of components that are in limited supply;
* buying components in bulk for the best pricing:

+ responding to the unpredictable demand for products;

* responding to customer requests for short lead-time delivery schedules;

» failure of customers to take delivery of ordered products; and

+ product returns.

In addition, we may in some cases have to reimburse, or incur other charges from, Venture and other third-party
contract manufacturing partners for excess inventory resulting from changes in product design or demand. If we
accumulate excess or obsolete inventory, price reductions and inventoery write-downs may result, which could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
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Security is vital to our customers and therefore breaches in the security of transactions involving our
products or services could adversely affect our reputation and results of operations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance to the purchasers and end-users of our solutions. We incorporate
security features, such as encryption software and secure hardware, into our solutions to protect against fraud in
electronic payment transactions and to ensure the privacy and integrity of consumer data. Our solutions may be
vulnerable to breaches in security due to defects in the security mechanisms, the operating system and applications
or the hardware platform. Security vulnerabilities could jeopardize the security of information transmitted or stored
using our solutions. In general, liability associated with security breaches of a certified electronic payment system
belongs to the institution that acquires the financial transaction. We have not experienced any material security
breaches affecting our business. However, if the security of our solutions is compromised. our reputation and
marketplace acceptance of our solutions will be adversely affected, which would adversely affect our results of
operations, and subject us to potential liability.

If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, our competitors may develop products
substantially similar to our products and use similar technologies, which may result in the loss of
customers.

We rely on patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality, licensing and other
contractual arrangements, (o establish and protect the proprietary aspects of our products. Our efforts may result in
only limited protection, and our competitors may develop. market and sell products substantially equivalent to our
products, or utilize technologies similar to thosc used by us. If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary
technology, these third parties may be able to compete more effectively against us, which could result in the loss of
customers and adversely affect our business.

In addition, the legal systems of many foreign countrics do not protect or honor intellectual property rights to
the same extent as the legal system of the U.S. For exampie, in China, the legal system in general, and the
intellectual property regime in particular, is still in the development stage. It may be very difficult, time-consuming
and costly for us to atempt to enforce our intellectual property rights in such jurisdictions.

Our products and other proprietary rights may infringe on the proprietary rights of third parties, which
may expose us to claims and litigation.

Although we believe that our products do not infringe on any third party’s patents, from time to time we have
become involved in claims and litigation involving patents or proprictary rights. Patent and proprietary rights
litigation entails substantial fegal and other costs. and diverts the attention of our management resources. There can
be no assurance that we will have the necessary financial and other resources required to appropriately defend or
prosecute our rights in connection with any such litigation.

In the past we have received third-party claims of infringement and may receive additional claims of
infringement in the future. To date, such activities have not had a material adverse effect on our business and we
have prevailed in litigation, obtained a license on commercially acceptable terms or otherwise been able to modify
any affected products or technology. However, there can be no assurance that we will continue to prevail in any such
actions, or that any license required under any such patent or other intellectual property would be made available on
commercially acceptable terms, if at all, or that we would be abte to successfully modify our products or technology
to negate claims of infringement.

A disruption in our manufacturing and assembly capabilities or those of our third-party manufacturers or
suppliers would negatively impact our ability to meel customer requirements.

in 2007, we commenced a shift of virtually atl of our manufacturing and assembly related activities to a single
third-party contract manufacturer. Ventre, which will continue throughout 2008. Iff we are unable to successfully
manage the transition to a contract manufacturing model or our relationship with Venture, or if Venture experiences
any significant disruption in its supply chain and manufacturing capability, we may be unable to fulfill customer
orders in a timely manner, which would have a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance,
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We have occasionally experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in delivery of products and
delivery of products of inferior quality from component suppliers and third-party manufacturers. Although alternate
manufacturers and suppliers are generally available to provide our products and product components, the number of
manufacturers or suppliers of some of our products and components is limited, and qualifying a replacement
manufacturer or supplier could take time. In addition, our use of one or more third-party manufacturers reduces our
direct control over product quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costs. Disruption of the manufacture or supply
of our products or components, or a third-party manufacturer’s or supplier’s failure to remain competitive in
functionality, quality or price, could delay or interrupt our ability to deliver our products to customers on a timely
basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance.

We are subject to a complex system of domestic and foreign taxation and unanticipated changes in our
tax rates or exposure to additional tax liabilities could affect our prafitability.

We are subject to income taxes in both the U.S. and various foreign jurisdictions, and our domestic and
international tax liabilities are subject to the altocation of expenses in different jurisdictions. Our effective tax rates
could be adversely affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, in the
valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities or in tax laws, or by material audit assessments, which could affect our
profitability. In addition, the amount of tax we pay is subject to ongoing audits in various jurisdictions, and a
material assessment by a governing tax authority could affect our profitability. Further tax law changes in
Jjurisdictions in which we conduct business could materially affect our profitability.

We are responsible for charging end customers certain taxes in numerous international jurisdictions. In the
ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain, In the future, we may come under audit, which could result in changes to the estimates. We believe that
we maintain adequate tax reserves to offset potential liabilities that may arise upon audit. Although we believe our
tax estimates and associated reserves are reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation
could be materially different than the amounts established for tax contingencies. To the extent that such estimates
ultimately prove 1o be inaccurate, the associated reserves would be adjusted resulting in our recording a benefit or
expense in the period a final determination was made.,

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may adversely affect our financial results.

A substantial part of our business consists of sales to international customers, A portion of revenues and
expenses related to our international operations are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Adverse
currency exchange rate fluctuations could have a material impact on our financial results in the future, and this risk
will be even more pronounced if we complete the TeT acquisition since a significant portion of TeT’s revenues and
expenses are denominated in euros or other non-1.S. dollar currencies. In addition, our balance sheet reflects
non-U.S. dollar deneminated assets and liabilities, which can be adversely affected by fluctuations in currency
exchange rates. We have entered into foreign currency forward contracts intended to hedge our exposure to adverse
fluctvations in exchange rates. Nevertheless, these hedging arrangements may not always be effective, particularty
in the event of imprecise forecasts of non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities, Further, we are not able to
hedge against our entire foreign currency risk. Accordingly, an adverse movement in exchange rates could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results. In the year ended December 31, 2007, we incurred foreign currency
expense of approximately $1.7 million, net of foreign currency transaction gains or losses.

Adverse resolution of litigation may adversely affect our business or financial results.

We are party to litigation in the normal course of our business. Litigation can be expensive, lengthy and
disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict.
An unfavorable resolution of a particular lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating
results, or financial condition. See “Item 3 — Legal Proceedings” below for more information on our litigation.
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Our future success is substantially dependent on the continued service of our senior management and
other key employees.

The loss of the services of our senior management or other key employees could make it more difficuit to
successfully operate our business and achieve our business goals. Certain members of our senior management team,
including our CFO, have recently left our company. The market for highly qualified and talented executives in our
industry is very competitive and we cannot provide assurance that we will be able to replace these senior
management members with equally-qualified executives in a timely and cost-effective manner, if at all.

We also may be unable 1o retain existing management, sales personnel and development and engineering
personnel that are critical Lo our success, which could result in harm to key customer relationships, loss of key
information, expertise or know-how and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.

Shipments of electronic payment systems may be delayed by factors outside of our control, which can
harm our relationships with our customers.

The shipment of payment systems requires us or our manufacturers, distributors or other agents to obtain
customs or other government certifications and approvals. and, on occasion, to submit to physical inspection of our
systems in transit. Failure to satisfy these requirements, and the process of trying to satisfy them, can lead to lengthy
delays in the delivery of our solutions to our customers, which may harm our relationships with our customers.

While we believe we comply with environmental laws and regulations, we are still exposed to potential
risks associated with them.

We are subject to other legal and regulatory requirements, including the WEEE Directive and the RoHS
Directive. The RoHS Directive sets a framework for producers’ obligations in relation to manufacturing (including
the amounts of named hazardous substances contained in products sold) and the WEEE Directive sets a framework
for treatment, labeling, recovery and recycling of electronic products in the European Union, which may require us
to alter the manuflacturing of the physical devices that include our solutions and/or require active steps to promote
recycling of materials and components. Although the WEEE Directive has been adopted by the European
Commission, national legislation to implement the directive is still pending in certain member states of the
European Union. In addition, similar legislation has been enacted in China and could be enacted in other
jurisdictions, including in the U.S. If we do not comply with the RoHS Directive and the WEEE Directive, we
may suffer a loss of revenue, be unable to sell in certain markets or countries, be subject to penalties and enforced
fees and/or suffer a competitive disadvantage. Furthermore, the costs to comply with the RoHS Directive and the
WEEE Directive, or with current and future environmental and worker health and safety laws, may have a material
adverse effect on our results of operation, expenses and financial condition.

Force majeure events, such as threats of terrorism, terrorist attacks, other acts of violence or war, and
health epidemics may adversely affect the markets in which our common stock trades, our ability to
operate our business and our financial results.

Domestic and international threats of terrcrism, terrorist attacks, wars and regional conflicts may cause
instability in the global financial markets, and contribute to downward pressure on securities prices of U.S. publicly
traded companies, such as us. Future terrorist activities or armed conflicts, and epidemics, such as influenza or bird
flu, could result in economic, political and other uncertainties that could adversely affect our revenues and operating
results, and depress securities prices, including the price of our common stock. Such events may disrupt the global
insurance and reinsurance industries, and adversely affect our ability to obtain or renew certain insurance policics,
and may result in significantly increased costs of maintaining insurance coverage. Further, we may not be able to
obtain insurance coverage at historical or acceptable levels for all of our facilities. Future terrorist activities, armed
conflicts and epidemics could affect our domestic and international sales. disrupt our supply chain and impair our
ability to produce and deliver our products. Such events could directly impact our physical facilities or those of our
suppliers or customers in the U.S. and elsewhere. Our primary facilities include administrative, sales and research
and development facilities in the U.S., and manufacturing facilities (or those of our manufacturing partner, Venture)
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in China and Malaysia. Acts of terrorism, wars and epidemics may make transportation of our supplies and products
more difficult or cost prohibitive.

China’s changing economic environment may impact our ability to do business in China.

In recent years, the Chinese government has been reforming the economic system in China to increase the
emphasis placed on decentralization and the utilization of market forces in the development of China’s economy,
These reforms have resulted in significant economic growth. However, any economic reform policies or measures
in China may from time to time be modified or revised by the Chinese government. While we may be able to benefit
from the effects of some of these policies, certain policies and other measures taken by the Chinese government to
regulate the economy could also have a significant negative impact on economic conditions in China, which would
result in an adverse impact on our business. China’s economic environment has been changing as a result of China’s
2001 entry into the World Trade Organization (the “WTO"). China’s entry into the WTO required that China reduce
tariffs and eliminate non-tariff barriers, including quotas, licenses and other restrictions, and we cannot predict the
future impact of such changes on China’s economy. Moreover, although China’s entry into the WTO and the related
relaxation of trade restrictions may lead to increased foreign investment, it may also lead to increased competition
in China’s markets from other foreign companies. If China’s entry into the WTO results in increased competition or
has a negative impact on China’s economy, our business could suffer. [n addition, although China is increasingly
affording foreign companies and foretgn investment enterprises established in China similar rights and privileges as
Chinese domestic companies, special laws, administrative rules and regulations governing foreign companies and
foreign investment enterprises in China may still place foreign companies at a disadvantage in relation to Chinese
domestic companies and may adversely affect our competitive position.

Uncertainties with respect to the Chinese legal system may adversely affect us.

We conduct our business in China primarily through direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated
in China and Hong Kong. Our subsidiaries are generally subject to laws and regulations applicable 1o foreign
investment in China. Accordingly, our business may be affected by changes in China’s developing legal system,
Many new laws and regulations covering general economic matters have been promulgated in China in recent years,
and government policies and internal rules promulgated by governmental agencies may not be published in time, or
at all. As a result, we may operate our business in violation of new rules and policies without having any knowledge
of their existence. In addition, there are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and enforcement of laws, rules and
policies in China, The Chinese legal system is based on written statutes, and prior court decisions have limited
precedential value. Because many laws and regulations are relatively new and the Chinese legal system is still
evolving, the interpretations of many laws, regulations and rules are not always uniform. Moreover, the relative
inexperience of China’s judiciary in many cases creates additional uncertainty as to the outcome of any litigation,
and the interpretation of statutes and regulations may be subject to government policies reflecting domestic political
concerns. Finally, enforcement of laws or contracts based on existing law may be uncertain and sporadic, and it may
be difficult to obtain swift and equitable enforcement, or to obtain enforcement of a judgment by a court of another
jurisdiction. Any litigation in China may be protracted, have unexpected outcomes and result in substantial costs
and diversion of resources and management’s attention.

If we are unable to maintain the quality of our internal control over financial reporting, any
unremediated material weaknesses could materially and adversely affect our ability to provide timely and
accurate financial information about our business, which could harm our business and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX 404”) requires that we establish and maintain effective
internal controls over financial reporting. SOX 404 also requires us to include 3 management report of internal
conirol over financial reporting in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on management’s evatuation of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, we are able to conclude that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective. However, we cannot be cenain that our internal control over financial reporting will
remain effective in the future. Any future failure to maintain adequate internal control over our financial accounting
and reporting could harm our operating results or could cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
results or condition, which could adversely affect our business and the trading price of our commeon stock.
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Risks Related To The Industry
The markets in which we compete are highly competitive, maturing, and subject to price erosion.

The markets in which we operate are maturing and highly competitive. Increased competition from man-
ufacturers or distributors of products similar to or competitive with ours, or from service providers that provide
services similar to ours, could result in price reductions, extended terms, free services, lower margins and loss of
market share. In some markets, we may sell products with negative margins to large customers who have existing
service contracts that generate contractual service revenue at positive margins over a multi-year period. Such
transactions may negatively affect our revenue, margins and net income.

We expect to continue to experience significant and increasing levels of competition in the future. With respect
to our POS payment system products, we compete primarily on the basis of ease-of-use, product performance, price,
features, quality, the availability of application software programs, the number of third-party network host and
telecommunication system certifications we have obtained for our products and application programs, rapid
development, release and delivery of software products and customer support and responsiveness. Software
products compete on the basis of functionality, scalability, price, quality and support.

We often face additional competitive factors in foreign countries, including but not limited to preferences for
national vendors, difficulties in obtaining required certifications, conformity with local government policies and
trade practices, and compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Some of our competitors and potential
competitors are more established, benefit from greater name recognition and have significantly greater resources
than we do. Moreover, there are limited barriers to entry that could keep our competitors from developing products
or services and technology similar to ours, or from selling competing products or services in our markets. Further,
there can be no assurance that we will be able to lower our product or operating costs to effectively compete in these
markets.

We are subject to industry and technology changes and are dependent on development and market
acceptance of new products. If we are unable to adequately respond to these changes and to market
demands in a timely manner, our business will not be successful.

The industry in which we operate is characterized by rapid changes in technology and numerous new product
introductions. Our success depends to a large degree upon our continued ability to offer new products and services,
and enhancements to our existing products and services, to meet changing market requirements, including
conformity with applicable standards. The introduction of new products, services and technologies by third parties
could have an adverse effect on the sales of our existing products, services and technologies. We cannot be certain of
our ability to successfully:

« identify, develop, or manufacture new products, services and technologies in a cost effective manner,
+ market or support these new products, services and technologies on a timely and effective basis;

» eliminate defects in new products and service offerings;

» gain market acceptance for new products, services and technologies; or

» respond to technological changes, new industry standards, and announcements of new products, services and
technologies by competitors.

Developing new products, services and technologies is a complex, uncertain process requiring innovation and
accurate anticipation of technological and market trends. When changes to our product line are announced, we will
be challenged to manage possible shortened life cycles for existing products, continue to sell existing products and
prevent customers from returning existing products. Qur inability to respond effectively 1o any of these challenges
may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.
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We are subject to extensive industry standards and government regulations. Our failure to properly
comply with these standards and regulations could adversely affect our production and sales.

Our product sales are subject to a substantial and complex array of industry driven standards and governmental
regulation, both domestic and foreign, including:

« industry standards imposed by EuroPay International, MasterCard International, VISA International, and
others,

+ certification standards required for connection to some public telecommunications networks;
* Federal Communications Commission regulations;

» Underwriters Laboratories’ regutations (or other similar regulations in countries in which we sell our
products);

the WEEE and RoHS Directives in the European Union; and
+ certification standards set by domestic processors.

Our failure to properly comply with these standards and regulations could result in lost product sales,
significant costs associated with required remedial measures or production stoppages, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Risks Related To Qur Common Stock

We have incurred significant losses in the past and our results of operations have and may continue to
vary from quarter to quarter, impacted in particular by business reviews performed by management. If
our financial performance is not in line with investor expectations, the price of our common stock will
suffer and our access to future capital may be impaired.

We had a net loss from continuing operations of $8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, net
income from continuing operations of $4.7 million for the vear ended December 31, 2006, and a net loss from
continuing operations of $30.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. [f the results of our continuing efforts
to improve profitability, increase our cash flow and strengthen our balance sheet do not meet or exceed the
expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock will suffer.

Further, given the variability in our revenues, our quarterly financial results have fluctuated significantly in the
past and are likely to do so in the future. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of
operations may be misleading and not indicative of future performance. If our quarterly financial resulis fali below
the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock may suffer.

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile.

The market price of our commoen stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile. When we or our
competitors announce new products, services, or customer orders, change pricing policies, experience quarterly
fluctuations in operating results, announce strategic relationships, acquisitions or dispositions, change eamings
estimates, fail to maintain effective internal controls, restate financial results, incur litigation, experience gov-
ernment regulatory actions or suffer from generally adverse economic conditions, our stock price is often affected.
Recently, companies similar to ours have experienced extreme price fluctuations, often for reasons unrelated to their
performance. The volatility of our stock price may be accentuated during periods of low volume trading.

Our publicly-filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from time to time and any significant changes
required as a result of such review may have a material adverse impact on the trading price of our
common stock.

The reports of publicly-traded companies are subject to review by the SEC from time to time for the purpose of
assisting companies in complying with applicable disclosure requirements and to enhance the overall effectiveness
of companies’ public filings, and comprehensive reviews of such reports are now required at least every three years
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under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, SEC reviews may be initiated at any time. While we believe that our
previously filed SEC reports comply, and we intend that all future reports will comply in all material respects with
the published SEC rules and regulations, we could be required to modify or reformulate information contained in
prior filings as a result of an SEC review. Any modification or reformulation of information contained in such
reports could be significant and result in a material adverse impact on the trading price of our common stock.

We are subject to anti-takeover effects of certain charter and bylaw provisions and Delaware law.
We have provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws that:

» make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, and discourage a third party from atiempting
to acquire control of us;

+ may limit the price some investors are willing to pay for our common stock;

« enable us to issue preferred stock without a vate of our stockholders or other stockholder action;
« provide for a classified Board of Directors (the “Board”) and regulate nominations for the Board,
« make it more difficult for stockholders to take certain corporate actions; and

* may delay or prevent a change of control.

These and other provisions of our charter documents, as well as certain provisions of Delaware law, could
delay or make more difficult certain types of transactions involving a change of control of Hypercom or our
management. As a result, the price of our common stock may be adversely affected.

Our stock price could be affected because a substantial number of shares of our common stock will be
available for sale in the future.

As of March 3, 2008, we had 53,355,702 shares of our common stock outstanding, all of which have been listed
for trading according to the rules of the New York Stock Exchange. We also had outstanding, as of March 3, 2008,
options to acquire an additional 3,682,702 shares of our common stock. All of the shares underlying the outstanding
options have been registered for resale. Future public sales of our common stock, or the availability of such shares
for sale, including the shares subject to outstanding options, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of
our common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities.

The issuance of warrants to purchase common stock as part of the TeT acquisition could result in a
lowering of our stock price.

In accordance with the terms of our credit agreement with Francisco Partners, upon funding of the loan and the
closing of the TeT acquisition, we will grant Francisco Partners a five-year warrant to purchase approximately
10.5 million shares of our common stock at $5.00 per share. The warrant contains a cashless exercise provision. We
have also agreed to file a registration statement covering the shares of common stock underlying the warrant. The
market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common stock
in the market (or the perception that these sales could occur) once the warrant is granted and our common stock is
trading above the warrant price of $5.00 per share. Any such sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also
might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem
appropriate, Any issuance of common stock 1o the warrant holder upon exercise of the warrant would dilute the
then-current common stockholders’ interests in our company.

We currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock.

We currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock. While we may declare dividends at
some point in the future, we cannot assure you that you will ever receive cash dividends as a result of ownership of
our common stock and any gains from investment in our common stock may only come from increases in our stock
prices, if any.

25




Risks Related To Our Indebtedness

Our credit agreements contain various covenants and restrictions that limit the discretion of management
in operating our business and could prevent us from engaging in some activities that may be beneficial to
us and our stockholders.

The agreements governing our financing, including our $60 million credit agreement to partially fund the TeT
acquisition and our $25 million revolving credit facility, contain various covenants and restrictions that, in certain
circumstances, limit our ability and the ability of certain subsidiaries to:

* grant liens on assets;

* make restricted payments (including paying dividends on capital stock or redeeming or repurchasing capital
stock),

+ make investments (including investments in joint ventures);

* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantially all of our assets;

incur additional debt; or
* engage in certain transactions with affiliates.

As a result of these covenants and restrictions, we may be limited in how we conduct our business and may be
unable to raise additional debt, compete effectively, make investments or pursue available business opportunities,
We cannot assure you that these covenants will not adversely affect our ability to finance cur future operations or
capital needs. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default in respect of the related indebtedness. If a
default occurs, the affected lenders could elect to declare the indebtedness, together with accrued interest and other
fees, to be immediately due and payable.

We may be required to incur additional debt to meet the future capital requirements of our business.
Should we be required to incur additional debt, the restrictions imposed by the terms of our debt
arrangements could adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to respond to changes in our
business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subject to the following risks:

* our vulnerability 1o adverse economic conditions and competitive pressures may be heightened;

our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry may be limited;

* we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates if any of our debt obligations are subject to variable
interest rates; and

* our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
general corporate purposes or other purposes may be impaired.

We cannot be assured that our leverage and such restrictions will not materially and adversely affect our ability
to finance our future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. Tn addition, we cannot be
assured that additional financing will be available when required or, if available, will be on terms satisfactory to us.

The current condition of the credit markets may not allow us to secure financing for potential future
activities on satisfactory terms, or at all.

Our existing cash and short-term investments are available for operating requirements, strategic investments,
acquisitions of companies or products complimentary to our business, the repayment of outstanding indebtedness,
repurchases of our outstanding securities and other potential large-scale needs. While we believe existing cash and
short-term investments, together with funds generated from operations, should be sufficient to meet operating
requirements for the foreseeable future, we may also consider incurring additional indebtedness and issuing
additional debt or equity securities in the future to fund potential acquisitions or investments, to refinance existing
debt or for general corporate purposes. As a result of recent subprime loan losses and write-downs, as wetl as other
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economic trends in the credit market industry, we may not be able to secure additional financing for future activities
on satisfactory terms, or at all, which may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties
Americas

We sald our corporate headquarters building and adjacent property, located in Phoenix, Arizona, in June 2007
and are currently leasing the facilities from the purchaser prior to moving into a new office space in Scottsdale,
Arizona. The new facility is approximately 45,000 square feet, and the term of the lease related to the new facility is
seven years and nine months. We anticipate the move to the new location to occur in the second quarter of 2008. Our
corporate headquarters serves as a shared cost center for all of our geographic segments,

In the U.S., we also lease offices in Atlanta and Savannah, Georgia and Redmond, Washington. Internationally,
we lease facilities in Brazil, Chile, Mexico and Puerto Rico for sales, support, representation, and research and
development activities.

We also own an approximately 102,000 square foot facility in Brazil that is utilized for administrative, final
assembly, warchouse, distribution, and sales and support services.

EMEA

We lease facilities in Hungary, Latvia, Russia, Spain, Sweden, the United Arab Emirates and the U.K. for sales,
support, representation, and research and development activities.

Asia-Pacific

We lease facilities in Australia, China, Hong Keng, Singapore and Thailand for sales, support, representation,
and research and development activities.

We lease a manufacturing facility in Shenzhen, China, that also includes living quarters for the manufacturing
staff at such facility, which is a common arrangement in China. The manufacturing portion of the facility is
approximately 73,200 square feet. The lease for this facility expires on September 30, 2010.

In September 2006, we completed the sale of our real property in Hong Kong. We lease two facilities in Hong
Kong; one for sales, support and representation, and the other for manufacturing and procurement support,
respectively. The separate facilitics make better use of lease space and geography (o better serve these separate
functions.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current operations and will be sufficient for the foreseeable
future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are currently a party to various legal proceedings, including those noted below. While we presently believe
that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse
affect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and
unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could include monetary damages or, in cases where
injunctive relief is sought, an injunction. Were an unfavorable ruling to occur, it is possible such a ruling couid have
a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the period in which the
ruling occurs or in future periods.
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SPA Syspatronic AG v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (United States District Court for the Eastern Dis-
trict of Texas, Civil Action No. 2:07-CV-416 (LED), filed on September 18, 2007)

SPA Syspatronic AG (“SPA”} commenced this action in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, Beaumont Division, against us and others, alleging that certain of our products infringe U.S. Patent
No. 5,093,862 (the *” 862 Patent”) allegedly owned by SPA. The plaintiff is seeking a judgment of infringement, an
injunction against further infringement, damages, interest and attorneys’ fees,

We have filed an answer denying liability on the basis of a lack of infringement, invalidity of the *862 Patent,
laches, waiver, equitable estoppel and unclean hands, lack of damages and failure to state a claim. We have also
counterclaimed, seeking a declaratory judgment of non-infringement and invalidity of the *862 Patent. One of the
other defendants has filed a request for re-examination of the "862 Patent by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
(the “Patent Office™) and has filed a motion with the Court to stay proceedings in this case until the Patent Qffice has
resolved the request for re-examination.

Wool v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (Superior Court of the State of Arizona, County of Maricopa,
Civil Action No. CV2008-050575, filed on February 13, 2008)

Mr. Wool filed this action, designated as a “class action complaint,” against us and the members of our Board
on February 13, 2008. The complaint alleges that we and our directors breached fiduciary duties by not entering into
negotiations with Ingenico SA, a competitor of ours, which had indicated an interest in acquiring our outstanding
common stock for $6.25 per share. We believe the lawsuit is without merit and intend to contest it vigorously.

CardSoft, Inc., et al. v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (United States District Court for the Eastern Dis-
trict of Texas, Civil Action No. 2:08-CV-00098, filed on March 6, 2008)

CardSoft, Inc. (“*CardSoft™) filed this action on March 6, 2008 in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division, against us and others, alleging that certain of our terminal products
infringe two patents allegedly owned by CardSoft: U.S. Patent No. 6,934,945, entitled “Method and Apparatus for
Controlling Communications,” issued on August 23, 2005, and U.S. Patent No. 7,302,683, also entitled “Method
and Apparatus for Controlling Communications,” issued on November 27, 2007, which is a continuation of the '945
patent. The plaintiff is seeking a judgment of infringement, an injunction against further infringement, damages,
interest and attorneys’ fees. This action has not been served on us, however we believe that the lawsuit is without
merit and intend to conteslt it vigorously.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders

No matters were submitied to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are our executive officers as of March 3, 2008:

Name Age Title Other Business Experience since 1/1/2003
Norman Stout 50 Chairman of the Company Director, Hypercom Corporation
(since December 2007) (since 2003); Chief Executive

Officer, Mitel US; Chief Executive
Officer, Inter-Tel, Inc.; Chief
Strategy Officer and Chief
Administrative Officer, Inter-Tel, Inc.

Philippe Tartavull 50 Chief Executive Officer and Director, Hypercom Corporation
President (since December 2007) (since December 2007 and April
2006 — January 2007); President
and Chief Operating Officer,
Hypercom Corporation; President,
Oberthur Card Systems, USA

Douglas J. Reich 64 Senior Vice President, General
Counsel, Chief Compliance
Officer and Secretary
(since November 2001)

Scott Tsujita 44  Senior Vice President, Finance, Senior Vice President, Finance and
Treasvry and Investor Relations  Treasurer, Hypercom Corporation;
{since October 2003) Senior Executive Officer, Golden

Eagle Leasing, Inc., Hypercom’s
former U.S. leasing subsidiary

PART I1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock (rades on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “HYC.” The
following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices for our commen stock as
reported on the NYSE.

RANGE OF SALES PRICES

High _Low
Year Ended 12/31/07
R0 £ 0 T2 =1 $ 643 3476
SecOnd QUATIET. . . . . e 6.38 5.58
Third QUarter . . . .. ... e s 6.19 4.33
FOrth QUaer . o o o ot ittt e e e e e 5.58 4.50
Year Ended 12/31/(6
First QUAITer. . . . .. .. ittt e e e $ 957 $6.32
Second QUaTEr. . .. .. e e 11,16 8.00
Third QUAMEr . . . o ottt e e e e e 9.70 6.77
Fourth CUirter .« . oot ettt e e e e 7.95 6.08

Since being publicly-traded, we have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to
retain our earnings for our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. See “ltem 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information on retained earnings.

As of March 3, 2008, we had approximately 48 stockhalders of record and approximately 6,300 beneficial
stockholders.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains selected consolidated financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2007,
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The selected financial data should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, related notes and the section of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
Historical consolidated financia! data may not be indicative of our future performance,

Years Ended December 31,

1007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Statements of Operations Data:
Nelrevenue . ... .vv ettt e it enans $293,802 $248,565 $245223  $241.285 3218816
Costsof revenue. . ........... ... .. ..., 218,354 159,540 172,091e 144,140 128,212
Provision for deferred contract costs .. ....... 11,305f —_
Grossprofit .......... ..., § 75448 % 89,025 8 73,132 §$ 85,840 § 90,604
Gross profit percentage . . .. ............... 25.7% 35.8% 29.8% 35.6% 41.4%
Research and development .. .............. $ 28753 $ 27,706 §$ 27555 $ 27,188 $ 24,163
Selling, general, and administrative . . . .. ... .. 60,710 60,105 72,649 65,242 57,662
In-process research and development. ........ — 1,000b — — —
Gain on sale of real property. .............. (3,796) (2,953)c

Total operating expenses. . .............. 85,667 85,858 100,204e 92,430 81,825

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . (10,219) 3,167 (27.072) {6.590) 8,779
Income (loss) before discontinued operations. . . (8,575)a 4,737 (30,243) (12,530) 851
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . . 1,098 2,233 {3,123)d 3,868 10,347dgh
Netincome (Jloss). ... ....... ..o, $ (7477) $§ 6970 $(33,366) % (8.662) $ 11,198
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) before discontinued

OPErALIONS . . v e v et ie v ie e e $ (016) § 009 $ (058 $ (024 § 0.02

Loss from discontinued operations. . ... .... 0.02 0.04 {0.06) 0.07 0.20
Diluted income (loss) per share. .. .......... $ (014 § 013 % (064 § (017 § 022
Weighted average basic shares ............. 52,927 53,248 52,395 51,252 49,146
Weighted average diluted shares . ... ........ 52,927 53,966 52,395 51,252 50,351
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and equivalents .................... 576925 $ 34,190 3 35940 § 23445 § 65413
Short-terms investments . .. ..., 4,988 47,228 57,951 69,962 17,400
Working capital . .................... ... 119,657 141,923 143,039 159,789 155,043
Total assets ..............cuuiureennnnn 250,244 236,716 238,914 277.260 264,568
Short and long-termdebt .. ............... —_ —_ 8,377 8,829 9,857
Total stockholders’ equity . .. .............. 174,499 178,931 170,774 205,372 204,297

a) InJune 2007, we completed the sale of our headquarters facilities, located in Phoenix, Arizona, for a sale price
of $16.3 million. We recorded a gain of $3.8 million on the sale in the second quarter of 2007. See Note 9 to our
consolidated financial statements included herein. During the second quarter of 2007, we initiated a
reconfiguration of our global sales and marketing organizations and incurred charges of $2.9 million during
the year. During the second quarter of 2007, we increased inventory reserves by $6.1 million primary related to
non-PCI compliant products and components.
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b) During December 2006, we acquired TPI and incurred a $1.0 million charge for the acquired in-process
research and development. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements included herein.

¢) During September 2006, we completed the sale of our real property in Hong Kong for $5.2 million. We recorded
a gain of approximately $3.0 million on the sale in the third quarter of 2006. See Note 9 to our consolidated
financial statements included herein.

d) During the fourth quarter of 2005, we made the decision to sell our UK. lease portfolio (the “U.K. Lease
Business”) as this leasing business did not align with our core business. As of December 31, 2005, the UK.
Lease Business’ operating results have been classified as discontinued operations in the statements of
operations for all periods presented. We recognized a $6.6 million loss on the write-down of the U.K. Lease
Business to its estimated fair value based on purchase offers received from potential buyers. See Note 5 to our
consolidated financial statements included herein,

e} During 2005, we performed a comprehensive review of our financial performance; market strategy; products;
product development and life cycle management; and employee, customer and vendor relationships. The
objective of the business review was Lo create a plan to improve profitability and customer relations, transition
more rapidly 1o 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize our corporate structure. As a
result of this business review, we recorded charges of $16.3 million to costs of revenue and $2.7 million to
operating expenses during 2005. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements included herein.

f} During the second quarter of 2004, we recorded an $11.3 million charge to cost of revenue to reserve all costs
previously deferred under a contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry. See Note 15 1o our consolidated
financiat statements included herein.

g) During 2003, we completed the disposition of all remaining operating units identified and initially held for sale
in September 2002. In connection with the disposition of these operating units, we recorded a loss on sale of the
units totaling $3.2 million during 2003 comprised of a $0.3 million cash infusion made by us in accordance with
the terms of the sale, non-cash inventory and fixed asset write-downs of $1.4 million, severance costs of
$0.5 million, the write-off of $0.8 mitlion in uncollectible accounts receivable, and facility lease and other exit
costs of $0.2 million.

hy Consistent with our strategy of disposing of operating units not aligned with our core business, we sold our
direct finance lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc. (“Golden Eagle™), effective October 1, 2003, for
$30.0 million gross cash proceeds, and recorded a $7.0 million gain net of severance and other exit costs. As a
result of the disposition, the net operating results of Golden Eagle have been classified as discontinued
operations in the statement of operations for all periods presented.

See Note 22 1o our consolidated financial statements included herein for a presentation of certain of the above
information on a quarterly basis for each of the four quarters in the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following sets forth a discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations for the
three years ended December 31, 2007. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Annuai Report on Form 10-K. The following
discussion contains forward-looking statements. Our actual results may differ significantly from the results
discussed in such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include,
but are not limited to, those discussed in “Item |A — Risk Factors™ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
censolidated financial statements, which have bheen prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluaie past judgments and our estimates, including those related 1o bad debts,
product returns, long-term contracts, inventories, goodwill and other intangible assets, income taxes, financing
operations, foreign currency, and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and
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on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions,

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue pursuant to applicable revenue recognition guidance and interpretations, including the
requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,
Statement of Position 97-2, Saftware Revenue Recognition, Statemeat of Position 81-1, Accounting for Perfor-
mance of Construction-Type and Certain Production Type Contracts, Staff Accounting Bulletins (“SAB”) No. 101
and No. 104, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, and other applicable revenue recognition guidance and
interpretations. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive
evidence that an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery of the products and/or services has occurred; (iii) the selling price
is both fixed and determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

We recognize product revenue, including sales to distributors, when the criteria of SAB 101 and SAB 104 have
been met. We recognize services revenue when services have been provided and collection of invoiced amounts is
reasonably assured. Routine recurring services include terminal repairs, help-desk, on-site technician visits,
deployment and the provision of supplies. Amounts received in advance of services being rendered are recorded
as deferred revenue. Revenues from long-term contracts that require substantial performance of customized
software and hardware over an extended pericd are recorded based upon the attainment of scheduled performance
milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. Operating lease revenue is recognized monthly over the
lease term. The cost of units, net of depreciation, leased under operating leases is included in the balance sheet under
“Property, plant and equipment.” We accrue for warranty costs, sales returns and other allowances at the time of
shipment.

Revenue arrangemenis with multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine it the deliverables (items) can be
divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if
all of the following criteria are met:

» The delivered item({s) has value to the customer on a standalone basis;
* There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s); and

+ Ifthe arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance
of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in our control,

Items that do not meet these criteria are combined into a single unit of accounting. If there is objective and
reliable evidence of fair value for all units of accounting, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate
units of accounting based on their relative fair values. In cases where there is objective and reliable evidence of the
fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s} in an arrangement but no such evidence for one or more of the delivered
item(s), the residual method is used to allocate the arrangement consideration. In cases in which there is not
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s), we defer all revenue for the
arrangement until the period in which the last item is delivered.

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 10 Employees.
Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 {Revised 2004), Share Based Payment
(“"SFAS 123R”) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) using the modified-prospective-
transition method. SFAS 123R requires companies to recognize the fair-value of stock-based compensation
transactions in the statement of income. The fair value of our stock-based awards is estimated at the date of grant
using the Biack-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes valuation calculation requires us to estimate key
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assumptions such as future stock price volatility, expected terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expected stock
price volatility is based on the historical volatility of our stock. We also use historical data to estimate option
exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is derived
from an analysis of historical exercises and remaining contractual life of stock options, and represents the period of
time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve
in effect at the time of grant. We have never paid cash dividends, and do not currently intend to pay cash dividends,
and thus have assumed a 0% dividend yield. If our actual experience differs significantly from the assumptions used
to compute our share-based compensation expense, or if different assumptions had been used, we may have
recorded too much or too little share-based compensation expense. In addition, we are required to estimate the
expected forfeiture rate of our stock grants and only recognize the expense for those shares expected to vest. If the
actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, our share-based compensation expense could be
materially different. For stock options with graded vesting terms, we recognize compensation expense over the
requisite service period on the accelerated method in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28, Accounting for
Stock Appreciation Righis and other Variable Stock Option Award Plans, rather than the straight-line method. We
had approximately $1.5 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options at Decem-
ber 3, 2007 that is expected lo be recognized over a weighted-average period of one year. See Note 13 to our
consolidated financial statements included herein for a further discussion on stock-based compensation.

The fair value of our restricted stock grants is based on the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Payment terms for product and service trade receivables generally range from 30 to 90 days depending on the
circumstances of each order or service contract. Payment on trade receivables from long-term contracts is generally
received within four months of the mitestone approval date. Any payments not received within the agreed upon due
date are considered past due.

An allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make
required payments is maintained, Such allowance is computed based upon a specific customer account review of
larger customers with balances past due, and a general reserve for other non-reserved balances. Our assessment of
our customers’ ability to pay generally includes direct contact with the customer, investigation into our customers’
financial status, as well as considetation of our customers’ payment history with us. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. If we determine, based on our assessment, that it is more likely than not that our customers will be
unable to pay, we will charge off the account receivables to selling, general and administrative expense.

Sales-Type Leases

Certain product sales are made under capital lease arrangements and are recorded as sales-type leases in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Lease contract receivables represent the total lease payments
to be received reduced by lease payments already collected. Sales-type lease revenues consists of the initial sale of
the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease payments as they are earned. An
allowance for estimated uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an amount sufficient to provide adequate
protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio is recorded. The allowance is determined principally on
the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of the credit quality of the sales-type lease
customer base. If loss rates increase or customer credit conditions deteriorate, the allowance for uncollectible sales-
type leases may need to be increased. Unearned income, including an interest and maintenance element, is the
amount by which the original sum of the lease contract receivable exceeds the fair value of the equipment sold. The
interest element is amortized to lease income over the lease in a manner that produces a constant rate of return. The
maintenance element is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Recognition of the interest and
maintenance income did not exceed 10% of our net revenues in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

During the fourth guarter of 2005, we made the decision to sell our U.K. Lease Business. See Note 5 to our
consolidated financial statements included herein.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. We record
reserves for estimated excess and/or obselete inventory on a product or part level basis based upon future demand
and historical usage and establish a new cost basis for the respective item.

Product Warranty

We accrue for estimated warranty obligations when revenue is recognized based on an estimate of future
warranty costs for delivered products. Such estimates are based on historical experience and expectations of future
costs. We pericdically evaluate and adjust the accrued warranty costs to the extent actual warranty costs vary from
the original estimates. Our warranty period typically extends from one to five years from the date of shipment
depending upon the product. Costs associated with maintenance contracts, including extended warranty contracts,
are expensed when they are incurred. Actual warranty costs may differ from our estimates.

Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in legal proceedings involving contractual and employment
relationships, product lability claims, intellectual property rights, and a variety of other matters. We record
contingent liabilities resulting from asserted and unasserted claims against us, when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. We disclose contingent liabilities when there is a
reasonable possibility that the ultimate loss will exceed the recorded liability. Estimating probable losses requires
analysis of multiple factors, in some cases including judgments about the potential actions of third-party claimants
and courts. Therefore, actual losses in any future period are inherently uncertain. Currently, we do not believe any of
our pending legal proceedings or claims will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows. However, if actual or estimated probable future losses exceed our recorded liability for such claims,
we would record additional charges as other expense during the period in which the actual loss or change in estimate
occurred.

Foreign Currency

All of our foreign subsidiaries and divisions use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. Accordingly, foreign
currency Iranslation gains and losses from re-measurement are included in current earnings. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in local currency are re-measured at period end exchange rates whereas non-monetary
assets, including inventories and property, plant and equipment, are reflected at historical rates. During the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 we recorded gains $1.9 million, zero and $0.7 million on re-
measurement, respectively. For the same pericds we recorded net losses on transactions denominated in foreign
currencies of approximately $3.6 million, $0.7 million, and $2.0 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required
in evaluating our uncertain tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes. Effective January 1, 2007,
we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 487). FIN 48 contains a two-step approach 1o recognizing and measuring uncertain tax
positions accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The first step is to evaluate
the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely
than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if
any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely of being
realized upon seitlement.

Although we belicve we have adequately reserved for our uncertain tax positions, no assurance can be given
that the final tax outcome of these matters will not be different. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts
and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit or the refinement of an estimate. To the extent that the final tax
outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the provision for
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income taxes in the period in which such determination is made, The provision for income taxes includes the impact
of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered appropriate, as well as the related net interest.

We do not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of our international subsidiaries
because eamnings are reinvested and, in our opinion, will continue to be reinvested indefinitely.

Overview of Financial Results

The following overview will highlight certain key events and factors impacting our financial performance over
the past three years.

Year 2007

For 2007, we recorded a net loss of $7.5 million ($0.14 per share) on revenues of $293.8 million. Revenues for
2007 increased by 18.2% over 2006 revenues of $248.6 million. Products revenue increased $15.1 million or 7.9%
over 2006 due to gains achieved principally in EMEA, as well as the Americas with an increase within this segment
in MCC, offset by declines in North America. The increases in product revenue resulted principally from gains in
mobile and multi-lane products. Services revenue increased $30.2 million or 52.7% over 2006 principally due to
two recent acquisitions of TPI in late December 2006 and of ACG in February 2007 (noted below), which
contributed an incremental $2.3 million and $16.5 million, respectively, and the billing and collection of past
service contract fees of $4.6 million, the costs of which were written off in 2004 when acceptance of the billing and
collection was deemed to be doubtful. In addition, we experienced growth in our two significant service operations
in the Americas segment due to higher volume type services in Brazil and an increased installed terminal base in
Mexico.

The net loss in 2007 was principally the result of $8.0 million increase in our inventory reserves primarily
related 10 non-PCl compliant products and components and restructuring activities to reconfigure our global sales
and marketing organizations, as well as the outsourcing of manufacturing and consolidation of software, repairs and
maintenance functions globally. These activities included the following:

» Quisourcing our manufacturing requirements o a third-party contract manufacturer, including supply chain,
production, assembly, and testing performed in Shenzhen, China and in Atibaia, Brazil. Transitioning of our
entire manufacturing operations in Shenzhen, China to third-party manufacturing partner locations, which
commenced in 2007 and is expected 1o be completed in 2008.

*» Shutdown of manufacturing operations in Atibaia, Brazil in accordance with our plans to cease negative
margin terminal sales. This activity was completed during the third quarter of 2007;

+ Consolidating global software development activities to Singapore, Latvia, and India, and reducing similar
activities now performed in the U.S. and Sweden. The consolidation of global development activities was
completed in 2007,

» Relocating U.S. service and repair operations from Phoenix, Arizona to Hermosillo, Mexico, which was
completed in 2007; and

» Reorganizing and reducing the manufacturing and operations management team in Phoenix, Anzona
consistent with the move to third-party contract manufacturing, which commenced in 2007 and is expected
to continue during 2008.

As a result of these actions, we incurred charges of $2.9 million during 2007 of which $0.6 million of cost is in
the Americas segment, $0.8 million in the Asia-Pacific segment, $0.4 miltion in the EMEA segment and
$1.1 million in shared cost centers. These costs are exclusive of any reversals of stock based compensation.
We expect additional costs associated with these and other related activities that will take place during the first and
second quarters of 2008 1o approximate $1.5 million. The estimated costs are based on planned activities and
circumstances known by us as of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. However, due to the inherent risk of
the activities being undertaken, we cannot provide assurance that these estimated additional costs will not exceed
$1.5 million.

35




]

In February 2007, we acquired the assets of ACG, a provider of installation, technical support and help desk
services for point of sale equipment in Australia. The acquisition builds on our existing card payment terminal
business in Australia and expands our service business footprint in the Asia-Pacific marketplace, providing
merchant support for all vendors’ point of sale terminals in Australia as well as a business platform for potential
expansion throughout the region.

The purchase price was $12.0 million in cash, plus the assumption of $0.5 million in liabilities. A portion of the
cash paid, in the amount of $0.9 million, is being held by a third-party escrow company for a period of 24 months to
satisfy any claims against the seller for breach of representations and warranties provided in the purchase
agreement, We paid for acquisition-related costs, which have been added to the purchase price allocation, including
professional fees and internal direct out-of-pocket expenses that amounted to $0.7 million.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination in accordance with SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations (“SFAS 1417), and accordingly, the results of ACG’s operations are included in our
consolidated results from the date of the acquisition within the Asia-Pacific geographic segment. Pro forma
financial information is not presented because the acquisition was not considered significant under the rules and
regulations of the SEC (Rule 3-05 of Regulation $-X).

The amount paid in excess of the fair value of the net tangible assets has been allocated to separately
identifiable intangible assets based upon an independent valuation analysis. An allocation of approximately
$6.8 million of the purchase price was made to goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, and is included in other long-term assets. Goodwill related to the acquisition will not be
amortized but will be subject to periodic impairment tests, including testing as of December 31, 2007, which did not
result in any impairment charge. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for Australian tax purposes. An
allocation of $6.1 million of the purchase price was made to customer relationships, trademarks, service know-how
and other identifiable intangible assets and will be amortized over their estimated useful lives of four to ten years
and also is subject to periodic impairment tests, including testing as of December 31, 2007, which did not result in
any impairment charge. We have other goodwiil and intangibles related to the acquisition of TPI noted below in
2006, which amounted to $3.4 million and $3.2 million respectively, that was also tested for impairment at
December 31, 2007 and such tests did not result in an impairment charge.

In June 2007, we completed the sale of our headquarters facilities located in Phoenix, Arizona, for a sale price
of $16.3 million. We recorded a gain of $3.8 million on the sale in the second quarter of 2007, We have entered into a
long-term operating lease for our new headquarters with annual net rentals approximating $1.1 million com-
mencing in March 2008 and concluding in approximately 7.75 1o 10 years, depending on whether we elect to
terminate the lease after the initial 7.75 years.

On February 13, 2008, we entered into a definitive Share Purchase Agreement to acquire all of the shares of
four Thales subsidiaries for $120 million, subject to certain adjustments, with a potential contingent payment of
$30 million based on the combined companies’ performance in 2008. The transaction is scheduled to close by
March 31, 2008, although there can be no assurances that such closing will occur at that time or at all. We deposited
$10 million with the parent company, Thales, as a deposit related to this transaction. If the transaction is not
completed, Thales may be entitled to retain the deposit. The deposit is recorded in other non-current assets.

Our cash and short-term investments amounted to $82.2 million as of December 31, 2007. This balance is
consistent with the $81.6 million on hand at December 31, 2006. The cash used to acquire ACG and to fund the
eamest money deposit were offset by proceeds from the sale of our corporate headquarters and positive cash flow
from operations,

Year 2006

For 2006, we recorded net income of $7.0 million ($0.13 per diluted share} on revenues of $248.6 million,
Revenues for 2006 increased by 1.4% over 2005 revenues of $245.2 million. Products revenue gains were achieved
in Central and Eastern Europe, Russia and the Commonwealth of Independent States, Middle East and Africa, as
well as Mexico and South America from increased sales of our Optimum T2100 product. We experienced declines
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in the multi-lane sector in North America due to the completion of a significant order in the first half of 2006 as well
as the effects of transitioning from a direct to indirect sales model for that product line; and we experienced declines
in our Pacific region due to reduction in product volume at a large customer in Australia and a slow down in the New
Zealand market and EMV migration. Our service revenues increased by 4.1% in 2006 to $57.3 mitlion principally
from gains in Brazil due to new service contract awards, including servicing competitor products, as well as
increased terminal sales, which were put under existing service contracts.

The return to profit in 2006 from losses in 2005 and 2004 resulted from favorable impacts of actions taken after
our comprehensive 2005 business review (see Note 4 1o our consolidated financial statements included herein) (the
“2005 Business Review”), which improved profitability. These actions resulted in a lower cost structure, a
streamlined product line, an increase in revenues from newer 32-bit products and the establishment of a global
product marketing group.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $1.4 million remaining in }abilities associated with the 2005 Business
Review compared to $5.3 million at December 31, 2005. During 2006, $1.6 million of the $5.3 million was reversed
out through earnings as a result of customers opting out of a particular warranty program and a change in severance
benefits paid out. The remaining liability balance at December 31, 2006 relates to a particular warranty matter in
Australia of $0.8 million where we expect to replace certain faulty units in 2007 and the balance of an idle facility
charge of $0.6 million expected to be paid out through 2011.

We also experienced a favorable impact of a gain on the sale of real property in Hong Kong and had a net
positive contribution from interest income less interest expense and foreign exchange losses.

In December 2006, we acquired the assets of TPL, which resulted in a charge of $1.0 million related to acquired
in-process research and development. While this acquisition is expected to contribute significantly toward both our
product and services offerings, the contribution in 2006 was not material.

Our cash and short-term investments amounted to $81.6 million as of December 31, 2006. This balance
decreased from December 31, 2005 due to the acquisition of TPI, use of cash in operations, and our purchase of
additional treasury shares.

Year 2005

For 2005, we recorded a net loss of $33.4 million ($0.64 loss per share) on revenues of $245.2 million.
Revenues for 2005 increased by 1.6% over 2004 revenues of $241.3 million due to gains in multi-lane and processor
sales markets in North America as well as in our service businesses, offset by declines associated with the
completion of EMV rollouts in Europe and Asia in 2004 and the completion of a significant portion of an outsource
manufacturing contract in late 2004 for one of our larger global customers.

The 2005 net loss was most notably impacted by charges resulting from a comprehensive business review and
the discontinuance of our UK, Lease Business. During the latter part of March 2005, a change in senior
management was made. An interim Chief Executive Officer and interim Chief Financial Officer (collectively
“Interim Management””) were appointed to replace the former Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
The interim Chief Executive Officer, William Keiper, was appointed as our Chief Executive Officer and President in
August 2005 and a new Chief Financial Officer, Tom Liguori, was appointed in November 2005. Interim
Management commenced the 2005 Business Review — a comprehensive review of our financial performance;
market strategy; products; product development and life cycle management; and employee, customer and vendor
relationships. The objective of the 2005 Business Review was to create a plan to improve profitability and customer
relations, transition more rapidly to 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize our corporate
structure. The 2005 Business Review included the following actions and amounts:

« Implementing an end-of-product-life cycle strategy. including identifying products and related inventory
with near term end-of-life requirements resulting in charges of $12.1 million;

« More aggressively addressing and correcting product performance issues, including negotiated warranty and
product trade-in/trade-out programs required for the end-of-product-life cycle strategies resulting in charges
of $7.4 million;
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» Implementing certain workforce reductions, including members of the senior management team, sales,
operations and manufacturing personnel, as well as moving certain research and development resources to
lower cost foreign geographies, and compensation plan changes resulting in charges of $5.4 million;

» Vacating a leased building in Phoenix, Arizona due to the reductions in force resulting in a charge of
$1.0 million in future rental expense, net of estimated sublet recoveries;

+ Evaluating other assets and liabilities and evaluating the past underlying operating decisions or strategies
supporting such assets and liabilities, resulting in charges of $1.8 million;

* Investing in the implementation of a comprehensive product marketing function; and
» Evaluating opportunities for short, medium and long-term improvements in manufacturing costs.

The following table sets forth the restructuring and other charges recorded during 2005 in conjunction with the
2005 Business Review (in thousands):

2005 2005 2005
First Second Fourth 2005
Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

Costs of revenue:

Warranty charges and product return accruals . .. ... .. .. $ 706 $607 § 667 § 7449
Inventory write-downs . . .. ... . ... . ... ... .. ..., 2,132 7.090 2,889 12,111

One-time termination benefits and related costs ... ... .. _ 177 292 469
Other, . . e 148 161 — 309

Total costs of TevenUE . . . ..ot v it i i 2,986 13,504 3,848 20,338
Operating expenses:

One-time termination benefits and related costs .. ... ... 1,543 2.02] 1,349 4913

Idle facility lease charge ... .......... ... ........ — — 1,013 1,013

Other. . . o e 525 463 632 1,620
Total operating expenses . .................c.c..... 2,068 2,484 2,994 7.546

Non-operating expenses and income laxes:

Other, including tax impact of above entries. . ... ... ... — 61 (203) (142)
Total non-operating expenses and income taxes ........ — 61 {203) (142)

$5,054  $16,049 $6.639 $27,742

There were no significant charges resulting from decisions and actions taken during the third quarter of 2005 as
part of the 2005 Business Review.

In addition to the 2005 Business Review, we also evaluated our U.K. Lease Business during the fourth quarter
of 2005 and decided to exit this business and sell the existing lease portfolio and related assets, resulting in its
classification as a discontinued operation for all periods being presented. We recognized a $6.6 million loss on the
write-down of the U.K. Lease Business to its estimated fair value based on purchase offers received from potential
buyers.

We continued to maintain our cash reserves, consisting of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments of $93.9 million at December 31, 2005, compared to $93.4 million at December 31, 2004, despite
funding the cash elements of the 2005 Business Review of $6.6 million, and purchasing $9.2 million of treasury
stock, and without incurring any indebtedness to fund continuing operations.
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Results of Continuing Operations

The following table sets forth the operating results expressed as a percentage of net revenue for the periods
indicated. Results for any one or more periods are not necessarily indicative of future results. The results of
continuing operations discussed below exclude the operations of the operating units being reported as discontinued

operations. See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements included herein.

L =302 = (1 P
Costs Of TBVEIMUE. . . .ttt it et e e et et et a e

Gross profit .. .. ... e
Research and development . . ....... ... ... ..o i i
Selling, general and administrative ... ....... ... ... i
Acquired in-process research and development ... .. ................
Gainonsaleof real property. ... ... ..ot i i e

Income (loss) from continuing Operations .. .....................
Interest and other income net of interest and other expense . ...........
Foreign currency loss . . ... ... . i i

Income (loss) before taxes and discontinued operations ... ..........
Provision for INCOME taXes . . . ..o et it i i ittt i ans

Income (loss) before discontinued operations. . ............ .. .......
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . .. ......... ... ... ...

Netincome (Joss) . .. .ot rr i e e e
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Dollars in thousands

% of % of Increase
2007 Rev 2006 Rev (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands}

Net revenue:

Product ... ... ... .. . ... .. $206,360 70.2% $191,286 77.0% $ 15,074

SEIVICES . .ttt 87,442 29.8% 57,279 23.0% 30,163

Total net revenue ., ...................ciunn. 293,802  100.0% 248,565 100.0% 45,237
Costs of revenue:

Product . ......... ... ... . ... . ... . ... . ... 149,787 51.0% 117,756 474% 32,031

Services. .. ... e 68,567 23.3% 41,784 16.8% 26,783

Total costs of revenue.. . .. ........... ... ..... 218,354 74.3% 159,540 642% 58,814
Grossprofit . .. ... .. .. . 75,448 25.7% 89,025 3158% (13,577
Operating expenses:

Research and development .. ........... ... .... 28,753 9.8% 27,706 11.1% 1,047

Selling, general and administrative . .. ........... 60,710 20.7% 60,105 24.2% 605

In-process research and development. . ... ........ — 0.0% 1,000 0.4%  (1,000)

Gain on sale of real property. . . ... ... ... ...... (3,796) (1.3)% (2,953) {1.2)% (843)
Total operating expenses ..............c.couunn.. 85,667 29.2% 85,858 34.5% (191)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . ... ...... (10,219) (3.5)% 3,167 1.3% (13,386)
Non-gperaling income . ..., ............ .., .... 2,122 0.8% 2,916 1.1% (794
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued

OPerations . .. ... .. ... ... e (8.097) 2.7)% 6,083 2.4% (14,180)
Provision for income taxes. .. .........iv e .. (478) 0.2)% (1,346) (0.5)% 868
Income {loss) before discontinued operations .. ...... (8,575 (2.9% 4737 1.9% (13,312)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 1,098 0.4% 2,233 0.9% (1,135)
Netincome (1088). . .. ... ive it 5 (747D (2.5)% % 6,970 2.8% $(14,447)
Diluted income (loss) per share . ................. $ (0.14) $ 013 $ 027

Net revenue — Net revenue increased approximately $45.2 million or 18.2% in 2007 compared to 2006, This
increase was comprised of an increase of $15.1 million or 7.9% in product revenue, and $30.2 million or 52.7% in
services revenue.

The increase in product revenue of $15.1 million was principally the result of gains achieved in EMEA, as well
as the Americas with an increase within this segment in MCC, offset by declines in North America. The increases in
product revenue resulted principally from gains in mobile and multi-lane products.

The increase in service revenues of $30.2 million was principally the result of two recent acquisitions, one in
North America in late December 2006 and one in Australia in February 2007, which contributed an incremental
$18.8 million and the billing and collection of past service contract fees of $4.6 million, the costs of which were
written off in 2004 when acceptance of the billing and collection was deemed to be doubtful. In addition we
experienced growth in our two significant service operations in the Americas segment due to higher volume type
services in Brazil and an increased installed terminal base in Mexico.

Cost of revenue and gross profit — Costs of revenue include the costs of raw materials, manufacturing and
service labor, overhead and subcontracted manufacturing costs, telecommunication cost, inventory valuation
provisions, as well as loan loss provisions with respect to sales-type leases included in continuing operations.
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Product gross profit was 27.4% in 2007 compared to 38.4% in 2006. Product gross profit was impacted by
$12.9 million in charges related to the restructuring activities and transition costs to contract manufacturing. The
remaining decline in the total gross profit percentage from 2006 to 2007 resulted principaily from changes in
product mix in countertop, mobile, and multi-lane products resulting in lower gross profit percentages partially
offset by increases in volume.

Services gross profit was 21.6% in 2007 compared to 27.1% in 2006, Services gross profit was impacted by the
collection of service contract fees in Brazil of $4.6 million that had no associated costs, as all costs had been written
off in 2004 due to uncertainties regarding realization. Excluding this collection at 100% margin, the services gross
profit was 17.2%. Gross margin related to services has declined principally due to competitive pressures and
changes in service mix in our key service market of Brazil. Although management has taken certain actions to
address improving gross margins, the impact of pricing and service mix in Brazil will likely continue to have a
negative impact in our service margins into the foreseeable future. The services gross margin was also impacted by
charges primarily related to a contract loss with a European customer and severances related to cost reductions in
Brazil. Partially offsetting these charges were the high margin sale of a software license as well as the effect of
performing additional services in Mexico without a corresponding increase in the cost base.

Research and development — Research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware
engineering costs and the cost of development personnel. Research and development expenses as a percent of
revenue was 9.8% in 2007 compared to 11.1% in 2006, while overall research and development expenditures have
increased $1.0 million. The research and development remained consistent from year to year with the primary focus
on new product development. Research and development expenses for 2007 include severance and other restruc-
turing related charges of $0.5 million, while 2006 includes severance and other termination costs of $1.5 million.

In December 2006, we acquired the assets of TPI and approximately $1.0 million related to acquired in-
process research and development, This amount was written off at the date of the acquisition in accordance with
FASB Interpretation No. 4, Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 Business Combinations Accounted for by the
Purchase Method (“FIN 4") as there were no alternative future uses. Management determined the value assigned to
this asset through various methods including assistance from a third party valuation firm in valuing the TPI business.
As of the valuation date, there were seven projects that were considered to be in process. The values of the projects
were determined based on analyses of estimated cash flows to be generated by the products that are expected 10
result from the in-process projects. These cash flows were estimated by forecasting total revenues expected from
these products then deducting appropriate operating expenses, cash flow adjustments and contributory asset returns
to establish a forecast of the net return on the in-process technology. These net returns were substantially reduced to
take into account the time value of money and the risks associated with the inherent difficulties and uncertainties in
achieving commercial readiness. We believe the assumptions used in valuing in-process research and development
are reasonable, but are inherenly uncertain. As of December 31, 2007 all of the in-process research and
development projects associated with the purchase of TPI had been completed.

Selling, general and administrative — Sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and
facilities operations make up the selling, general and administrative expenses. As a percent of revenue, selling,
general and administrative expense was 20.7% for 2007 and 24.2% for 2006. Selling, general and administrative
expenses of $60.7 million for 2007 include $1.7 million of merger and acquisition costs, executive severance and
collection costs related 1o the Brazil service contract fees, offset by reductions in performance based stock
compensation and favorable litigation settlements. Selling, general and administrative expenses of $60.1 million for
2006, include $0.5 million in payroll 1ax charges associated primarily with former employees in China, offset by
$1.2 million in net favorable tax settlements in Brazil, reductions in severance related liabilities and accounts
receivable allowance recoveries. Selling expenses have decreased principally due to the recognition of the effects of
the cost reductions put in place as part of the 2005 Business Review, as well as the 2007 restructuring.

During the second quarter of 2007, we completed the sale of our headquarters facilities located in Phoenix,
Arizona, for a sale price of $16.3 million. We recorded a gain of $3.8 million on the sale in the second quarter of
2007. We are moving our headquarters to Scottsdale, Arizona, and have entered into a long-term operating lease for
our new headquarters facility that will commence in the first half of 2008.
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During the third quarter of 2006, we sold our portion of an office building in Hong Kong and we recorded a
$3.0 million gain on the sale. The building was sold as management determined that the cost, size and layout of the
facility were not appropriate for the functions performed in that facility. We have relocated the Hong Kong
operations to other leased space.

Interest income, interest expense, and foreign currency — We recognized $4.0 million in interest income in
2007 compared to $4.8 million in 2006. This decrease is principally attributable to lower average cash, cash
equivalent, and short-term investments balances maintained throughout 2007 compared to 2006 offset partially by
increasing yields on our cash investments. We incurred interest expense of $0.1 million in 2007 compared to
$1.1 million in 2006. The decrease in interest expense is primarily due to the pay-off of mortgage debt in April 2006
as well as the non-recurrence of interest penalties incurred in 2006 on China payroll tax charges. Foreign currency
losses totaled $1.7 million in 2007 compared with $0.7 million in 2006. The increase in foreign currency expense is
principally attributable to net unfavorable movements of currencies not hedged and a general increase in hedged
exposure increasing the direct cost of hedging.

Income tax expense — Income tax expense for federal, state and foreign taxes was $0.5 million and
$1.3 million for the years ended 2007 and 2006, respectively. Income tax expense is principally comprised of
income taxes associated with our profitable foreign locations.

During 2007, we continued to provide a valuation allowance on substantially all of our deferred tax assets. That
valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or the
operating profits in the ULS. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). Due to our net operating loss position and our valuation allowance
againsi our deferred tax assets, the consolidated effective tax rates for 2007 and 2006 are not meaningful.
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Comparisen of Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Doltars in thousands

% of % of Increase
2006 Rev 2005 Rev {Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)

Net revenue:

Product ... ... $191,286 77.0% $190,214 77.6% $§ 1,072

SEeIVICES . . vt e 57,279 23.0% 55,009 22.4% 2,270

Total NEt FEVENUE . . o v v v v e oo e et s e enns 248,565  100.0% 245223 100.0% 3,342
Costs of revenue:

Product . ... . e 117,756 47.4% 131,326 53.6% (13,570)

EIVICES . v r e e e e e 41,784 16.8% 40,765 16.6% 1.019

Total costs of revenue. . .. ... ..o et ii e ennnn 159,540 64.2% 172,001 70.2% {(12.551)
Grossprofit .. ... ... ... 89,025 35.8% 73,132 29.8% 15,893
Operating expenses:

Research and development . . .................. 27,706 11.1% 27,555 11.2% 151

Selling, general and administrative . . ............ 60,105 24.2% 72,649 20.6% (12,544)

In-process research and development. .. .......... 1,000 0.4% — — 1,000

Gain on sale of real property. . .. ............... (2,953) (1.2)% — — (2,953)
Total operating eXpenses . .. ......c..cuerevenasan 85,858 34.5% 100,204 40.9% (14,346)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .. ........ 3,167 1.3% (27,072) (11.0)% 30,239
Non-operating income . . ..........c..o .. 2916 1.1% 355 0.1% 2,561
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued

OPETALONS + ot v vttt a e in ey 6,083 24% (26,717  (10.9%% 32,800
Provision forincome taxes . .. ... ..o v v eenneonnn {1,346) {0.5)% (3,526) (1.4)% 2,180
Income (loss) before discontinued operations ........ 4,737 1.9% (30,243) (12.3)% 34,980
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 2,233 0.9% (3,123) (1.3)% 5,356
Net income (10SS). . . v v\ v i it $ 6970 2.8% $(33,366) (13.6)% $ 40,336
Diluted income (loss) pershare .. ................ $ 013 $ (064 $§ 077

Net revenue — Net revenue increased approximately $3.3 million or 1.4% in 2006 compared to 2005. This
increase was comprised of an increase of $1.1 million or 1.0% in product revenue, and $2.3 million or 4.1% in
services revenue.

The increase in product revenue of $1.1 million was principally the result of increases in South America,
principally Brazil, of $8.9 million, Europe and the Middle East of $9.0 million, MCC of $2.7 million and Asian
markets of $1.3 million. The gains were primarily related to the re-entry into markets with our new Optimum
product line in Brazil and Mexico as well as the expansion of geographic markets in Europe and the Middle East.
Offsetting most of the increases were declines in multi-lane product of $14.3 million due partially to the completion
of large orders in the first half of 2006 and also general market conditions, a decline in Australia/New Zealand of
$5.8 million due to a reduction in volume to a significant customer in Australia and general softness in the New
Zealand market.

The increase in service revenues of $2.3 million was principally the result of increases in our service operations
in Brazil and Mexico, as well as continued growth in our transaction services offering. Service revenues in Brazil
increased $2.5 million from 2005 to 2006 due to additional service contracts added in 2006 and an increase in the
installed base of terminals resulting from increased sales of terminals. Mexico services increased approximately
$1.3 million from 2003 to 2006 due to general growth in terminals under service contract and a new service contract
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entered into with a major customer. We also experienced an increase in our transaction services revenues of
approximately $0.6 million due to adding new customers to the service as well as a general increase in volumes year
over year. Offsetting these increases were declines in Chile of $0.5 million due to a general downsizing of
operations in that country, multi-lane of $0.4 million due to less repairs required for the Optimum product line, and
the U.S. repair laboratory of $0.7 million,

Cost of revenue and gross profit — Costs of revenue include the costs of raw materials, manufacturing and
service labor, overhead and subcontracted manufacturing costs, telecommunication cost, inventory valuation
provisions as well as loan loss provisions with respect to sales-type leases included in continuing operations, Total
gross profit as a percent of revenue increased to 35.8% in 2006 from 29.8% in 2005. Total gross profit in 2005 was
impacted by $20.3 millian in charges related to the 2005 Business Review. In addition there were approximately
$4.9 million in incremental inventory valuation provisions included in 2005 versus 2006. Excluding these
incremental charges, total gross profit as a percent of revenue was 40.1% for 2005.

Product gross profit was 38.4% in 2006 compared to 43.0% in 2005, excluding $18.8 million of charges
associated with the 2005 Business Review and $4.1 million in incremental inventory valuation provisions. This year
over year decrease in product gross margin was principally attributable to a change in the mix of product sales with
increases in lower margin geographies such as Brazil, as well as higher volumes of Optimum terminals that do not
have as high a margin as the legacy terminals that have been fully cost reduced and certain declines in selling prices
to address strategic market conditions. Additionally, during the second quarter of 2006, product liabilities were
reduced by a net $1.6 million primarily as a result of two customers opting out of the warranty program offered as
part of the 2005 Business Review. However, in the third and fourth quarter of 2006, we recorded charges in the
amount of $0.7 and $0.5 million, respectively. These charges related to a payroll tax charge associated with former
employees in China and a settlement of a royalty claim associated with patented technologies used in our terminals
with signature capture functionality. There will be a royalty fee charged on our signature capture terminals going
forward as well, but it is not expected to significantly impact our gross profit on such terminals.

Services gross profit percentage was 27.1% in 2006 and 30.1% in 2005, excluding $1.5 million of charges
associated with the 2005 Business Review and $0.8 million in incremental inventory valuation provisions. This year
over year decrease is principally due to additional overhead absorption related to the sale of our U.K. Lease
Business and changes in the mix of service offerings due to more special service orders at higher margins occurring
in 2005 versus 2006.

Research and development — Research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware
engineering costs and the cost of development personnel. Research and development expenses as a percent of
revenue was | 1.1% in 2006 compared to 11.2% in 2005. Research and development expenses for 2006 include
severance and other termination costs of $1.5 million and $0.9 million in share-based compensation, while 20035
includes $1.3 million in incremental charges associated with the 2005 Business Review. Excluding these charges,
research and development expenses decreased $0.2 million from $26.3 million (10.7% of revenue) in 2005 to $26,1
(10.5% of revenue) million in 2006 primarily due to the move of certain U.S.-based research and development
operations to lower cost off-shore locations.

In December 2006, we acquired the assets of TPI. The acquisition included approximately $1.0 million related
to acquired in-process research and development. This amount was written off at the date of the acquisition, in
accordance with FIN 4, as there was no alternative future use. Management determined the value assigned to this
asset through various methods including assistance from a third party valuation firm in valuing the TPI business. As
of the valuation date, seven projects were considered to be in process. The values of the projects were determined
based on analyses of estimated cash flows 1o be generated by the products that are expected to result from the in-
process projects. These cash flows were estimated by forecasting total revenues expected from these products then
deducting appropriate operating expenses, cash flow adjustments and contributory asset returns to establish a
forecast of the net return on the in-process technology. These net returns were substantially reduced to take into
account the time value of money and the risks associated with the inherent difficulties and uncertainties in achieving
commercial readiness. We believe the assumptions used in valuing in-process research and development are
reasonable, but are inherently uncertain. Since the date of the purchase, we incurred development costs of
$0.1 million related to the acquired in-process research and development, and should the projects continue to move
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toward commercialization, we estimate that future expenditures could approximate $0.1 million over the next fiscal
year. As of December 31, 2007, all of the in-process research and development projects had been completed.

Selling, general and administrative — Sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and
facilities operations make up the selling, general and administrative expenses. As a percent of revenue, selling,
general and administrative expense was 24.2% for 2006 and 29.6% for 2005. Selling, general and administrative
expenses of $60.1 million for 2006 include $0.5 million in payroll tax charges associated primarily with former
employees in China, an incremental amount of share-based compensation of $4.4 million, offset by $1.2 miilion in
net favorable tax settlements in Brazil, reductions in severance related liabilities and accounts receivable allowance
recoveries. Excluding these amounts, SG&A expenses for 2006 totaled $56.4 million or 22.6% of revenues. SG&A
expenses in 2005 include $6.4 million in incremental charges associated with the 2005 Business Review, consisting
principally of $4.1 million in severance and employment related charges, $1.2 million in unrecoverable prepaid
sales taxes associated with slow moving inventory and the expiration of utilization periods, $1.0 million of future
rent charges resulting from vacating a building located in Phoenix Arizona, as a result of reductions in personnel. In
addition, 2005 selling, general and administrative expenses include a charge of $1.4 million for legal contingencies
for certain tax cases covered under an amnesty program in Brazil, Excluding these charges, SG&A expenses for
2005 totaled $64.8 million or 26.4% of revenue. Selling expenses have decreased principally due to the recognition
of full effects of the cost reductions put in place as part of the 2005 Business Review.

During the third quarter of 2006, we sold our portion of an office building in Hong Kong and we recorded a
$3.0 million gain on the sale. The building was sold as management determined that the cost, size and layout of the
facility were not appropriate for the functions performed in that facility. We have relocated the Hong Kong
operations to other leased space.

Interest income, interest expense, and foreign currency — We recognized $4.8 million in interest income in
2006 compared to $2.7 million in 2005. This increase is principally attributable to higher average cash, cash
equivalent, and short-term investments balances maintained throughout 2006 compared to 2005 and increasing
yields on our cash investments. We incurred interest expense of $1.1 million in 2006 compared to $0.8 million in
2005. The increase in interest expense is primarily due to the write-off of debt issuance cost associated with the
payoff in April of our floating rate option note payable as well as interest penalties incurred on the China payroll tax
charges. Foreign currency loss was $0.7 million in 2006 compared with $1.3 million in 2005. The decrease in
foreign currency expense is principally attributable to a relatively stabilized U.S. dollar against our foreign currency
exposures throughout 2006 as well as improved foreign currency management practices.

Income tax expense — Income tax expense before discontinued operations for federal, state and foreign taxes
was $1.3 million and $3.5 million for the years ended 2006 and 20035, respectively. Income tax expense is
principally comprised of cash income taxes paid associated with certain profitable foreign locations.

During 2006, we continued to provide a valuation allowance on substantially all of our deferred tax assets. That
valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or, the
operating profits in the U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS 109.
Due o our net operating loss position and our valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, the consolidated
effective tax rates for 2006 and 2005 are not meaningful.

Segment and Geographical Information

During the three months ended March 31, 2007, we began to report information pertaining to three business
segments as follows: (i) Americas; (i) EMEA; and (iii) Asia-Pacific. While we have historically operated globally,
in the past the reporting of our global operations did not meet all the criteria as set forth in SFAS 131. During the first
quarter of 2007, we added a President to the executive management team, initiated certain organizational changes
and made enhancements to our internal management reporting, including providing additional reports to our Board.
As required in SFAS 131, prior year segment data has been restated for comparative purposes.

Qur Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), as defined in SFAS 131, consist of a group comprised of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, Qur CODM reviews the products and services revenues,
gross margins using fully burdened manufacturing costs (i.e., before any effects of internal transfer pricing); direct
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local service costs, direct operating expenses consisting of expenses directly associated with the business segment;
and indirect operating expenses consisting of global shared cost centers such as global research and development,
global marketing, corporate general and administrative expenses, and stock-based compensation.

The Americas business segment consists of North America, Brazil, South America excluding Brazil, and
MCC. The EMEA business segment consists of Western and Central Eastern Europe, Russia, Hungary, Sweden and
Middle East and Africa. The Asia-Pacific business segment consists of Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Thailand,
Australia and New Zealand.

Our product revenues relate primarily to the sale of POS terminals, peripheral devices, and transaction
networking devices. Our services revenues are comprised of asset management services, trusted transaction
services and payment solutions, as described in Part I to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. No other type of revenue
exceeded 10% of our consolidated ret revenues in 2007, 2006 or 2005,

The following table set forth the revenues and operating results by business segment for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

% of % of % of
2007 Revenue 2006 Revenue 2005 Revenue
Net revenue:
AMETCAS - .« oot et e ieee e et $158,538 54.0% $145,575 58.6% $146,444 59.7%
EMEA ... ... . 81,383 27.7% 671,476 27.1% 58,560 239%
Asia-Pacific .................... 53,881 18.3% 35,514 14.3% 40,219 16.4%
Total net revenue. . ............ $293,802 100.0% $248,565 100.0% $245,223 100.0%
Operating income;
AMECAS . . o v i e e e s e $ 9412 32% $ 263825 108% % 9773 4.0%
EMEA . ... ... .. 15,032 5.1% 10,671 4.3% 612 0.2%
Asia-Pacific .. .................. 9,108 3.1% 10,404 4.2% 9,550 39%
Shared Cost Centers . ............. (43,771) (14.9Y% (44,733) (18.0y% (47,007 (19.2)%
Total operating income . ... ..... $(10,219) 35% % 3,167 1.3% $(27,072) (11.00%

Americas net revenue increased in 2007 compared to 2006, principally as a result of increases in MCC and
Brazil due to countertep and mobile terminal and services revenue, including a collection of $4.6 million from a past
service contract that had been written off in 2004, as well as gains in North America multi-lane partially offset by
declines in North America countertop and unattended. EMEA net revenue increased in 2007 compared to 2006
principally as a result of increased mobile, countertop and unattended product revenue throughout the region. Asia-
Pacific net revenue increased in 2007 compared to 2006 principally as a result of the addition of ACG, the
Australian service business acquired in February 2007, which contributed $16.5 million in 2007.

Americas operating income decreased in 2007 compared to 2006 principally as a result of increased inventory
reserves related to excess non-compliant PCI inventory together with an allocation of costs associated with our
transition to contract manufacturing, and service costs related to the move of our North American repair center to
Hermosillo, Mexico, with the remaining decline related to the decline in North American revenue that typically
carries a higher gross margin and the replacement of that revenue with lower gross margin, newer product sales in
Mexico and Brazil. Americas operating profit was also impacted by some larger multi-lane deliveries at lower
margins.

EMEA operating profit increased in 2007 compared to 2006 principally as a result of an increase in revenues
with a slight improvement in gross margin due to increased volumes and mix of higher margin products offset by
increased inventory reserves for excess network equipment, a warranty settlement, write-off of capitalized software,
a lost contract with a European customer and an allocation of costs associated with our transition to contract
manufacturing. Additicnally operating expenses did not increase despite the increase in revenues, improving sales
leverage and operating income.
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Asia-Pacific operating income decreased in 2007 compared to 2006 principally as a resuit of a decline in
revenue in Thailand and New Zealand year over year that has a higher gross margin, a decline in high gross margin
networking equipment revenue, as well as increases in certain direct operating expenses related to increases in sales
management and bad debt expenses, partially offset by improvements in gross margin due to the acquisition of
ACG.

Shared cost center expenses decreased in 2007 compared to 2006 principally as a result of favorable impacts
from a gain on sale of real property, litigation settlements and reversal of stock based compensation partially offset
by costs incurred for due diligence efforts, as well as executive severance charges.

Net revenue for 2006 compared to 2005 overall were flat at less than 2% growth. As discussed above, this
resulted from gains in Brazil, Mexico and the EMEA region, offset by declines in Australia/New Zealand and the
Multilane business in North America.

Operating income in 2005 was most notably impacted by the comprehensive business review described above
that resulted in expense charges of $27.7 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations primarily through cash generated from operations and occa-
sionally from borrowings under a line of credit and/or other debt facilities. During 2007, our primary source of cash
was cash generated by our operations as well as cash received from the sale of real property and to a lesser extent
exercise of employee stock options. We had no borrowings under our revolving line of credit during 2007.

Cash flows from continuing operations

Cash provided by operating activities is net income (loss) from continuing operations adjusted for non-cash
iterns and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Cash provided by continuing operating activities totaled
$13.8 million for 2007 compared to cash used in operations of $7.5 million for 2006, a year over year increase of
$21.4 million. The increase in cash provided by operations is principally related to changes in operating assets and
liabilities offset partially by the net loss.

Changes in operating assets and liabilities and the related impact on our operating cash flows consist of the
following:

2007 2006 Change
ACCOUNLS Teceivable . . . .o i s $(19,084) $ (3,641) $(15443)
VLTS 110 o 13 20,683 (16,748) 37,431
Accounts payable. . ... .. .. ... 7,623 4,638 2,985
04111 O (4,413  (10,716) 6,303
Increase (decrease) in operating assets and liabilities. . . .. ..... $ 4,809 $(26,467y § 31,276

Cash used to finance our accounts receivable increased as a result of an increase in days sales outstanding due
to extended payment terms for certain high credit rated customers as well as increases in deferred revenue
principally for sales transactions not meeting all revenue recognition criteria at time of shipment, which was offset
partially by an increase in accounts payable and other accrued expenses as part of our cash management activities.
Cash has also been significantly impacted due to decreases in inventory levels primarily resulting from the
transition to contract manufacturing. Other changes represent increases in accrued payroll and related expenses,
accrued liabilities primarily from professional services and deferred revenues.

Cash flows from investing activities

Investing cash flows consist principally of capital expenditures and the net changes in cash associated with our
investment of excess cash generated by operations or proceeds from liquidations of investments to fund operations,
acquire capital assets or businesses. Cash provided by investing activities was $27.4 million in 2007 compared to
$2.0 million in 2006.
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Cash provided by investing activities for 2007 consisted principally of proceeds from the sale of real property
of $16.3 million plus net proceeds from the sale of short-term investments of $43.1 million as we moved to more
liquid cash investments due to the pending acquisition of TeT, offset by the acquisition of ACG for $12.7 miltion,
purchases of property, plant and equipment of $7.5 million, and capitalized software costs of $1.4 million.

Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment were $7.5 million in 2007 and $6.1 million in 2006,
During 2007 and 2006, capital expenditures were principally for upgrades to computer software and hardware and
equipment purchases. We intend to spend approximately $11.0 to $12.0 million over the next twelve months for
capital expenditures related to outfitting the new corporate headquarters (exclusive of lessor build out concessions),
computer hardware and software upgrades, and strategic software implementations surrounding customer, product
and service management.

Cash flows from financing activities

Financing cash flows consist principally of the issuance of common stock due to the exercise of employee
stock aptions, repayment of long-term debt, and the purchase of treasury stock.

During 2007, cash provided by financing activities was $0.8 million compared to cash used in financing
activities of $12.5 million in 2006. The primary reasons for the increase in cash from financing activities of
$13.3 million were the early pay-off of our debt associated with our headquarters and decreased purchases of
treasury stock in 2007 offset by fewer proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options in 2007.

Cash flows frem discontinued operations (see Notes 5 and 21 to our consolidated financial statements
included herein)

Cash flows from discontinued operations principally relates to our 2005 fourth quarter discontinuance of our
U.K. Lease Business and our direct-finance lease operation sold in the third quarter of 2003.

Cash flows from operations consist principally of net cash eamings from the U.K. Lease Business. The
decrease in operating cash flows provided by discontinued operaticens of $3.9 million in 2007 over 2006 is the resuit
of the sale of the U.K. Lease Business during the second quarter of 2006.

Cash flows generated by investing activities for 2006 of $12.1 million relate 1o net proceeds from the sale of the
U.K. Lease Business.

The cash flows from discontinued operations in 2007 were not significant to our change in cash and cash
equivalents. We believe the absence of cash flows from discontinued operations will not cause us to be unable to
meet our short-term liquidity and capital resource requirements due to our cash reserves and short-term investments
together with the ability to control certain cash outlays, such as the purchase of treasury stock. Should operating
results from continuing operations prove unfavorable, we may need to use additional capital sources to meet our
short-term liquidity and capital resource requirements.

Projected liquidity and capital resources

At December 31, 2007, working capital, cash and cash equivalents and short term investments were
$119.7 million and $81.9 million, respectively,

We have moved short-term investments into more liquid cash and cash equivalent investment arrangements in
anticipation of funding approximately $60 million as a portion of the $120 million purchase price of TeT. The
remaining $60 miilion is expected to be funded through a senior credit facility previously entered into, the funds of
which will be disbursed simultaneously with the closing of the purchase of TeT. The senior credit facility includes a
five-year warrant for the lender to purchase approximately 10.5 million shares of our common stock at $5.00 per
share. The warrant will be issued at the time of funding and contains a cashless exercise provision,

In addition, on January 15, 2008, we entered into a loan agreement that provides for a revolving credit facility
of up to $25 million with a possibility to borrow up to $40 million if certain conditions are met. Available
borrowings under the loan agreement are subject to borrowing base calculations based on the value of eligible
inventory and accounts receivable. The loan agreement includes customary covenants and ceriain negative

48




covenants prohibiting the occurrence of certain types of debt, limiting capital expenditures or disposing of assets.
The obligations under the revolving credit facility are secured by the inventory and accounts receivable of certain of
our subsidiaries in the U.S. and the U.K. The remaining balance of our consolidated assets are unencumbered under
the loan agreement and, if needed, may be used as collateral for additional debt. This loan agreement was put in
place in anticipation of the purchase of TeT, as well as for operational purposes.

We believe that our cash reserves and short-term investments combined with our loan agreement and our
ability to influence operating cash flows as well as certain investing and financing cash outlays, will be sufficicnt to
fund our projected liquidity and capital resource requirements through 2008. Should operating results prove
unfavorable, we may need to obtain additional capital sources to meet our short-term liquidity and capital resource
requirements. If we close the purchase of TeT, we believe that these cash reserves and short-term investments
combined with our loan agreement, the anticipated senior credit facility and our ability to influence operating cash
flows, as well as certain investing and financing cash outlays, will be sufficient to fund our projected liquidity and
capital resource requirements, including the acquisition of TeT, through 2008.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2007, and the effect
such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods (dollars in thousands).

Less than 1-3 3-5 After

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt{1) ...................... $ — 8§ — $ — & — $ —
Capital lease obligations. . . ............ ... — —_ — — —
Operating leases. . .. .............ovn.n 14,908 3,260 6,591 1,597 3.460
Minimum purchase obligations(2}........... 17,334 17,334 — — —
Total ..o $32.242  $20,594 $6,591 $1.597  $3460

(1) Excludes payments under our senior credit facility with Francisco Partners and revolving credit facility with a
bank, as no borrowings have taken place vet under either credit facility. All amounts outstanding under the
senior credit facility are due four years from the funding date, which is expected to occur by March 31, 2008.
Al amounts outstanding, if any, under the revolving credit facility are due on January 15, 2011,

(2) Minimum purchase obligations include all outstanding obligations to purchase goods or services at
December 31, 2007 including agreements that are cancelable without penalty and agreements, which are
enforceable and legally binding. We estimate that approximately 80% of the outstanding purchase obligations
at December 31, 2007 are non-cancelable due to the customized nature of the order and the long lead time
requirements.

Debt Amendments

On March 31, 2006, we entered into a line of credit agreement with a bank pursuant to which we had access to a
$5.0 million line of credit. Borrowings under the credit agreement were fully collateralized by short-term
investments held in our investment accounts with the bank. Any borrowings bore interest at a rate set forth in
each promissory note issued at the time of the advance. The credit agreement contained customary default
provisions and was set to expire on March 31, 2008, but was extended to March 31, 2009.

Stock Repurchase

During August 2003, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program to allow the purchase of up to
$10.0 million of our common stock. During November 2003, the Board authorized a new stock repurchase program
to purchase up to an additional $20.0 million of our common stock. During March 2006, we announced the adoption
of a Rule 10b5-1 plan for the repurchase of up to $5.0 million of common stock pursuant to the terms of an existing
repurchase authorization.
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During 2006 and 2005, we purchased 1,346,628 and 1,525,409 shares of our common stock for $10.7 and
$9.2 million, respectively. There were no treasury stock repurchases during 2007. The repurchased shares were
recorded as treasury stock and resulted in a reduction to stockholder’s equity. As of December 31, 2007, we had
repurchased 2,932,037 shares of common stock at an average price per share of $6.86 under the share repurchase
programs. The timing and amount of any future repurchases will depend on market conditions and corporate
considerations,

Qff-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2007, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii)
of SEC Regulation S-K and FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, as revised.

2008 Outlook

In 2008, we intend to continue our focus on initiatives to drive profitability and expand the business to achieve
added scale. Key initiatives include completion of the acquisition and integration of TeT, market share growth in
strategically targeted geographies and improving gross margins with cost reductions and value added selling. A
well-experienced senior management team is in place globally to specifically address and manage these key
initiatives, and efforts are ongoing to recruit additional managers as part of our restructuring, as well as retaining
seasoned management from Thales as part of the TeT acquisition. We will continue to leverage our existing cost
structure on anticipated higher revenues in 2008.

We will continue to see competitive pressures on a global basis as we and our major competitors try 1o expand
our respective market share. These pressures will generally serve to decrease average selling prices for certain
products within certain geographies. We intend to continue to offset declines in selling prices with increases in
volumes together with further cost reductions in our products, as well as continuing to differentiate our product and
total electronic payment solution offerings from our competitors.

We will continue to manage our balance sheet and leverage our working capital in instances where it can help
meet the objectives of our key initiatives for 2008.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R"), which replaces
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS 141”). SFAS 141R applies to all transactions and other events in
which one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses. The standard requires the fair value of the
purchase price, including the issuance of equity securities, 10 be determined on the acquisition date. SFAS 141R
requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interests in the
acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions specified in the
statement. SFAS 141R requires acquisition costs to be expensed as incurred and restructuring costs to be expensed
in periods after the acquisition date. Earn-outs and other forms of contingent consideration are to be recorded at fair
value on the acquisition date. Changes in accounting for deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired
income tax uncertainties after the measurement period will be recognized in earnings rather than as an adjustment to
the cost of the acquisition. SFAS 141R generally applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15,
2008 with early adoption prohibited. The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interesis in Consolidated Financial State-
ments — an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 requires noncontrolling interests or minority
interests to be treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside of permanent equity.
Upon a loss of control, the interest sold, as well as any interest retained, is required 1o be measured at fair value, with
any gain or loss recognized in earnings. Based on SFAS 160, assets and liabilities will not change for subsequent
purchase or sale transactions with noncontrolling interests as long as control is maintained. Differences between the
fair value of consideration paid or received and the carrying value of noncontrolling interests are to be recognized as
an adjustment to the parent interest’s equity. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal year beginning on or after December 15,
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2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. We are currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of SFAS 160
may have on our consolidated resuits of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is generally effective for years beginning after December 15, 2007. The implementation
of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS 1597), which permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. If elected, SFAS 159 is effective
beginning January 1, 2008, Under SFAS 159, a company may elect to use fair value to measure eligible items at
specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been
elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. Eligible items include, but are not limited to, accounts and
toans receivable, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, equity method investments, accounts payable,
guarantees, issued debt and firm commitments. We elected not to measure any additional financial instruments or
other items at fair value as of January 1, 2008 in accordance with SFAS 159.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2007, our cash equivalent investments are primarily in money market accounts and
certificates of deposit and are reflected as cash equivalents because all maturities are within 90 days from date
of purchase. Our interest rate risk with respect to existing investments is limited due to the short-term duration of
these arrangements and the yields earned, which approximate current interest rates for similar investments.

Our investment portfolio, consisting of fixed income securities, was $5.0 miilion as of December 31, 2007.
These securities, like all fixed income instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will decline in value if market
interest rates increase. If market rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10% from the levels of
December 31, 2007, the decline in the fair value of our investment portfolio would not be material given that our
discount notes have fixed rates. Additionally, we have the ability to hold our fixed income investments until
maturity and, therefore, we would not expect to recognize any material adverse impact in income or cash flows.

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates in connection with our foreign operations and markets. Nevertheless, the fair value of our investment portfolio
or related income would not be significantly impacted by a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates, due
primarily to the shori-term nature of the major portion of our investment portfolio.

A substantial portion of our revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we do at times
enter into transactions in other currencies, such as the Hong Kong dollar, Australian dollar, Brazilian real, British
pound and other Asian and European currencies. As a policy, we hedge the translation of our net investment in
foreign subsidiaries in an attempt to neutralize the effect of translation gains or losses in the statement of operations.
Financial hedging instruments are limited by our policy to foreign-currency forward or optien contracts and
foreign-currency debt. We enter into forward or option contracts with our bank or other financial institutions to
accomplish our hedging strategy. At December 31, 2007, we had foreign currency forward contracts outstanding in
the amount of $19.8 million, denominated principally in the Brazilian real, Thai baht, Mexican peso and Australian
dollar, with smaller contracts for the British pound and Chilean peso. Gains and losses on these contracts principally
consist of mark-to-market adjustments, which are recorded in earnings as foreign currency gains or losses.

We do not purchase or hold any such derivative financial instruments for the purpose of speculation or
arbitrage. See “Item 1A, Risk Factors — International operations pose additional challenges and risks that if not
properly managed could adversely affect our financial results” elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

At present, we have no material long-term debt obligations and there are no borrowings under our revolving
credit facility at December 31, 2007. However, we anticipate borrowings in the near future under both our senior
credit facility and revolving credit facility (see Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements included herein). As
such, our interest rate risk is not significant with respect to existing debt.
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During the normal course of business, we are routinely subjected to a variety of market risks, examples of
which include, but are not limited to, interest rate movements and foreign currency fluctuations, as we discuss in this
Item 7A, and collectibility of accounts receivable. We continuously assess these risks and have established policies
and procedures to protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures. Although we do not
anticipale any material losses in these risk areas, no assurance can be made that material losses will not be incurred
in these areas in the future,

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X are included in Part IV, Item 15
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure information required to be disclosed in the
reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), is recorded,
processed, summarized and timely reported as specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. They are also designed to
ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)} and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectively designed to ensure that information we are required to disclose
in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported timely as
specified in SEC rules and forms and is (2) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
certifying officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no significant change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most
recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal conirol over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

QOur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over Hypercom’s
financial reporting, as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, and with the participation of other management, Hypercom
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007
based on the framework established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSQ”) entitled /nternal Control — Integrated Framework.

Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective,

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Emst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on
management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. This report is contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART 11

Ttem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item regarding our directors, audit committee and compliance with Section 16
of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from the information contained in our 2008 Proxy Statement
(which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days following our fiscal year end). The information required by
TItem 10 regarding our executive officers appears under Item 4 of Part I of this Annual Report.

We have adopled a code of ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees of our company,
including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, or persons performing similar functions. A copy
of our Code of Bthics is available on our website at www.hypercom.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure
requirements under Item 10 of Form 8-K in the event of an amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of our Code
of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, or persons performing similar
functions, by disclosing such information on our website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required in response o this item is incorporated by reference to our 2008 Annual Meeting Proxy
Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following our fiscal year end.

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Motters

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2008 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following our fiscal year end.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2008 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following our fiscal year end.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2008 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following our fiscal year end.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
a. The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(1) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 20035
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(All other financiat statement schedules have been omitted since they are not required, not applicable, or the
information is otherwise included in the financial statements)

b. The Exhibit Index is included following the Financial Statement Schedule.

53




SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has

duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

Date: March 14, 2008 By: /s/ PuiLIPPE TARTAVULL

Philippe Tartavull
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 14, 2008.

Signature Title

Principal Executive, Financial and
Accounting Officers

/s/ Philippe Tartavull Chief Executive Officer, President and
Philippe Tartavull Director
s/ Shawn Rathje Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate
Shawn Rathje Controlier
Directors
" Director

Daniel Diethelm

* Director
Johann J. Dreyer

* Director
Ian K. Marsh

* Director
Phillip J. Riese

* Director

Norman Stout

Philippe Tartavuli, by signing his name hereto, does sign and execute this Annual Report on Form 10-K on
behalf of such of the above named directors of the registrant on this 14th day of March, 2008, pursuant to the power
of attorney executed by each of such directors filed as Exhibit 24.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

*By: /s/ _Philippe Tartavull
Attorney-in-Fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. OQur audits also included the financial statement schedule
included in Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasenable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hypercom Corporation at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Hypercom Corporation changed its method of
accounting for Share-Based Payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004) on January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Hypercom Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based
on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spoensoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 7, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

Is/  Ernst & Younc LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
March 7, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited Hypercom Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Contro! — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Hypercom Corporation’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for ils assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hypercom Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007 of Hypercom Corporation, and the schedule listed in Item 15 (a)(2). and our
report dated March 7, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s!  ErnsT & Young LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
March 7, 2008
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashand cashequivalents ....... ... .. . . .. . . i it
Short-term INVESIMENIS . . . ot it ettt e et ittt it e
Accounts receivable, net of altowance for doubtful accounts of $4,034 and $1,934,

reSPeCtiVElY .. ... e e
N 1110 o 13-
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . .. ... ... .ottt
Deferred INCOME taXes . o v ittt e ettt st i bt

Total CUITENE ASSELS . . . . o oottt ittt e it e e e b aa e
Propenty, plant and equipment, net . . ... ... . e
Intangible ASSeLs, MEL . . .. oottt e e e e
Goodwill . ... e e
Deferred acquisition COSts . ... ...t et
Other long-term assets . . . ..ottt it i i e

TOAl ASSELS . . . o ittt et e e e e e e e

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . ... ... .. e e
Accrued payroll and related expenses . ... ... o o o i e
Accrued sales and other taxes. .. ... ... o e
Product warranty liabilities. . . .. ... ... ... . .
Accrued other liabilities . ... ... . . e
Deferred TEVENUE . . . ..ottt ittt e e e
Income taxes payable . . ... ... .. i e

Total current labilities . . . . .. ..ot e e e
Deferred tax labilities . . .. . .ot i e i
Other Habilities . .. o o i et it e e e e e e e e

Total Habilities. .. .. ... e

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Commoen stock, $.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 53,167,702 and

53,127,205 shares outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. . .

Additional paid-in capital . .. .. .. ... ...
Accumulated deficit . . ... .. L e
Treasury stock, 3,162,248 shares (at cost) at December 31, 2007 and 2006. . . . ..

Total stockholders’ equity. . ... ... . o e e e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . ... ... ... ... ... . . ot

December 31,

207

2006

(Dollars in thousands,
except share data)

£ 76925 % 34,190
4,988 47,228
71,341 52,111
22,343 52,632
15,251 8,202
497 691
191,345 195,720
17,694 27,261
10,502 5,733
10,224 2,691
12,529 —
7,950 5,311
$250.244  $236,716
$ 30448 3 22931
5,889 6,201
7427 7,781
1,754 2,636
16,154 9,603
5,497 2,185
519 2,460
71,688 53,7197
620 380
3,437 3,608
75,745 57,785
56 56
251,034 247,989
(53,842)  (46,365)
(22,749y  (22,749)
174,499 178,931
$250,244  $236,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenue:

Products
Services

Total net

TEVENUEC . . . . . . . e i i s i e e e

Costs of revenue;

Products
Services

Total costs of revenue . ... ... ... ... . . . 00

Gross profit

Operating expenses:

Research

and development. . .........................

Selling, general and administrative , . ... ................
In-process research and development .. .................
Gainonsale of real property .. .. ... ... ... ... 0ea...

Income (los:

s) from continuing operations. .. .. .............

Interest income . . ........ ... e
Interest expense ... ... ... ... ..l e
Foreign currency 1oss . ... ... it i
Other eXpensSe . . ... i e e e e

Income (los

s) before income taxes and discontinued

OPETAIIONS . . . o vt it
Provision for income taxes . . ... e

Income (los
Income (los

Net income

s) before discontinued operations . . ... ..., ......
s) from discontinued operations . . ..............

(OSS) . o e e

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations . .. ..........
Income (loss) from discontinued operations , , .. ..........

Basic income (loss) pershare, .. ............... ... ...

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations . ... .........
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ., ,...........

Diluted income (loss) pershare . . .....................

Shares used
Basic ..

in computing net income (loss) per common share:

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

$ 206360 3 191,286 $ 190,214
87,442 57,279 55,009
293,802 248,565 245,223
149,787 117,756 131,326
68,567 41,784 40,765
218,354 159,540 172,091
75,448 89,025 73,132
28,753 27,706 27,555
60,710 60,105 72,649
—_ 1,000 -
(3,796) {2,933) —

(10219 3,167 (27.072)
3,954 4,758 2,679

(122) (1,072) {7187)

(1,685) (699) (1,297

(25) (71) (240)

(8,097) 6,083 (26,717)

{478) (1,346) (3,526)

(8.575) 4,737 (30,243)

1,098 2,233 (3,123)

b 7477 % 6970 §  (33,366)

$ 0.16y % 009 § (0.58)

0.02 0.04 (0.06)

$ (0.14) 3§ 013 § (0.64)

$ 0.16) % 009 % (0.58)

0.02 0.04 (0.06)

$ 0.14) $ 0.13 § (0.64)
52,927,296 53,248,194 52,395,001
52,927,296 53,965,576 52,395,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Commen Stock
Shares

Additional Tota)
Pald-in Deferred  Accumulated Treasury Stockholders’®
Balance Capital Compensation Deflcit Stock Equity

Balance as of December 31,2004 ... .. .. 52,254,935
Issuance of common stock . . ... ... ... 1,873,021
Purchase of treasury stock . .......... (1,525,409)
Restricted common stock issued for

deferred compensation, net of

cancellations . . . ................ 389412
Recogniticn of deferred compensation,

net of award reacquisitions . . .. ... .. —
Netloss.......cooiiininnn., —

Balance as of December 31,2005 ....... 52,991,959
Issuance of common stock . .. ........ 1,439,442
Purchase of treasury stock . .......... (1,346,628)
Reclassification due to the adoption of

SFAS123R. . ... .o i e —
Restricted common stock issued for

compensation, net of forfeitures. . . . .. 42,432
Share-based compensation . .. ........ —_
Netloss. . ... ... .. iiiinneanns —

Balance as of December 31, 2006 .. ... .. 53,127,205
Issuance of common stock . . .. ....... 247,163
Restricted common stock issued for

compensation . ................. 93,334
Restricted common stock forfeitures . . . . (300,000)
Share-based compensation . . ......... —
Netloss......... oo —

Balance as of December 31, 2007 .. ... .. 53,167,702

$52
3

$56

(Dollars in thousands)
$228,567 % (505} $(19.969) $ (2,773) $205,372

7.173 — — — 1176
_ — —  (9236)  (9.236)
2446 (2,446) - _— —
— 828 — — 828

— —  (33,366) —  (33.366)
238,186 (2.123)  (53.335) (12,009) 170,774
6.650 — — — 6651
— — —  (10,740) (10,740)
(2.123) 2123 — — —
5.276 — — — 527
— _ 6,970 — 6970
247,989 —  (46365) (22,749) 178931
934 — — — 934
(1,582) — — —  (1.582)
3,693 — — — 3,693
— — (7.477) — (147D
$251.034 §  —  $(53.842) $(22,749) $174.499

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from continuing operations:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations .. ................. $ (8,575) § 4,737 § (30,243)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization of deferred financing costs .. ............. ... ... — 4 15
Depreciation and amortization . . ............. ... .. .. ... 9,156 7,872 7.890
Acquired in-process research and development. . . ........... ... — 1,000
Amonrtization of discount on short-term investments .. ........... (844) (1,303) (1,099)
Provision for doubtful accounts . .. ......................... 2,115 826 2,046
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory .. ................. 8,074 2,342 18,539
Provision for warranty and other product charges . .............. 2,328 125 8,926
Foreign currency (gains) 10sses . ... ........cccruuurninnnn 2,317) 35 (1,206)
Gainonsaleofreal property . ..... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... .. ... (3,796) (2,953)
Non-cash stock-based compensation. . . ...................... 1,919 6,253 828
Non-cash write-off of intangibles and other assets .............. 509 324 2,181
Deferred income tax benefit. .. .. .. ...... .. ... .. .. ... ..... 434 (530) 219
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net ... .............. 4,809 (26,467)  (11,850)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ... ....... 13,812 (7,735) (3,754}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment . . .. .................. (7.481) {6,131) (4,916)
Proceeds from the sale of real property . .............. ... ...... 16,250 5,190 —
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired ., .. ........ ... ... (13,075) (8,319) —
Cash deposit for pending acquisition of Thales e-Transactions
DUSIIESS & it e e e e e e e e (10,000} — -
Software development costs capitalized ... ..................... (1,392) (787) (559)
Purchase of short-term investments . ... ... ... .....oueoeoo..... (141,008) (295,054) (216,915}
Proceeds from the sale or maturity of short-term investments . ....... 184,090 307,080 230,025
Net cash provided by investing activities. . . ............... 27,386 1,979 7,635
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of bank notes payable and other debt instruments. . ... ... €] (8,364) (425
Debt issuance oSt . ... ... e e e, (100) — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...................... 934 6,651 7.176
Purchase of treasury stock . . .. ... oo L — (10,740) {9,236)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .......... 827 (12,453) (2,485)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . ........ 716 469 (333)
Net increase (decrease) in cash flow from continuing operations . ... ... 42,741 (17,740) 1,063
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from
discontinued operations. .. ... ...... .. ... ... 6) 3,853 11,432
Net cash provided by investing activities from discontinued
OPETALIONS . . .ot ittt n e e e — 12,137 —
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year. . .. .................. 34,190 35,940 23,445
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . .. ......... .. ............ $ 76925 § 34,190 $ 35940

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007

1. Description of Business

Hypercom Corporation (“Hypercom™) is one of the largest global providers of complete electronic payment
solutions and value-added services at the point-of-transaction. Hypercom designs, manufactures and sells elec-
tronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, transaction networking devices, transaction management Systems,
application software and information delivery services. Additionally, Hypercom provides directly, or through
qualified contractors, support and related services that complement and enhance its hardware and sofiware
products. Hypercom’s customers include large domestic and international financial institutions, electronic payment
processors, large retailers, independent sales organizations (“ISOs™) and distributors as well as companies in the
transportation, healthcare, pre-paid card and quick service restaurant (“QSR”) industries. Hypercom operates in one
business market — electronic payment products and services.

Hypercom is headgquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, where its operations include corporate administration,
product development, sales and marketing, distribution, repairs and customer service. Hypercom has sales and
support offices in Australia, Brazil, Chile, China, Hong Kong, Hungary, Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico, Russia,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Thailand, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom (“U.K."). These sales and
support offices perform sales, marketing, distribution, customer service and custom development functions.
Hypercom’s primary manufacturing is performed in China with third party manufacturing operations performed
in Poland and Malaysia. Hypercom has global product development facilities in Latvia, Singapore and India.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hypercom and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company™). The Company, directly or indirectly, owns 100% of the outstanding stock of all of its
subsidiaries with the exception of one subsidiary in Thailand. The Company owns a controlling interest in the
Thailand subsidiary and certain nominee shareholders own the remaining shares. All of the Company’s subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements, and all! significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The accounting estimates that require management’s
most significant, difficult and subjective judgments include collectibility of accounts receivable; determination of
inventory ohsolescence; recoverability of long-lived assets and goodwill, expected product warranty costs;
recognition and measurement of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities; legal and tax contingency
accruals; and the reductions to revenue related to sales returns. The actual results experienced by the Company may
differ from management’s estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all invesiment instruments, including money market accounts and certificates of
deposits, with a remaining maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivaients, These
investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Sheort-term Investments
Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments in marketable debt and equity

securities at the time of purchase. Securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold 10

61




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2007

maturity are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value, with the unrealized holding gains and losses,
net of tax, reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity, if material. On an ongoing basis, the Company
evaluates its debt securities 1o determine if a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary. When a decline in fair
value is determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment charge would be recorded and a new cost basis in the
investment is established. The amortized cost of debt securities in this category is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization is included in interest income. Realized gains
and losses and interest and dividends on securities are included in interest income. The cost of securities sold is
based upon the specific identification method. Securities classified as available for sale include both securities due
within one year and securities with maturity dates beyond one year,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company values financial instruments as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS"™) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The fair value of
marketable securities is determined based on quoted market prices, which approximate fair value. The fair value of
sales-type leases and long-term obligations is estimated by discounting the future cash flows required under the
terms of each respective lease or debt agreement by current market rates for the same or similar issues of leases or
debt with similar remaining maturities. The fair value of financial hedge instruments are based on quotes from
brokers using market prices for those or similar instruments,

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Payment terms for product and service trade receivables generally range from 30 to 90 days depending on the
circumstances of each order or service contract. Payment on trade receivables from long-term contracts is generally
received within four months of the milestone approval date. Any payments not received within the agreed upon due
date are considered past due.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
its customers to make required payments. Such allowance is computed based upon a specific customer account
review of larger customers and balances past due. The Company’s assessment of its customers’ ability to pay
generally includes direct contact with the customer, investigation into customers’ financial status, as well as
consideration of customers’ payment history with the Company. If the Company determines, based on its
assessment, that it is more likely than not that the Company’s customers will be unable to pay, the Company
will charge off the account receivables to the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Sales-Type Leases

Certain product sales are made under a capital lease arrangement are recorded as a sales-type lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Lease contract receivables represent the total lease payments
to be received reduced by lease payments already collected. Sales-type lease revenues consist of the initial sale of
the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease payments as they are earned. An
allowance for estimated uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an amount sufficient to provide adequate
protection against losses in the Company's sales-type lease portfolio is recorded. The allowance is determined
principally on the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of the credit quality of the sales-
type lease customer base. If loss rates increase or customer credit conditions deteriorate, the allowance for
uncollectible sales-type leases may need to be increased. Unearned income, including an interest and maintenance
element, is the amount by which the original sum of the lease contract receivable exceeds the fair value of the
equipment sold. The interest element is amortized to lease income over the lease in a manner that produces a
constant rate of return. The maintenance element is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Recognition of the interest and maintenance income did not exceed 10% of the Company’s net revenues in 2007,
2006 or 2005.

In addition, as part of the initial recording of the Company’s sales-type leases, the estimated unguaranteed
residual value of the equipment is recorded. The residual value is based on industry standards and the Company’s
actual experience. Residual values were recorded only for the sale-type leases in the Company’s U.K. Lease
Business, which has been sold and is reported in discontinued operations. There are no residual values recorded
under sales-type leases at December 31, 2007.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Reserves for
estimated excess and/or obsolete inventory are recorded on a product or part level basis based upon future demand
and historical usage and establish a new cost basis for the respective item.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided on straight-line
and accelerated methods over the following useful lives:

BUIlding. . . . ot e e e 30 years
Computer equipment and software .. ... ... . o 3-5 years
Machinery and eqUipIment. . . ... ... oo s 2-5 years
Equipment leased t0 CUSIOMEIS . . . . . ..ottt it i e e s s 1-5 years
Furniture and fIXtUres . . . .. ... e e e 3-7 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the life of the asset.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain internal and external expenses related to developing computer software used
in the products it sells. Costs incurred prior to the establishment of technological feasibility are charged to research
and development expense. The Company considers technological feasibility 1o have been established for a product
when all of the following conditions have been met: (a) the detail program design has been completed and it has
been determined that the necessary skills, hardware, and software technology are available 1o produce the product;
(b) the detail program design has been traced to product specifications; and (c) all high-risk development issues
have been resolved through coding and testing. Upon general release to customers of the product in which the
software is included, capitalization ceases, and such costs are amortized using the straight-line method over an
estimated life of one to three years. The amounts capitalized in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
were $1.4 million, $0.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired business over the estimated fair market value of the
acquired net assets. The Company tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis using discounted future cash
flows subject to a comparison for reasonableness to the Company’s market capitalization at the date of valuation. If
the Company determines that an impairment has occurred, the Company will write-down the carrying value of its
goodwill to its estimated fair value and charge the impairment as an operating expense in the period the
determination is made. The Company completed its goodwill impairment test during the fourth quarter of
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2006 and 2007 and determined there was no impairment in either year. However, there can be no assurance that
future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a change 10 earnings.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the potential impairment of long lived when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. If such indicators are present, the Company
determines whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows attributable 10 the assets in question is less
than their carrying value. If less, the Company recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying
amount of the assets over their respective fair values. Fair value is determined by discounted future cash flows,
appraisals or other methods. If the assets determined to be impaired are to be held and used, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss through a charge to operating results to the exteni the present value of anticipated net
cash flows attributable to the asset are less than the asset’s carrying value. When it is determined that the useful lives
of assets are shorter than originally estimated, and there are sufficient cash flows to support the carrying value of the
assets, the Company will accelerate the rate of amortization charges in order to fully amortize the assets over their
new shorter useful lives. This process requires the use of estimates and assumptions, which are subject to a high
degree of judgment. If these assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record impairment
charges for these assets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue pursuant to applicable revenue recognition guidance and interpretations,
including the requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force 1ssue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables, Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting
Jor Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production Type Contracts, Staff Accounting Bulletins No. 101
and No. 104, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, and other applicable revenue recognition guidance and
interpretations. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria are met: (a) persuasive
evidence that an arrangement exists; (b) delivery of the products and/or services has occurred; (c) the selling price is
both fixed and determinable; and (d) collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company generally recognizes product revenue, including sales to distributors and sales under sales-lype
leases, upon shipment of product. The Company recognizes services revenue when services have been provided and
collection of invoiced amounts is reasonably assured. Routine recurring services include terminal repairs, help-
desk, on-site technician visits, deployment and the provision of supplies. Amounts received in advance of services
being rendered are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenues from long-lerm contracts that require substantial
performance of customized seftware and hardware over an extended period are recorded based upon the attainment
of scheduled performance milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. Operaling lease revenue is
recognized monthly over the lease term. The units leased under operating leases are included in the balance sheet
under “Property, plant and equipment.” The Company accrues for warranty costs, sales returns and other allowances
at the time of shipment.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine if the deliverables (items) can be
divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if
all of the following criteria are met:

= The delivered item(s) has value to the customer on a standalone basis;
* There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s); and

+ If'the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s). delivery or performance
of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company.
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Items that do not meet these criteria are combined into a single unit of accounting. If there is objective and
reliable evidence of fair value for all units of accounting, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate
units of accounting based on their relative fair values. In cases where there is objective and reliable evidence of the
fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s) in an arrangement but no such evidence for one or more of the delivered
item(s), the residual method is used to allocate the arrangement consideration. In cases in which there is not
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s), the Company defers ali revenue for the
arrangement until the period in which the last item is delivered.

Contract Accounting

The Company recognizes revenues and an estimated gross profit upon the attainment of scheduled perfor-
mance milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. The Company follows this method since contracts
contain well-defined performance milestones and the Company can make reasonably dependable estimates of the
costs applicable to various stages of the contract.

Revenues subject to contract accounting have been less than 10% of total revenues for each of the fiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Product Warranty

The Company accrues for estimated warranty obligations when revenue is recognized based on an estimate of
future warranty costs for delivered products. Such estimates are based on historical experience and expectations of
future costs. The Company periodicalty evaluates and adjusts the accrued warranty costs to the extent actual
warranty costs vary from the original estimates. The Company’s warranty period typically extends from one to five
years from the date of shipment. Costs associated with maintenance contracts, including extended warranty
contracts, are expensed when they are incurred. Actual warranty costs may differ from management’s estimates.

Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in legal proceedings involving contractual and
employment relationships, product liability claims, intellectual property rights, and a variety of other matters. The
Company records contingent liabilities resulting from asserted and unasserted claims against it, when it is probable
that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss is estimable. Estimating probable losses requires
analysis of multiple factors, in some cases including judgments about the potential actions of third-party claimants
and courts. Therefore, actual losses in any future period are inherently uncertain. Currently, the Company does not
belicve any of its pending legal proceedings or claims will have a material impact on its financial position or results
of operations or cash flows. However, if actual or estimated probable future losses exceed the Company’s recorded
ltability for such claims, it would record additional charges as other expense during the period in which the actual
loss or change in estimate occurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and included in costs of revenue.

Advertising Costs

Adventising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $0.3 million, $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based employee compensation, including stock
options, using the method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees and Related Interpretations (“APB Opinion No. 25”). Under APB Opinion No. 25, for stock options
granted at market price, no compensation cost was recognized, and a disclosure was made regarding the pro forma
effect on net earnings assuming compensation cost had been recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”). Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™)
statement No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective method
under SFAS 23R the Company is required to measure and recognize compensation expense for all share-based
payments at fair value. Other than restricted stock, no share-based employee compensation cost has been reflected
in net income prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Foreign Currency

All of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and divisions use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency.
Accordingly, foreign currency translation gains and losses from remeasurement are inciuded in current earnings.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local currency are remeasured at period end exchange rates whereas
non-monetary assets, including inventories and property, plant and equipment, are reflected at historical rates.
During the years ended December 31,2007, 2006, and 2005 the Company recorded net gains on re-measurement of
$1.9 million, zero and $0.7 million, respectively. For the same periods, the Company recorded net losses on
transactions denominated in foreign currencies of $1.7 million, $0.7 million and $2.0 million, respectively. These
amounts are included in the results of operations.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax laws (including rates) is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements regarding the valuation reserve against the
Company’s deferred tax assets.

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed eamnings of its international
subsidiaries because earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested
indefinitely.

Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic income (loss) per share was computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income (loss) per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if the income were divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding and
potentially dilutive common shares from outstanding stock options and warrants. Potentially dilutive common
shares were calculated using the treasury stock method and represent incremental shares issuable upon exercise of
the Company’s outstanding options and warrants. Due to losses in 2005 and 2007, potentially dilutive securities are
not included in the calculation of dilutive loss per share as their impact would be anti-dilutive. The following table
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reconciles the weighted average shares used in computing basic and diluted income (loss) per share in the respective
years:

2007 2006 2005
Shares used in basic income (loss) per share calculation
(weighted average common shares outstanding). .. . ... 52,927,296 53,248,194 52,395,001
Effect of dilutive stock options and warrants. .. ........ — 717,382 —
Shares used in diluted income (loss) per share
calculation . . ... .. e e 52927296 53,965,576 52,395,001

Due to losses in 2005 and 2007, options and warrants that could potentially dilute income (loss) per share in the
future were not included in the computation of diluted income (Joss) per share because they were anti-dilutive. In
those years, excluded options and warrants amounted to 2,974,536 and 6,368,871, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company does not acquire, hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivative
financial instruments are used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks that arise out of the Company’s
core business activities.

Derivative financial instruments used to manage foreign exchange risk are designated as hedging instruments
for hedges of foreign currency exposure of the Company’s net investment in foreign operations. The primary
objective of the Company’s hedging strategy is to protect its net investments in foreign subsidiaries and certain
accounts receivable that are exposed to volatility in foreign currency exchange rates. Financial hedging instruments
used in this strategy are limited by Company policy to foreign currency forward or option contracts and foreign
currency debt. Changes in the fair value of foreign-currency forward contracts are reported as fareign currency
gains or losses in the statement of operations. During 2007 and 2006, the Company had forward contracts in place to
hedge its foreign currency denominated net monetary assets in various foreign countries, including Brazil, the U.K.,
Chile, Australia and Sweden. The U.S. dollar amount of the contracts at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was
$19.8 million and $2.9 miilion, respectively. The total payable recorded under the contracts is reflected in accrued
liabilities and was $0.3 and less than $0.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

The Company has no items that affect comprehensive income other than net income or loss.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 14| (R), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R"), which replaces
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS 1417). SFAS 141R applies to all transactions and other events in
which one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses. The standard requires the fair value of the
purchase price, including the issuance of equity securities, to be determined on the acquisition date. SFAS 14IR
requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interests in the
acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions specified in the
statement. SFAS 14 1R requires acquisition costs to be expensed as incurred and restructuring costs to be expensed
in periods after the acquisition date. Earn-outs and other forms of contingent consideration are to be recorded at fair
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value on the acquisition date. Changes in accounting for deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired
income tax uncertainties after the measurement period will be recognized in earnings rather than as an adjustment to
the cost of the acquisition. SFAS 141R generally applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting pericd beginning on or after December 15,
2008 with early adoption prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of
SFAS 141R may have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial State-
ments — an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 requires noncontrolling interests or minority
interests to be treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside of permanent equity.
Upon a loss of control, the interest sold, as well as any interest retained, is required te be measured at fair value, with
any gain or loss recognized in earnings. Based on SFAS 160, assets and liabilities will not change for subsequent
purchase or sale transactions with noncontrolling interests as long as control is maintained. Differences between the
fair value of consideration paid or received and the carrying value of noncontrolling interests are 1o be recognized as
an adjustment to the parent interest’s equity. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal year beginning on or after December 15,
2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of
SFAS 160 may have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position,

In Septemnber 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is generally effective for years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company is
currently evaiuating the impact that the implementation of SFAS 157 may have on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations and financial position,

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, Fuir Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — including an amendment of FASB Starement No. 115 (“SFAS 159™), which permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. If elected, SFAS 159 is effective
beginning January 1, 2008. Under SFAS 159, a company may elect to use fair value to measure eligible items at
specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been
elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. Eligible ttems include, but are not limited to, accounts and
loans receivable, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, equity method investments, accounts payable,
guarantees, issued debt and firm commitments. The Company elected not to measure any additional financial
instruments or other items at fair value as of January 1, 2008 in accordance with SFAS 159,

3. Business Acquisitions
ACG Group

On February 8, 2007, the Company acquired the assets of ACG Group Pty Limited (“*ACG”), a provider of
installation, technical support and help desk services for point of sale equipment in Australia. The acquisition builds
on the Company’s existing card payment terminal business in Australia and expands the Company’s service
business footprint in the Asia-Pacific marketplace, providing merchant support for all point of sale terminals in
Australia as well as a business platform for potential expansion throughout the region.

The purchase price was $12.0 million in cash plus the assumption of $0.5 million in liabilities. A portion of the
cash paid, in the amount of $0.9 million, is being held by a third-party escrow company for a period of 24 months to
satisfy any claims against the seller for breach of representations and warranties provided in the sale agreement. The
Company paid $0.7 million for acquisition-related costs, which have been added to the purchase price allocation,
including professional fees and internal direct out-of-pocket expenses.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination in accordance with SFAS 141, and
accordingly, the resulis of ACG’s operations are included in the Company’s consolidated results from the date of the
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acquisition. Pro forma financial information is not presented because the acquisition was not considered significant
under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) (Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X).

The amount paid for ACG in excess of the fair value of the net tangible assets has been allocated to separately
identifiable intangible assets based upon an independent valuation analysis. An allocation of $6.1 million of the
purchase price was made to customer relationships, trademarks, service know-how and other identifiable intangible
assets and will be amortized over their estimated useful lives of four to ten years. The amount of the purchase price
in excess of assets acquired of approximately $6.8 million was considered goodwill in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427). Goodwill related to the acquisition will
not be amortized but will be subject to periodic impairment tests. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

TPI Software

On December 14, 2006, the Company acquired the technology and assets of TPI Software, LLC (“TPI"), a
provider of personal computer and enterprise server-based credit/debit/gift card, EBT, automated clearing house
and electronic check processing software. The purchase price was $8.5 million in cash, of which $0.9 million is
being held by a third party escrow company pending the resolution of certain contingencies related to the validity
and accuracy of the representations and warranties by the selling principals over a stated peried of time and the
achievement of software development goals related to the creation of a new wireless gateway using the core
technology acquired by the Company. This amount is included in other current assets. Approximately $0.2 million
of the purchase price has been recorded as payment of compensation in advance, and will be amortized into
operating expenses over the contingency period.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination in accordance with SFAS 141, and
accordingly, the results of TPI’s operations are included in the Company’s consolidated results from the date of the
acquisition. The acquisition was not considered significant under the rules and regulations of the SEC (Rule 3-05 of
Regulation S-X). Pro forma financial information is not presented since the historical operating results of TPI were
not significant when compared to those of the Company. The amount paid in excess of the fair value of the net
tangible assets has been allocated to separately identifiable intangible assets based upon an independent valuation
analysis. An allocation of $1.0 million of the purchase price was assigned to in-process research and development
and was written off at the date of the acquisition in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 4, “Applicability of
FASB Statement No, 2, Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method.

Approximately $3.2 million of the purchase price was allocated to core technology and other identifiable
intangible assets and will be amortized over their estimated useful lives of two to ten years.

Initially. an allocation of approximately $2.7 million of the purchase price was made to goodwill in accordance
with SFAS 142. Upon the resolution of certain contingencies in 2007, $0.7 million previously held by a third party
escrow company was paid to the selling principals and the amount was allocated to goodwill. TP was in its early
stages of operation and did not have the Company’s capabilities in manufacturing, marketing, sales and distribution,
thereby resulting in the Company paying a premium over fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired. The
Company expects to be able 1o utilize the acquired technologies in its other products separate from those acquired
from TPIL. Goodwill related to the acquisition will not be amortized but will be subject to periodic impairment tests.
Goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Thales e-Transactions

On December 20. 2007, the Company announced that it had delivered a binding offer (the “Offer”) 1o Thales
SA (“Thales™) to acquire all of the shares of Thales' four e-Transactions entities (collectively, “TeT”) — Thales
e-Transactions SA, Thales e-Transactions GmbH, Thales e-Transactions Ltd, and Thales e-Transactions Espafia —
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each of which is a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Thales. On February 13, 2008, the Company
announced that it had entered into a definitive Share Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) for the
acquisition of the shares of TeT.

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Company will pay $120 million, subject to certain
adjustments, to acquire TeT, with a potential contingent payment (or “earn out™) of an additional $30 million
based upon the combined companies’ performance in 2008. In connection with the Offer, the Company deposited
with Thales an amount of $10 million (the “Deposit”). If the transaction is not completed, Thales may be entitled to
retain the deposit in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement. The Deposit is recorded in deferred
acquisitions costs in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2007. In addition, the Company has
incurred other acquisition costs amounting to $2.5 million related to its purchase of TeT.

The closing of the transaction, which is expected to occur by March 31, 2008, is subject to customary closing
conditions and approvals, including certain regulatory approvals.

4. Restructuring and Other Charges
Restructuring

During the second quarter of 2007, the Company initiated a reconfiguration of its global sales and marketing
organizations. In addition, the Company announced its intention to outsource its manufacturing and consolidate its
software, repair and maintenance functions globally. Pursuant to this restructuring plan, the Company has
undertaken the following initiatives:

» Quisourcing the Company’s entire manufacturing requiremnents to third-party contract manufacturers,
including supply chain, production, assembly, and testing presently performed in Shenzhen, China and
in Atibaia, Brazil. Transitioning of the Company’s manufacturing operations commenced in 2007 and is
expected to be completed in 2008;

Shutdown of manufacturing operations in Atibaia, Brazil in accordance with the Company’s plans to cease
negative margin terminal sales. This activity was completed during the third quarter of 2007;

= Consolidating global software development activities to Singapore, Latvia, and India, reducing similar
activities now performed in the U.S. and Sweden. The consolidation of global development activities is
complete;

¢ Relocating U.S. service and repair operations from Phoenix, Arizona to Hermosillo, Mexico, which was
completed in 2007, and

+ Reorganizing and reducing the manufacturing and operations management team in Phoenix, Arizona
consistent with the move to third-party contract manufacturing, which commenced in 2007 and is expected
to continue during 2008,

The following table summarizes these charges and activities during 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Transition to

Conlract
Severance Manufacturing Total
2007 Charges . .. oot ot e e e e $1,737 $ 1,183 $ 2,920
Amounts utilized . ............ ... .. ... ... _ (63D (1,183) (1,820}
Balance accrued at December 31,2007 . ... ... ... .. ..., w 5 — $ 1,100
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Of the $2.9 million of costs incurred, $1.6 million was recorded in costs of revenue and $1.3 million was
recorded in operating expenses. The Company expects the remaining amounts accrued to be paid in 2008 and
expects to incur an additional $1.5 million of costs in connection with this activity that will be expensed in 2008.

In addition, the Company also incurred $0.6 million of severance costs in 2006 related to the shut-down of its
Sweden facility. As of December 31, 2007, $0.3 million remained of this accrual.

The following table summarizes these charges and activities during 2007 by segment unit (dollars in
thousands):

Costs Amounts Balance at
Incurred Utilized December 31,
During 2007 during 2007 2007
AMCICAS . .. .ottt e $ 596 $ (572) $ 24
EMEA e e 365 (28) $ 337
AsiaPacific . ... .. .. .. . 829 $ (829) $ —
Shared COSLCBNIEIS . . . . .. .ottt it icnaaeenn 1,130 (391) $ 739
Total charges . ..........ccuciiiiar i iean $2,920 $(1,820 $1,100

|

2005 Business Review

In March 2005, a change in senior management was made at the Company. New management completed a
comprehensive review of the Company’s financial performance; market strategy; products; product development
and life cycle management; and employee, customer and vendor relationships during 2005 (the 2005 Business
Review"). The objective of the 2005 Business Review was to create a plan to improve profitability and customer
relations, transition more rapidly to 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize the
Company’s corporate structure.

As a result of actions arising from the 2005 Business Review, the Company incurred restructuring charges of
$19.0 million during 2005. Of this amount, $16.3 miilion was charged 10 costs of revenues including $3.8 million of
warranty charges, $12.1 million of inventory costs for end-of life products and $0.4 million of severance costs. The
remaining $2.7 million was charged to operating expenses including $2.6 million of severance costs and
$0.1 million of idle facility charges.

The Company incurred restructuring charges of $2.3 million during 2006. Of this amount, $1.4 million was
charged to costs of revenues including $1.3 million of warranty charges and $0.1 million of severance costs. The
remaining $0.9 million was charged to operating expenses including $0.6 million of severance costs and
$0.3 million of idle facility charges. The charge was partially offset by $1.4 million reversal of warranty charges
related to customers that ultimately opted out of a trade-in program to replace inventory and $0.2 million of
severance accruals ultimately not utilized.

The following table sets forth the activity in 2007 in the remaining accrued liability and reserve accounts for
the restructuring reserves recorded in 2005 in conjunction with the 2005 Business Review (dollars in thousands):

Idle
Warranty  Facility
Charges Lease Total
Balance at Janvary 1, 2007. .. .. ... ... L $ 840 $551 $1,391
Amounts utilized . ... ... s (546) (536) $(1,082)
Amounts reVersed. . . ..o e — (15) $ (15)b
Balance at December 31,2007 .. ... . ot 5294 $ — $ 294a
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(a) These accrued liability balances are recorded as current product warranty liabilities as these amounts are
expected to be paid during 2008.

(b) The Company negotiated with the landlord an early termination of the lease for one of the Company’s facilities
in Phoenix, Arizona. The difference between the amount paid and the balance in the accrual was $15,000.

The following table summarizes these charges and activities during 2007 by segment unit (dollars in
thousands):

Amounts Balance

Balance at Utilized / Remaining at

January 1, Reversed December 31,
2007 during 2007 2007
AMENCAS . . . . o $ 551 5 (551 $ —
EMEA | e 100 (100} —_
AsiaPacific ....... ... ... .. .. . 740 (446) 294
Shared costcenters ........... .. . . . ... — — —
Total charges. . ... ... . $1,391 $(1,097) $294

5. Discontinued Operations

The income (loss) from the Company’s discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 include the following (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
United Kingdom Lease Portfolio:
Netrevenue .. ..ottt e e e et e $ —  $3230 $14.355
Costs of revenues (reversals of commissions) . . .............. {1,098) 1,195 9,531
Gross profit{a). . .. .. ... . e 1,098 2,035 4,824
Selling, general and administrative expenses ................ — (1,020) (1,397
Foreign currency loss ....... ... . ... i — (343) (340)
Loss on asset impairment . ............c...ciiiiiienn.. — —_ (6,609)
Gain on Sale . . ... e — 1,561 —
1,098 2,233 (3,522)
Golden Eagle Leasing. ... ... ... i i — — 399
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .. ................ $1,08 §2233 $(3,123)

(a) During the period ended December 31, 2007 the Company received a rebate of previously paid lease
origination commission payments related to the U.K. lease portfolio that was sold in 2006.

U.K. Lease Portfolio

During the fourth guarter of 2005, the Company made the decision to sell its U.K. leasing business (the “U.K.
Lease Business™). As of December 31, 2005, the U.K. Lease Business qualified as discontinued operations under
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accordingly, the UK. Lease
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Business operating results have been classified as discontinued operations in the statements of operations and cash
flows for all periods presented.

Effective May 31, 2006, the Company sold the U.K. Lease Business for $12.1 million (the “U.K. Lease Sale™).
The U.K. Lease Sale includes the lease arrangements with merchants and all related obligations and rights 1o
payment under such agreements. The UK. Lease Sale agreement contains covenants and indemnification
provisions, which could result in additional liabilities to the Company if certain events occur or fail to occur
in the future,

Golden Eagle Leasing

During the first quarter of 2003, the Company recorded income from discontinued operations of $0.4 million
principally relating to the release of excess reserves no longer required due to the expiration of the indemnification
period under the Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc. purchase and sale agreement.

6. Leases

Sales-Type Leases

The Company’s net investment in sales-type leases consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006
(dollars in thousands):

2072006
Lease contracts receivable. . . ... ... ... . $6,495  $1,721
Unearned reVENUE. . . ... .. .ot i e e _(524) (218)
Net investment in sales-type leases . ... ... .. ..o i % @

Lease contracts receivables are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and other long-term
assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Operating Leases

The Company leases equipment to customers under operating leases with terms generally under four years.
The leases contain provisions for mutual renewal options.

Future minimum payments to be received under sales-type and operating leases are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

.0 P $5,294
/041 P 3,301
2010 e e e e e e e e e 857
1.3 0 P 387
2002 e e e e e —
B0 1 =T =72 0= S P =

$9,839

|
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7. Short-term Investments

The Company’s short-term investments are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, amortized cost of the Company’s short-term investments equaled fair value.
Accordingly, there were no unrealized gains and losses as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities amounted to $184.1 million, $307.1 million and
$230.0 million respectively, for the years ended December 31, 20077, 2006 and 2005. Gross realized gains and losses
from the sale of available-for-sale securities were not material for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and

2005.

The Company’s short-lerm investments consisted of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in
thousands):

2007 2006
Municipal debt securities ... ... ... . L e $ — 810400
U.S. government and agency debt securities. . . ........... .. ... . ... 4,988 5.977
Corporate debt securities. . . ... ... . . e — 23,001
Preferred equity securities. . ... ... o e e — 7,850

54,988  $47,228

At December 31, 2007, all of the Company’s U.8. government and agency debt securities mature within
calendar year 2008,

8. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Purchased pars. . .. ... ot i e e e e e § 8,676  $24,367
WOrk in Progress . ..ot i e e e e 4,566 6,008
Finished goods . . . ... . . 9,101 22,257

$22,343  $52,632

During 2007, we have transferred approximately $12.7 million of inventory to our third-party manufacturing
partner in connection with the outsourcing of manufactaring. Inventory was sold at the material value excluding
capitalized overhead costs and no associated revenue was recorded relating to this transfer of inventory.
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Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Land and improvements . .. ... .. ... ... 5 — $ 4743
Bulldings .. ...t e 2,524 12,753
Computer equipment and software. . . ............. ... ... ... 24955 23,956
Machinery and equipment . . .. ... ... 25,793 25,304
Equipment leased 10 Customers . . . .........0ooiian i, 4,350 2,843
Furniture and fIXIUTES . . . . .ottt et e et e e s e e e 4,044 4,945
Leaschold improvements. . ... ... ...t 3.809 3,118
Construction In ProCeSS. . . . v v vt vt e i cii i e 3,832 375

70,207 78,037
Less accumulated depreciation ... ... ... ... Lo i (52,513)  (50,776)

$17.694 § 27,261

Depreciation expense from continuing operations, which includes depreciation for assets under capital lease,
was $6.9 million, $6.3 million and $6.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respeclively,

Accumulated depreciation for equipment leased to customers amounted to $2.8 million and $1.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

During June 2007, the Company completed the sale of its headquarters facilities located in Phoenix, Arizona,
for a sale price of $16.3 million. The Company recorded a gain of $3.8 million on the sale in the second quarter of
2007. The net book value of the headquarters facilities was $11.8 million and was included in property, plant and
equipment, net, at December 31, 2006. The gain of $3.8 million is included as a separate line within operating
expenses in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and is included in the corporate operating income
relative to the segment and geographic information as disclosed in Note 20. As part of the sale, the Company entered
into a lease agreement with the buyer for the continued use of the building space during a period of 15 months
starting on May 16, 2007 through August 31, 2008. The agreement allows the Company the right to terminate the
lease prior to the expiration of the above mentioned term, provided that a written notice is delivered to the lessor six
months in advance of the cancellation date.

During September 2006, the Company completed the sale of its real property in Hong Kong for a purchase
price of $5.2 million. The Company received deposits totaling $0.5 million on the sale in the second quarter of 2006
and the balance of $4.7 million in September 2006. The Company recorded a gain of $3.0 million on the sale in the
third quarter of 2006. This amount has been included as a separate line within operating expenses.
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10. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

Accumulated

Gross Carrying Amount Amortization Net
2007 1006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Capitalized software . ... ........ $ 6,159 $5668 $(3,949) 3$(3,088) % 2,210 $2,580
Customer relationships .. ........ 2,830 400 (263) (2) 2,567 398
Unpatented technology . ......... 2,300 2,300 (240} %) 2,060 2,291
Trademarks, trade names. .. ...... 2,220 _— (204} — 2,016 —
Service know-how . ............ 1,330 _ (122} — 1,208 —
Other....................... 609 484 {168) (20) 441 464

$15,448  $8,852  $(4.946) $(3.119) $10,502  §$5733

Amortization of these intangibles is provided on straight-line method on their estimated useful lives:

Capitalized software . . . . ... . e e 3 years
Customer relationships . . ... ... . L 10 years
Unpatented technology . . ... ... . . . 10 years
Trademarks, trade names .. ........ ... e 10 years
Service know-how . . .. 10 years
£ 71 1T P 2-5 years

Amortization expense related to intangible assets used in continuing operations was $2.3 million, $1.6 million
and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Based on the intangibles
assets recorded at December 31, 2007, and assuming no subsequent impairment of the underlying assets, the annual
amortization expense for each period, is expected to be as follows: $2.0 million for 2008, $1.6 million for 2009,
$1.5 million for 2010, $1.0 million for 2011 and $0.9 million for 2012.

11. Product Warranty

The following table reconciles the changes to the product warranty liability for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 (doltars in thousands):

2007 2006
Balance at beginning of period . . . . ... .. ... ... . i $2636 $5534
Warranty charges to normal operations .. ... ...... ... L L. 2428 1,533
Warranty reversals related to the 2005 Business Review .. ................ (100)  (1,408)
Utilization of warranty liability. . .. ........ ... i, (3,210) (3,023)
Balance atend of period . ..... ... ... . . .. .. . $1,754 $2636

Warranty charges related to the 2005 Business Review consist of costs for the trade-in of certain electronic
payment equipment that the Company elected to grant customers as a result of higher than expected repair
occurrences. Two customers that agreed to participate in the trade-in program in June 2005 for the replacement of
certain electronic payment equipment ultimately opted out of the program. Accordingly, the Company reduced its
product warranty liabilities by $1.4 million in June 2006 upon the expiration of the program.
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Deferred revenue associated with the Company’s extended warranty programs was $1.9 million and $1.8 mil-
lion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

12. Leong-term Debt
Credit Facilities

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with a bank pursuant to which the
Company had access to a $5.0 million line of credit. Borrowings under the credit agreement were fully collat-
eralized by short-term investments held in the Company’s investment accounts with the bank. Any borrowings bore
interest at a rate set forth in each promissory note issued at the time of the advance. The credit agreement contained
customary default provisions and was set to expire on March 31, 2008, but was extended to March 31, 2009.

On January 15, 2008, the Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement {the *'Loan Agreement”) with
a bank and other financial institutions party to the Loan Agreement. The bank also serves as agent for the Lenders
under the Loan Agreement (the “Agent”). The Loan Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility of up to
$25 million, which replaces the Company’s prior credit facility discussed above. The Loan Agreement contains a
provision that, if certain conditions are met, the Company may request an increase in the credit facility to an
aggregate total of up to $40 million. Amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and repaid or prepaid during the
term may be reborrowed. Qutstanding amounts under the Loan Agreement will bear interest, at the Company’s
option, at either (i) LIBOR plus 175 basis points; or (ii) the Bank’s prime rate. All amounts outstanding under the
Loan Agreement are due on January 15, 2011.

Availability of borrowings under the Loan Agreement from time to time is subject to a borrowing base
calculation based upon a valuation of the Company’s eligible inventories (including raw materials, finished and
semi-finished goods, and certain in-transit inventory) and eligible accounts receivable, each multiplied by an
applicable advance rate.

In addition to representations and warranties, covenants, conditions and other terms customary for instruments
of this type, the Loan Agreement includes negative covenants that prohibit the Company from, among other things,
incurring certain types of indebtedness, making annual capital expenditures in excess of proscribed amounts, or
disposing of certain assets. The Loan Agreement provides for customary events of default, including failure to pay
any principal or interest when due, failure to comply with covenants, any representation made by the Company that
is incorrect in any material respect, certain defaults relating to other material indebtedness, certain insolvency and
receivership events affecting the Company, judgments in excess of $2.5 million in the aggregate being rendered
against the Company, and the incurrence of certain ERISA liabilities in excess of $1.0 million in the aggregate.

In the event of a default by the Borrowers, the Agent may, at the direction of the Lenders, terminate the
Lenders’ commitments to make loans under the Loan Agreement, declare the obligations under the Loan
Agreement immediately due and payable and enforce any and all rights of the Lenders or Agent under the Loan
Agreement and related documents. For certain events of default related to insolvency and receivership, the
commitments of the Lenders are automatically terminated and ail outstanding obligations become immediately due
and payable. The obligations of the Company under the Loan Agreement are secured by its inventory and accounts
receivable of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in the U.S. and the U.K. The remaining balance of the
Company’s consolidated assets are unencumbered under the Loan Agreement and, if needed, may be used as
collateral for additional debt.. The Company’s obligations as guarantor under the Loan Agreement are unsecured.

Acquisifion Financing

On February 13, 2008, in connection with the pending acquisition of TeT (see Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements), the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement™) with Francisco
Partners II, L.P. (the “Lender”) pursuant to a commitment letter dated December 20, 2007 between the Company
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and the Lender. The Credit Agreement provides for a loan of up to $60 million to partially fund the acquisition at the
time the transaction closes. The toan under the Credit Agreement will bear interest at 10% per annum, provided that,
at the election of the Company, interest may be capitalized and added to the principal of the loan to be repaid at
maturity. All amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement are due four years from the funding date. Upon
funding of the loan under the Credit Agreement and the closing of the acquisition, the Lender will be granted a five-
year warrant to purchase approximately 10.5 million shares of the Company’s comrnon stock at $5.00 per share. The
warrant will be issued at the time of funding and contains a cashless exercise provision.

In addition to representations and warranties, covenants, conditions and other terms customary for instruments
of this type, the Credit Agreement includes negative covenants that prohibit the Company from, among other things,
incurring certain types of indebtedness, granting liens on assets, engaging in transactions with affiliates and
disposing of certain assets. The Credit Agreement provides for customary events of default, including failure to pay
any principal or interest when due, failure to comply with covenants, any representation made by the Borrowers that
is incorrect in any material respect, certain defaults relating to other material indebtedness, certain insolvency and
receivership events affecting the Company, judgments in excess of $3.0 million in the aggregate being rendered
against the Company, and the incurrence of certain ERISA liabilities in excess of $3.0 million in the aggregate.

In the event of a default by the Company, Francisco Partners may declare the obligations under the Credit
Agreement immediately due and payable and enforce any and all of its rights under the Credit Agreement and
related documents.

13. Share Based Plan Compensation

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of
operations for December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006 2005
Costsof revenue . .. ... .. L e e 111 0§ 170 0§ —
Research and development . . . .. . ... .. .. . . . . . {104) 896 —
Selling, general and administrative . . .. ......... ... ... ... ....... 1,912 3,187 828
Total . .o e e $1919 86,253  $828

Share-based compensation expense included $0.2 million, $1.0 million and zero of payroll tax paid on behalf
of employees that received stock awards during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

During 2007, the Company reversed $1.1 million and $0.5 million of previously recognized expense and
accrual of payroll tax due to non-achievement of performance goals related to restricted stock awards, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, total unrecognized compensation cost, net of forfeiture, related to stock-based
options and awards was $1.7 million and the related weighted-average period over which it is expected to be
recognized is approximately one year.

Stock Options

At December 31, 2007, the Company had four active share-based employee compensation plans. Stock option
awards granted from these plans are granted at the fair market value on the date of grant, and vest over a period
determined at the time the options are granted, generally ranging from one to five years, and generally have a
maximum term of ten years. For stock options with graded vesting terms, the Company recognizes compensation
cost over the requisite service period on the accelerated method in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28,
Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and other Variable Stock Option Award Plans, rather than the straight-
line method.
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A summary of stock option activity within the Company's share-based compensation plans and changes for the

year ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price Term Value
{In Thousands)
Quiustanding at December 31,2007 ......... 2,974,536 $7.33 6.31 $470
Vested and expected to vest at December 31,
2007 . e 2,845,850 $7.36 6.19 $470
Exercisable at December 31, 2007.......... 1,919,734 $7.71 491 $466

I

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

was $0.3 million, $3.9 million and $3.8 million, respectively.

The key assumptions used in the Black-Scholes valuation model to calculate the fair value are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Weighted average risk free interestrate. .. . ........... . o 45% 48% 4.1%
Expected life of the options {(inyears) .............. ot 541 548 577
Expected stock price volatility .. ... .. ... . o oo 56% 67% 15%

Expected dividend yield . ... .. ... .. s — — _

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. The risk-free interest
rate is based on the U.S. treasury security rate in effect as of the date of grant. The expected lives of options and
stock price volatility are based on historical data of the Company. The weighted average fair value of options
granted in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $5.24, $5.90 and $4.11, respectively.

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per common share for the years ended
December 31, 2005 as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 10 all
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outstanding stock option awards for periods presented prior to the Company’s adoption of SFAS 123R (amounts in
thousands, except per share data and weighted average shares):

2005

Net loss, as reported . . . ... .. . e e e $  (33,366)
Add stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss. . . . . . 828
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value

methods for awards . . . ... v e e (2,837)
Add reversal of stock-based compensation expense for options forfeited prior to

VESIIM . o oo e e e 2,694
Pro forma Net F08S . . .. .ttt ettt e e e e $  (32,681)
Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted, asreported. . . .. .. ... e $ (0.64)
Basic and diluted, pro forma ... ... ... ... e $ {0.62)
Weighted average shares used in pro forma computation:
Basicand diluted. .. ... .. . . e 52,395,001

Restricted Stock Awards

The Company grants restricted stock awards to certain employees. Restricted stock awards are valued at the closing
market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and the total value of the award is expensed ratably
over the service period of the emplovees receiving the grants. Share-based compensation expense {reversal) related to all
restricted stock awards outstanding in 2007, 2006, and 2005 was approximately $(0.5) million, $1.4 million and
$0.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, the total amount of unrecognized compensation cost related 1o
nonvested restricted stock awards was approximately $0.2 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of one year. Compensation expense with respect to the grants could be reduced and/or reversed to the
extent employees receiving the grants leave the Company prior to vesting in the award.
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A summary of nonvested restricted stock activity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as
follows:

Weighted
Nonvested Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding per Share
Balance at December 31,2004 . ... . ... ... 0 116,936 5.43
Shares granted in 2005 . . ... ... ... o e 464,000 6.20
Shares vested in 2005 . . . ... . s (104,348) 4.78
Shares forfeited in 2005 .. .. ... ... . ... e _(74,588) _6.04
Balance at December 31,2005 ... .. ... .. i 402,000 6.38
Shares granted in 2006 ... ... .. ... ... 92,432 8.40
Shares vested in 2006 . .. . . .ottt e (102,000} 6.36
Shares forfeited in 2006 . . . ... ... .. e (50,000) 6.42
Balance at December 31,2006 . . ... .. .. . i 342,432 6.92
Shares granted in 2007 . .. ... ... L. 93,334 5.76
Shares vested in 2007 . . . . ... ... e (60,766) 6.14
Shares forfeited in 2007 . .. .. .. (300,000) 6.89
Balance at December 31, 2007 ... ... .. i 75,000 $6.24

The total fair value of restricted shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$0.4 million, $0.6 and $0.5 million, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under SFAS 123R, the Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”} is considered
compensatory. During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded compensation
expense of $55,000, $78,000 and zero, respectively related to the Purchase Plan.

14. Stockholders’ Equity

In 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board") adopted and the stockholders of the Company
approved the Hypercom Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan, which was amended in 2001 (the *1997 Plan™), to
allocate a total of 6,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance at the Company’s discretion. The 1997 Plan
authorizes issuance of “incentive stock options” (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), non-qualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance share awards, dividend equivalent
awards and other stock-based awards. Stock options issued under the 1997 Plan become exercisable over a period
determined by the Board (generally over two to five years) and expire after a period determined by the Board
(generally ten years after the date of grant).

In 2000, the Board approved the Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock Incentive Plan, which was
amended in 2002 (the “2000 Plan™), to allocate 7,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance at the Company’s
discretion. The 2000 Plan authorizes the issuance of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock awards, the
majority of which must be issued to employees of the Company who are not officers or directors. Non-qualified
stock options issued under the 2000 Plan become exercisable over a period determined by the Board (generally over
two to five years), and expire after a period determined by the Board (generally ten years after the date of grant).
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Stock Options

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended December 31,

2007, 2006 and 20035 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
Under Exercise Under Exercise Under Exercise
Option Price Option Price Option Price
Beginning balance
outstanding . .. ........ 3726642  $8.07 4,321,744 $6.88 8,610,291 $6.75
Granted . .............. 649,070 5.29 1,083,500 9.54 1,041,500 6.08
Exercised.............. (201,024) 3.61 (1,060,942) 4.38 (1,811,639) 3.83
Cancellations . .......... (1,200,152) 9.04 {617,660) 8.73 (3,518,408) 7.89
Ending balance
outstanding. . . ........ 2,974,536 $7.33 3,726,642 $8.07 4,321,744 $6.88
Exercisable at end of year, . 1,919,734 $7.71 2,249,506 $7.77 3,227,802 $7.13

The following table summarizes additional information about the Company’s stock options outstanding as of

December 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Shares Average Average Shares Average
Under Remaining Exercise Under Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Option Contractual Life Price Option Price
$246- 350 ............... 238,800 3.14 $ 3.49 238,800 $ 349
$352- 528 ... . ..., 792,339 7.67 4.92 304,665 4.74
$541- 625..............., 385,570 7.31 6.05 252,570 6.13
$628- 929 ... ............ 672,250 7.95 7.27 415,870 7.22
$931- 938 ... ... ... ..., 170,000 2.55 9.37 170,000 9.37
$940- 963 ............... 45,500 2,61 9.57 38,716 9.58
$1038-1444 ... ........... 670,077 4.81 11.68 499,113 12.03

2,974,536 1,919,734

On January 15, 2008, the Company granted 1,000,000 stock options to certain employees with an exercise

price of $4.01.

Stock Warrants

During July 2006, the Company issued 319,858 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, upon the
conversion of 319,858 Sertes D Warrants at an exercise price of $5.21 per share. Proceeds from the conversion

amounted to $1.7 million.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 1997, the Board adopted and the stockholders of the Company approved the Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “Purchase Plan”}. The Purchase Plan allows eligible employees of the Company to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock through periodic payroll deductions every three months. At the end of each offering
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period, payroll deductions for the offering period are used to purchase shares of common stock for each participant’s
account at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on either the first or last day of the
offering period, whichever is less. Payroll deductions under the Purchase Plan are limited to 10% of each eligible
employee’s earnings during the offering period, and no single participant will be granted an option to purchase
shares with a value in excess of $25,000 for each calendar year. The Board has reserved 625,000 shares of common
stock for issuance under the Purchase Plan, subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split,
stock dividend or similar event. Under the Purchase Plan, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
the Company sold 46,139, 58,642 and 61,382 shares to employees at weighted average prices of $4.47, $5.88 and
$4.54, respectively.

Directors’ Stock Plan

In 1997, the Board adopted and the stockholders of the Company approved the Hypercom Corporation
Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, which was amended in 2002 and 2006 (the “Directors Plan™). The
Directors Plan is administered by a committee appointed by the Board and provides for an initial grant to each
Nonemployee Director of an option to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock; thereafier, each Nonemployee
Director will receive an annual grant of an option to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock. The aggregate
number of shares of Comman Stock subject to the Directors Plan may not exceed 600,000, subject to adjustment in
the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend or similar event. Options granted under the Directors
Plan are fully vested and become fully exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have a term of ten
years. The exercise price per share under the Director Plan is equal to the fair market value of such shares upon the
date of grant. In general, options may be exercised by payment in cash or a cash equivalent, and/or previously
acquired shares having a fair market value at the time of exercise equal to the total option exercise price.

Stock Repurchase

During August 2003, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program to allow the purchase of up to
$10.0 million of our common stock. During November 2005, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program to
purchase up to $20.0 million of the Company’s common stock. When treasury shares are issued, the Company uses
a first-in, first-out method and any excess of repurchase costs over the reissue price is treated as a reduction of paid
in capital. Any excess of reissue price over repurchase cost is treated as an increase to paid-in capital.

During 2006 and 2005, the Company purchased 1,346,628 and 1,525,409 shares of its common stock for
$10.7 million and $9.2 million, respectively. There were no treasury stock repurchases during 2007. The
repurchased shares were recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to stockholder’s equity. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had repurchased 2,932,037 shares of comumon stock at an average price per share
of $6.86 under the share repurchase programs during 2003, 2005 and 2006. The timing and amount of any future
repurchases will depend on market conditions and corporate considerations.

Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, there were no preferred shares outstanding.

15. Brazilian Health Ministry Contract

The Company has been involved in a long-term contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry requiring
substantial delivery of customized software and hardware, Revenue and a resulting margin under this contract were
recorded based on the achievement of contract milestones approved by the Brazilian Health Ministry in accordance
with Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts. The margin for the entire contract was estimated to be 9%. Inherent in this margin was an expectation of
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realizing all amounts owed under the terms of the original contract and recovering claims for additional contract
revenue, due to changes in the scope of the contract and additional currency exchange variation adjustments. Scope
changes involved expanding the overall design specifications requiring additional hours and administration costs,
The currency adjustments represented the inflation of cost on imported equipment caused by currency movements.
At the end of 2003, the Company formally presented a claim to the Brazilian Health Ministry detailing the amount
and nature of the scope changes and currency variation impact. The Company did not recognize revenues above the
original contract amount, and contract costs associated with the scope changes and currency adjustments amounting
to $11.3 million were deferred in anticipation of recognizing contract revenue. Due to the lack of timely
acknowledgement and acceptance of the pending claim, the Company recorded a charge to operations for the
deferred costs during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Since 2004, the Company has actively pursued discussions with the Brazilian Health Ministry regarding both
the collection of the contract costs as well as renewal of the maintenance element of the contract; however, there is
no certainty as to how much will ultimately be collected, whether revenue for work previously done will be recorded
or if the maintenance element of the contract will ultimately be extended. The Company collected $4.6 million and
$0.9 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to this contract and the deferred costs previously charged to
operations during 2004. These collections were recorded as services revenue during the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006. There were no amounts collected from Brazil Health Ministry during 2005.

16. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Income (loss) before income taxes and discountinued operalions:
United States . . ... ... i $(15,760) $(18,952) 3(14,645)
Foreign ....... .. . . 1,663 25,035 (12,072)

$ 8,097y § 6,083 $(26,717)

The {provision) benefit for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035 consists of the
following (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Current:
0] ¥ = $ 4 %5 3 3 5
Federal. . . ... .. i e e (8) — —
Foreign ... ... ..o e 40y (1,873 (3,312)
(44y (1,876) (3,307
Deferred — Foreign . . . ... ... ... .. . (434) 530 (219)
Total ... .. e e $(478) $(1,346) $(3,526)
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A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate ................... 35.0% 35.0% 350%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect. .. ............... 0.0 0.0 0.0
Boreign taXes . . . . e 275 (1197 (289
Tax credits . .. .. e e e e e 0.0 0.0 3.0
Translation gain . ... ... o e 0.0 19.7 2.6
Change in valuation allowance .. .......... ... ... ... ciiuinn. (67.4) B5.0 (248)
11 1) A (1.0) 1.6 0.1
Effective taX Tate . ... i e e e 5.9% 21.6% -(13.2)%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows
(dollars in thousands);

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets (liabilities), current:

Inventory valuation and reserves ... ... .. $ 2761 $ 2447

Compensation accruals . . .. ... e 1,060 1,059
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ... .. ... . . . L e, 886 37
Foreign, Net ... e e e e 1,478 1,895
L 1 =1 —_ 15
Valuation allowance . ... .. .. .. .. e e (5,688) (4,762)
Deferred tax assets, CUITENL. . . . o . o v oo e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 497 § 691
Deferred tax asscts (liabilities), non-current:
Tax loss carry forwards — United States . . ....... ... ... ... ... ... $ 29,401 §$ 26,662
Tax loss carry forwards — Foreign . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ... 22,954 23,581
IMangIblEs e e e e s 280 201
Property, plant and equipment . . . . ... . ... ... .. (667) 103
BOreI N, . o e e 179 (380)
Other . L e e e 5,340 6,035

......................................... (58,107)  (56,582)
Net deferred tax liabilities, non-current . . .. ... ... ... ..., $ (6200 % (380)

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s valuation allowance increased by $2.5 million,
primarily related to a loss from operations in the U.S. The Company does not believe it is more likely than not that it
will be able to realize the majority of its deferred tax assets through expected future taxable profits and has recorded
a full valuation allowance for all U.S. Federal and State deferred tax assets and the majority all foreign deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time the benefits are actually utilized or,
the operating profits become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes ("SFAS 109”). .
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At December 31, 2007, the Company has a gross deferred tax asset of $29.4 million associated with its
U.S. Federal and State tax net operating loss carryforwards of $84.0 million, The U.S. Federal and State net
operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2019 through 2027 if not previously utilized. The Company’s
ability to utilize its net operating losses may be restricted due to statutory “ownership changes” (as defined for
purposes of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code).

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has a gross deferred tax asset of $23.0 million associated with foreign
net operating loss carryforwards of $71.7 million. The foreign net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in
various periods if not previously utilized.

In June 2006, FASB issued its Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109, The interpretation prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute criteria for the financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance on non-
recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The
Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not impact the
consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations or statements of cash flows. The total amount of unrecognized
tax benefits a1 December 31, 2007 is $8.4 million of which $4.6 million would impact the Company’s effective tax
rate were it to be recognized. The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized
tax benefits (dollars in thousands):

2007
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at 1107 .. ... L e $8,352
Decrease in tax positions for prior years . .. ... ... ... . i e e, (624)
Increase in tax positions forcurrent year. . ... ... ... L __680
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at 123107 ... ... .. ... . i %

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and vartous states and
foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or
non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 1999. The Company’s policy is to recognize
interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as interest expense and penalties as operating expenses. Accrued
interest is insignificant and there are no penalties accrued at December 31, 2007. The Company believes that it has
appropriate support for the income tax positions taken and to be taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open years based on an assessment of many factors including past experience and
interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of each matter.

It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the Company will decrease within the
next twelve months by $0.6 mitlion relating to income tax exposure in various foreign junsdictions. The anticipated
reduction is based on the Company’s ongoing assessment of the administrative practices and precedents of the
taxing authorities in the respective foreign jurisdictions.

17. Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “401(k) Plan™), which commenced in fiscal 1998, covering
all eligible full-time employees of the Company. Contributions to the 401(k) Plan are made by the participants to
their individual accounts through payroll withholding. Additionally, the 401(k) Plan provides for the Company to
make profit sharing contributiens to the 401(k) Plan in amounts at the discretion of management. The employer
contribution was $0.! million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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18. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse space, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable operating
leases. The office space leases provide for annual rent payments plus a share of taxes, insurance and maintenance on
the properties.

Future minimum payments under operating leases are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2008 . .o e e e $ 3.260
2000 . . e e e e ey 2917
2000 . e e e e e 2,102
200 e e e e e e 1,572
200 e e e e e e 1,597
THETCaltET .« .ottt et e e e e e e 3,460

$14,908

Rental expense from continuing operations amounted to $4.2 million, $3.0 million and $2.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Litigation

The Company is currently a party to various legal proceedings, including those noted below. While the
Company presently believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will
not have a material adverse affect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows, litigation
is subject to inherent uncertainties, and unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could include
monetary damages or, in cases where injunctive relief is sought, an injunction. Were an unfavorable ruling to occur,
it is possible such a ruling could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations
or financial position in the period in which the ruling occurs or in future periods.

SPA Syspatronic AG v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas, Civil Action No. 2:07-CV-416 (LED), filed on September 18, 2007). SPA Syspatronic AG (“SPA”")
commenced this action in the United States District Coust for the Eastern District of Texas, Beaumont Division,
against the Company and others, alleging that certain of the Company's products infringe U.S. Patent No. 5,093,862
(the ““862 Patent™) purportedly owned by SPA. The plaintiff is seeking a judgment of infringement, an injunction
against further infringement, damages, interest and attorneys’ fees.

The Company has filed an answer denying liability on the basis of a lack of infringement, invalidity of the ‘862
Patent, laches, waiver, equitable estoppel and unclean hands, lack of damages and failure to state a claim. The
Company has also counterclaimed seeking a declaratory judgment of non-infringement and invalidity of the ‘862
Patent. One of the other defendants has filed a request for re-examination of the '862 Patent by the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office (the “Patent Office”) and has filed a motion with the Court 1o stay proceedings in this case until
the Patent Office has resolved the request for re-examination

Wool v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (Superior Court of the State of Arizona, County of Maricopa, Civil
Action No. CV2008-050575, filed on February 13, 2008). Mr. Wool filed this action, designated as a “‘class action
complaint,” against the Company and the members of its Board on February 13, 2008, The complaint alleges that
the Company and its directors breached fiduciary duties by not entering into negotiations with Ingenico SA, a
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competitor of the Company, which had indicated an interest in acquiring the Company s outstanding common stock
for $6.25 per share. The Company believes the lawsuit is without merit and intends to contest it vigorously.

CardSoft, Inc., et al. v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. (United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas, Civil Action No. 2:08-CV-00098, filed on March 6, 2008). CardSoft, Inc. (“CardSoft™) filed this action on
March 6, 2008 in the United States Disirict Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division, against the
Company and others, alleging that certain of the Company’s terminal products infringe two patents allegedly owned
by CardSoft: U.S. Patent No. 6,934,945, entitled “Method and Apparatus for Controlling Communications,” issued
on August 23, 2005, and U.S. Patent No. 7,302,683, also entitled “Method and Apparatus for Controlling
Communications,” issued on November 27, 2007, which is a continuation of the '945 patent, The plaintiff is
seeking a judgment of infringement, an injunction against further infringement, damages, interest and attorneys’
fees. This action has not been served on the Company, however the Company believes that the lawsuit is without
merit and intends to contest it vigorously.

19. Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks
Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and short-term investments.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are maintained with major, high-quality
international banks and financial institutions. Generally, these securities are traded in a highly liquid market, may be
redeemed upon demand and bear minimal risk. Management regularly monitors the composition and maturities of
these investments and the Company has not experienced any material loss on its investments, Cash and cash
equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes that no significant concentration of credit
risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

The Company's accounts receivable resuit primarily from credit sales to a broad customer base, both nationally
and internationally, with a concentration generally existing among five to ten customers. The Company’s top five
customers amounted to 21.3%, 25.9% and 31.6% of the Company’s total revenues for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These same five customers accounted for 26.9% and 21.4% of the Company’s
net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sales to the Company’s largest
customer totaled 5.3%, 10.8% and 12.1% of total revenues in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers, requiring letters of credit from certain
foreign customers, and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts as necessary.

Inventories

Most components used in the Company’s systems are purchased from outside sources. Certain components are
purchased from single suppliers. The failure of any such supplier to meet its commitment on schedule could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition. If a sole-source
supplier were to go out of business or otherwise become unable to meet its supply commitments, the process of
tocating and qualifying alternate sources could require up to several months, during which time the Company’s
production could be delayed. Such delays could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition.

The Company estimates inventory provisions for potentially excess and obsolete inventory on a part level basis
based on forecasted demand and historical usage. Actual demand may differ from such anticipated demand and may
have a material adverse effect on inventory valuation.
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International Operations

The Company’s international business is an important contributor to the Company's net revenue and operating
results. However, a substantial portion of the Company’s international sales are denominated in the U.S. dollar, and
an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies could make products sold internationally less
competitive. The operating expenses of the Company’s overseas offices are paid in local currencies and are subject
to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Company’s primary manufacturing operations are located in China. In addition to its Chinese manu-
facturing capacity, the Company outsources the manufacture of certain products to a contract manufacturer in
Poland and Malaysia, and maintains a final assembly operation in Brazil. Foreign manufacturing is subject to
certain risks, including the imposition of tariffs and import and export controls, together with changes in
governmental policies. The occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

The Company maintained significant accounts receivable balances in the European and South American
regions, comprising 46.8% and 61.9%, respectively, of the Company’s net accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. These balances are subject to the economic risks inherent to those regions.

20. Segment, Geographic, and Customer Information
Segment

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company began to report information pertaining to three business
segments as follows: (i) Americas; (ii) EMEA; and (iii) Asia-Pacific. While the Company has historically operated
globally, in the past the reporting of its global operations did not meet all the criteria as set forth in SFAS No. 131,
Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information (“SFAS 1317).

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company added a President to the executive management team, initiated
new organizational changes and made enhancements to the Company’s internal management reporting, including
providing additional reports to the Board. As required in SFAS 131, unless deemed impractical to do so, prior year
segment data has been restated for comparative purposes.

The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM"), as defined in SFAS 131, consist of a group
comprised of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer. The CODM reviews the
product and service revenues; gross margins using fully burdened manufacturing costs (i.e., before any effects of
internal transfer pricing); direct local service costs; direct operating expenses consisting of expenses directly
associated with the business segment; and indirect operating expenses consisting of global shared cost centers such
as global research and development, global marketing, corporate general and administrative expenses, and stock-
based compensation. Intersegment sales approximate market prices and are not significant. Reportable segment
data follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net Revenue
F N 31 T=) (ot - $158,538 $145,575 $146,444
EMEA . . . e e e 81,383 67,476 58,560
Asia-Pacific . . ... e 53,881 35,514 40,219

$293,802 $248,565 $245,223

89




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2007

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Operating Income
AMEIICAS . . . .ottt e e et e e e $ 9412 $26825 § 9773
EMEA . .. e e e 15,032 10,671 612
Asia-Pacific. ... oo e 9,108 10.404 9.550
Shared cost centers . ... ......... . (43,771  (44,733)  (47,007)

Total segment profit (Ioss) ......... ..., 510,219y $ 3,167  $(27,072)
Interest INCOME .+ . . o oot it e e e e e e e e 3,954 4,758 2,679
Interest eXpense . . . o oo e (122} {1,072) (787)
Foreigncurrency loss. .. ..., ... ... ... . . . . . i (1.685) (699) (1,297)
Otherexpense . ... .. .. i e (25) 1) (240)

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations .. $ (8,097) $ 6,083  $(26,717)

December 31, December 31,
2007

2006
Total Assets
F N 31T o T $ 79,210 $ 68,578
EMEA . . e e 29,482 35710
Asia-Pacific . . ... . e e 55,004 60,031
Shared cost Cemters. . .. .. .. e e 86,548 72,397

$250,244 $236,716
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21. Supplemental Cash Flow Information (in thousands)

2007 2006 2008
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . . . ... .. ... ... e $(19,084) § (3.641) % 87201
Net investment in sales-type leases . . . .................. —
INVENIOMES . . . ot e e et e e 20,683 (16,748)  (15,057)
Income tax receivable. . . . ... (1,354) —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .............. (4,959} 1,604 3,197
OUNeT AS5LS .« o v vttt et e e e s (4,175) {600} (774)
Accounts payable . . .. ... ... o i i 7.623 4,638 (8,294)
Accrued payroll and related expenses .. ................. 3,466 (3,653) 51
Accrued salesand othertax .. ............... .. ... (759) (2,101 1,843
Accrued liabilities .. .. ... . . ... e 2,465 (1,929 (2,632)
Deferred FevENUE . . ..o ittt e et 3,287 (669) 52
Income taxes payable . . ........ ... ... ... .. (1,903) 608 (1,708)
Other labilities . ........ . ... . . i (481) (3,976) 3,271
Net decrease in operating assets and liabilities. .. .......... $ 4,809 $(26,467) ${11,850)
Cash paid during the year by continuing operations:
1T ¢ 1 A § (74 % (575 § (786)
INCOME LAXES . . o ot ottt et e e e e e it ee e $ 2,128 % (1,823 §$ (4,298)
Noncash investing activities:
Changes in accounts payable related to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment . ... ... ... .. b 70 § 16§ 166

Discontinued Operations

Year 2007. The net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2007 relates to the
U.K. Lease Business and is primarily due lo reimbursements of previously paid commissions paid to the Company
in the first quarter of 2007 for those leases not reaching full lease term.

Year 2006. The net cash provided by operating and investment activities for the year ended December 31,
2006 relates to the U.K. Lease Business and is primarily due to $3.9 million of net cash earnings from the leasing
operations and $12.1 million of proceeds from the sale of the business on May 31, 2006.

Year 2005. The net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2005 of
$11.4 miltion relates to the U.K. Lease Business and is primarily due to $7.4 million of net cash eamnings from
leasing operations and a $4.0 million decrease in other operating assets as the lease portfolio matures.
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22. Interim Financial Results (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain unaudited consolidated financial information for each of the four quarters
in the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. In management’s opinion, this unaudited quarterly information has
been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and includes all necessary
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments that management considers necessary for a fair
presentation of the unaudited quarterly results when read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Notes. The Company believes that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of its financial results are not necessarily
meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance (dollars in thousands, except per

share data).
First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarter (A) Quarter Quarter Year
2007
NEUTEVENUE . .. ...t ii e, $64,827 $67,477 $70,818 390,680  $293,802
Grossprofit .. ... ... .. .. .. ... . i ... $20,728 $ 8714 $21,231  $24775 § 75448
Income (loss) before discontinued operations. . . . . $(3,215) $(5704) $ 391 $ (@47 3 (8,575
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . .. . 690 (39) 138 309 1,098
Netincome {(108S) . . ... ... oo, $(2,525) $(5743) § 529 § 262 $ (747D
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations . .. .. ............... $ 006) $ (0.1) % 001 $ — $ (0.16)
Discontinued operations ... ............... 0.01 — — — 0.02
Netincome (10SS) . . ..ot e i i i $ (005 $@OI11H % 001 $ — % (014
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operalions . . .. . ... ............ $ 006) $ (011 $ 001 § — § (0.16)
Discontinued operations .. ................ 0.01 — — — 0.02
Net income (loss) . ...................... $005 $ @i $ 001 § — % (014
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First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarter (B) Quarter Quarter (C}) Year (D)

2006:
Netrevenue ............civvueinennnn. $60,969 $66,144 $56,669 $64,783 $248,565
Grossprofit. . ............. ... ... ... $23,519  $27,394  $18,922 $19,190  $ 89,025
Income (loss) before discontinued operations . .. $ 2,789 $ 4210 $ 473 $(2,735) § 4737
Income (loss) from discontinuved operations . . . . 349 2,018 (127) (7 2,233
Netincome (foss) .. ...... ... v $ 3,138 $ 6,228 $ 346 $(2,7742) $ 6,970
Basic income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations .. ................ $ 005 $ 008 $ 001 $ 005 $ 009

Discontinued operations. . . .............. 0.01 0.04 0.01 — 0.04

Net income (I0SS) ..o vvveni i innn e $ 006 $ 012 § 001 $ {005 § 0.13
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations .. ................ $ 005 $ 008 $ 001 $(0.05) $ 009

Discontinued operations. . . .............. 0.01 0.03 0.01 — 0.04

Net income (10SS) ..o vt vrnr e e $§ 006 § 0.1 5 002 $ (005 § 0.3

{A) InJune 2007, the Company completed the sale of its headquarters facilities, located in Phoenix, Arizona, for a
sale price of $16.3 million resulting in a gain of $3.8 million. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. During the second quarter of 2007, the Company initiated a reconfiguration of the Company’s
global sales and marketing organizations and incurred in charges of $2.9 million during the year. During the
second quarter of 2007, the Company increased inventory reserves by $6.1 million primary related to non-PCI

compliant products and components.

(B} During the 2006 second quarter, the Company had a $1.6 million gain on the sale of its U.K. Lease Business,

which was disposed of effective May 31, 2006.

(C) During the 2006 fourth quarter, the Company acquired TPI and incurred in a one-time charge of $1.0 million

for the acquired in-process research and development.

{D) Eamnings per share calculations are based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding for each
quarter. The sum of the quarters may not be equal to the fiscal year amount
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SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Charges to
Costs and
Balance at Expense in Charges to
Beginning of  Continuing Other Deductions Balance at
Period Operations Accounts (A) End of Period

(Dollars in thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2007:

Allowance for doubtful accounts . .. ... $1,934 $2.115 5— $ (13 $4,034
Year Ended December 31, 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... ... $3,266 $ 826 $— $(2,158) $1,934
Year Ended December 31, 2005;

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... ... $2,390 $2,046 $— $(1,170) $3.266

(A) Write-offs of uncollectible amounts and recoveries of amounts previously written off.
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(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 3, 2005)
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Exhibit 2.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 27, 2006)

|

10.11 — Employment Agreement, effective January 16, 2007, between Philippe Tartavull and Hypercom
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated January 17, 2007)%** |

10.12 — Separation Agreement and General Release, dated July 11, 2007, by and between Hypercom
Corporation and William Keiper (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 13, 2007)%**

10.13 — Consulting Agreement, dated July 11, 2007, by and between Hypercom Corporation and William Keiper
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on July 13, 2007)y***

10.14 — Amendment to Employment Agreement, datediJuIy 11, 2007, by and between Hypercom Corporation
and Philippe Tartavull (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 13, 2007)**""
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10.15 — Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated July 11, 2007, by and between Hypercom
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Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 13, 2007)%**
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December 20, 2007)

. 10.22 — Exclusivity letter agreement, dated December 20, 2007, by and between Thales SA and Hypercom
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2007)

10.23 — Commitment letter agreement, dated December 2(), 2007, by and between Francisco Partners II, L.P. and
Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2007)

10.24 —Am;:ndment to Employment Agreement, dated December 20, 2007, by and between Hypercom
Corporation and Philippe Tartavull (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2007)***

- 10.25 — Employment Agreement, dated December 26, 2007, by and between Norman Stout and Hypercom
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on
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10.26 — Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of January 15, 2008, among Hypercom U.S.A., Inc. and
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Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on January 22, 2008)
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GmbH, Thales UK Limited, and Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2008)

10.28 — Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2008, by and between Francisco Partners I, L.P.
and Hypercom Corporation {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2008)

10.29 — Credit Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2008, by and between Hypercom Corporation and Francisco
Partners II, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2008)

10.30 — Separation Agreement and General Release, dated as of February 22, 2008, by and between Hypercom
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21.1 — List of Subsidiaries*
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24.1 — Powers of Attorney* *
31.1 — Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002*
of 2002*
32— Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section l906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**
*  Filed herewith,

i

!

*%  Furnished herewith. |
i

*** Management or compensatory plan or agreement.

t  Certain Confidential Information contained in this Exhlbn was omitted by means of redacting a portion of the
text and replacing it with an asterisk. This Exhibit has [been filed separately with the Secretary of the Securities

and Exchange Commission without the redacuon pursuant to Confidential Treatment Request under
Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

|

|

|

31.2 — Certification of Chief Accounting Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
| i
|
!
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EXHIBIT 311

CERTIFICATION

[, Philippe Tartavull, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15
(fy and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused suclh disclosure controls and procedures to be designcd under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the reglstrant 1ncludmg its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which'this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

I

¢c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure contrels and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
- . | - . .
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contro! over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to recofd, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ Philippe Tartavull
Philippe Tartavull
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 14, 2008




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Shawn C. Rathje, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that matertal information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most

recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function);

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reperting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ Shawn C. Rathje

Shawn C. Rathje
Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller

Date; March 14, 2008




EXHIBIT 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

This certification is not deemed filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and does not constitute a part of the

Annual Report of Hypercom Cotporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™). '

I

In connection with the Report, we, Philippe Tartavull, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Shawn C. Rathje, as Chiel

Accounting Officer of the Company, hereby centify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, to the best of his knowledge, respectively, that: |

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(.'1;) or 15({d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company. |

By.: /s Philippe Tartavull
| Philippe Tartavull
i Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Shawn C. Rathje
| Shawn C. Rathje
| Chief Accounting Officer

Dated: March 14, 2008

Dated: March 14, 2008 l
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